T

CITY QF

Salisbury

AGENDA

FOR RESOURCES AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING TO BE HELD

ON

20 NOVEMBER 2017 AT CONCLUSION OF BUDGET AND FINANCE

COMMITTEE

IN COMMITTEE ROOM 1, 12 JAMES STREET, SALISBURY

MEMBERS

REQUIRED STAFF

APOLOGIES

Cr S Bedford (Chairman)
Mayor G Aldridge (ex officio)
Cr D Balaza

Cr B Brug

Cr D Bryant

Cr L Caruso

Cr R Cook (Deputy Chairman)
Cr D Pilkington

Cr D Proleta

General Manager Business Excellence, Mr C Mansueto

General Manager City Development, Mr T Sutcliffe

Manager Communications and Customer Relations, Mr M Bennington
Manager Governance, Mr M Petrovski

LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence for this meeting was previously granted to Cr R Cook.

PRESENTATION OF MINUTES

Presentation of the Minutes of the Resources and Governance Committee Meeting held on 16

October 2017.
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REPORTS

Administration

3.0.1 Future Reports for the Resources and Governance Committee .............cccveeveennennns 9
Corporate Governance

3.6.1 Review of BUrning POLICY ........ccviiiiiiieiiiciieieeeee e 13
3.6.2 Review of Elected Members Induction POliCy..........ccoeeieviiniiieniiiiieiecceeen 29
3.6.3 Review of Elected Member Recognition Policy ..........cccoeevieiieniiiciieniiciieiieee, 33
3.64 Updated Elected Member Allowances, Facilities and Support Policy .................. 39
3.6.5 Formal Meeting Schedule for 2018...........cccoieiiiiiieiiieiieceeeeeee e 49
3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual RePOrt..........ccovuiiiiiiiiiiiiieiieieeeeeeeee e 59
OTHER BUSINESS

CLOSE
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T

CITY OF

Salisbury

MINUTES OF RESOURCES AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD IN
COMMITTEE ROOM 1, 12 JAMES STREET, SALISBURY ON

16 OCTOBER 2017

MEMBERS PRESENT

OBSERVERS

STAFF

Cr S Bedford (Chairman)
Mayor G Aldridge (ex officio)
Cr D Balaza

Cr D Bryant

Cr L Caruso

Cr D Pilkington

Cr D Proleta

Nil

Acting Chief Executive Officer, Mr C Mansueto

Manager Communications and Customer Relations, Mr M Bennington
Manager Governance, Mr M Petrovski

Manager People and Culture, Ms G Page

Manager Business Systems and Solutions, Mr D Bevan

Coordinator Property, Mr T Starr

Governance Coordinator, Ms J Rowett

The meeting commenced at 7:10pm

The Chairman welcomed the members, staff and the gallery to the meeting.

APOLOGIES

An apology has been received from Cr B Brug.

City of Salisbury
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LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Leave of absence for this meeting was previously granted to Cr R Cook.

~

Ao

)

g PRESENTATION OF MINUTES

\m

E Moved Cr L Caruso

o0 Seconded Cr D Pilkington

.§ The Minutes of the Resources and Governance Committee Meeting held
> on 18 September 2017, be taken and read as confirmed.

g CARRIED
3=

£

=

)

Q

8 REPORTS

=

s

g Administration

%)

>

e 301 Future Reports for the Resources and Governance Committee
g Moved Mayor G Aldridge

2 Seconded Cr D Pilkington

E 1. The information be received.

)

[7/]

o CARRIED
=

o

)

§ Corporate Management

=

=

E 3.5.1 White Ribbon Australia Accreditation

Moved Mayor G Aldridge

Seconded Cr L Caruso

Cr L Caruso sought leave of the meeting to speak for a second time and

leave was granted.

1.  Information be received.

2. The City of Salisbury participates in the White Ribbon Australia
Workplace Accreditation Program.

3. A New Initiative Bid for $31,000 to include the $15,000
accreditation fee and additional resource is put forward for Council
consideration in the 2018/19 budget.

CARRIED
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Corporate Governance

3.6.1 Investigation of options for changes to audio recording of
Committee and Council meetings

Moved Cr D Balaza
Seconded Cr D Pilkington

1.

Audio recording be undertaken for all Council and standing
committee meetings.

Where an audio recording of a meeting is taken, the minimum
retention period be for the remainder of the current term of the
Council with retention beyond that period then determined by the
State Records Act 1997 and General Disposal Schedule 20.

The Code of Practice for Meeting Procedures be modified to
include the following:

S.REC RECORDING OF MEETINGS

(1) Public meetings of Council and Council Standing Committees
may be recorded to assist the Minute Secretary with
preparation of the minutes following the meeting. The
recording is not intended to be an enduring record of the
meeting: the minutes exist for that purpose.

(2) Any recording of a Council or Council Standing Committee
meeting will be retained for the remainder of the current term
of the council.

(3) Where a copy of any recording of a Council or Council
Standing Committee meeting is accessed/provided for a
purpose other than preparation of the minutes, the recording
will be retained within the City of Salisbury record keeping
system in accordance with the requirements of the State
Records Act 1997 with the retention period as determined by
the General Disposal Schedule 20.

To facilitate audio recording of meetings convened in locations
other than the Council Chamber, a mobile recording solution,
microphone and laptop allocated to the Governance Division, be
purchased or leased at an estimated purchase cost of up to $2,500.

The facilitation of an externally web-hosted video recording of
Council and committee meetings and associated publishing be
considered as part of the 2018/19 budget process.

CARRIED
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Minutes of the Resources and Governance Committee Meeting 16/10/2017

3.6.2 Amendments to Local Government Act and Regulations Mobile
Food Vans
Moved Cr D Pilkington
Seconded Cr L Caruso
1. This report be received and noted.
2. Staff provide a further report in January 2018 for Council to
consider adoption of a Mobile Food Vendors Policy.
With leave of the meeting and consent of the seconder, Cr D
Pilkington WITHDREW his MOTION.
Moved Mayor G Aldridge
Seconded Cr D Proleta
Cr D Proleta sought leave of the meeting to speak for a second time and
leave was granted.
1. This report be received and noted.
2. Staff provide a further report in December 2017 for Council to
consider adoption of a Mobile Food Vendors Policy.
CARRIED
3.6.3 Variations to Delegations
Moved Cr D Pilkington
Seconded Cr D Proleta
1. In exercise of the power contained in Section 44 of the Local
Government Act 1999 the powers and functions under the
following Acts contained in the proposed Instruments of
Delegation forming attachments to this report (Attachments 1 and
2, Item No. 3.6.3, Resources and Governance Committee,
16/10/2017), are hereby delegated from 30 October 2017 to the
person occupying the office of Chief Executive Officer, subject to
the conditions and/or limitations indicated herein or in the
Schedule of Conditions contained in the proposed Instruments of
Delegation as follows:
2.1 Natural Resources Management Act 2004
e Sections 135(1), 135(2), 135(16), 135(18), 147(2),
149(1), 149(2), 149(4), 150(1), 150(4) — Attachment 1
2.2 Environment Protection Act 1993
e Section 38(1), 38(3), 54C(2), — Attachment 2
2. Such powers and functions may be further delegated by the Chief
Executive Officer as the Chief Executive Officer sees fit and in
accordance with the relevant legislation unless otherwise indicated
in the conditions and/or limitations specified in the Delegations
Register.
CARRIED
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OTHER BUSINESS
Nil

The meeting closed at 7:43pm
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ITEM

3.0.1

RESOURCES AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 20 November 2017

HEADING Future Reports for the Resources and Governance Committee

AUTHOR Michelle Woods, Projects Officer Governance, CEO and
Governance

CITY PLAN LINKS 4.3 Have robust processes that support consistent service delivery
and informed decision making.

SUMMARY This item details reports to be presented to the Resources and
Governance Committee as a result of a previous Council resolution.
If reports have been deferred to a subsequent month, this will be
indicated, along with a reason for the deferral.

RECOMMENDATION

1.  The information be received.

ATTACHMENTS

There are no attachments to this report.

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 Historically, a list of resolutions requiring a future report to Council has been
presented to each committee for noting.

2. CONSULTATION / COMMUNICATION

2.1 Internal

2.1.1  Report authors and General Managers.

2.2 External
2.2.1 Nil.
City of Salisbury Page 9
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ITEM 3.0.1

3.  REPORT

3.1 The following table outlines the reports to be presented to the Resources and
Governance Committee as a result of a Council resolution:

Item 3.0.1

Meeting - Heading and Resolution Officer
Item
22/06/2015  Amendments to the Dog and Cat Management Act John Darzanos
332 3. Council note that staff will review the need for a cat
by-law 12 months after the implementation of the
proposed Bill and provide a further report to Council.
Due: July 2019
28/09/2015  Review of Provision of Elected Member IT Joy Rowett
Equipment
3.6.1 2. A revised Elected Member Allowances, Facilities and
Support Policy be brought back to Council in July 2018.
Due: July 2018
30/01/2017  Review of the Procurement Policy to incorporate use Matt Harris
of Australian Made steel for Council construction
projects
3.64 2. A review of the implications of the adoption of a
variation to the Procurement Policy to use to use
Australian made steel as set out in Part 1 (Item 3.6.4,
Resources and Governance Committee, 23/01/2017) be
undertaken in 12 months.
Due: January 2018
26/06/2017  Proposal to Amend the Australian Road Rules to John Darzanos
enable parking on Council verges
3.3.1 4. A report be presented to Council on the impact of the
changes set out in parts 1 to 3 (Item 3.3.1, Proposal to
Amend the Australian Road Rules to enable parking on
Council Verges, Council meeting 26/06/2017) to
existing Council’s policies.
Due: January 2018
28/08/2017  Provision of telephone for use in case of domestic Julie Douglas
violence/other emergency situations
NOM3 1. That, as part of the consideration of White Ribbon
Australia Workplace Accreditation (refer Council
resolution 1893/2017), staff investigate options and
costs associated with the establishment of a telephone(s)
located outside of council buildings which can be used
by people fleeing domestic violence or other
emergencies situations to obtain assistance from
relevant emergency service providers.
Due: January 2018
Page 10 City of Salisbury
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ITEM 3.0.1

23/10/2017
NOM4

Due:

Shopping Trolleys

1. That staff bring back a report on what options are
available for Council to collect shopping trolleys and
recoup costs from major retailers for dumped trolleys.

2. That staff advise what options are available for
issuing fines for dumping trolleys.

December 2017

John Darzanos

23/10/2017

3.6.1

Due:

Investigation of options for changes to audio
recording of Committee and Council meetings

5. The facilitation of an externally web-hosted video
recording of Council and committee meetings and
associated publishing be considered as part of the
2018/19 budget process.

February 2018

David Bevan &
Mick Petrovski

23/10/2017

3.6.2

Due:

Deferred to:

Reason:

Amendments to Local Government Act and
Regulations Mobile Food Vans

2. Staff provide a further report in December 2017 for
Council to consider adoption of a Mobile Food Vendors
Policy.

December 2017

February 2018

Following a request from the LGA to postpone the
commencement of new legislation governing food
trucks (mobile food vendors), the Government has
agreed to delay the start date to 1 March 2018.

Tim Starr

23/10/2017
Cnl-OB2

Due:

Safety in Parabanks Shopping Centre Carpark

1. That staff report on what current principles of
development control and other provisions within the
Development Plan, Building Code or Development Act
are in relation to enforcing conditions on shopping
centres to provide safe, light areas for shoppers, staff
including provision of CCTV.

December 2017

Chris Zafiropolous

4. CONCLUSION /PROPOSAL

4.1 Future reports for the Resources and Governance Committee have been reviewed
and are presented to Council for noting.

CO-ORDINATION

Officer: EXEC GROUP
Date: 13/11/2017
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ITEM 3.6.1

RESOURCES AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 20 November 2017

PREV REFS

HEADING Review of Burning Policy

AUTHOR John Darzanos, Manager Environmental Health & Safety, City
Development

CITY PLAN LINKS 4.4 To ensure informed and transparent decision-making that is

accountable and legally compliant

SUMMARY This report presents the Burning Policy to Council for

consideration and review with a recommendation that the Policy be
discontinued and replaced with an information sheet for burning in

the open.

RECOMMENDATION

1. The information be received.

2. The Burning Policy as set out in Attachment 1 to this report (Resources and
Governance 3.6.1, 20/11/2017), be discontinued and replaced with the City of Salisbury
Burning in the Open Information Sheet set out in Attachment 2 to this report.

ATTACHMENTS

This document should be read in conjunction with the following attachments:

1. Burning Policy

2. City of Salisbury Burning in the Open Information Sheet

1. BACKGROUND
1.1  Council’s Policy Framework provides for Council Policies to be reviewed within

12 months of a general election and thereafter every two years.
1.2 This Burning Policy was last reviewed and endorsed by Council in April 2015 and
is now due again for review. The Policy is attached to this report as Attachment 1.
2.  CONSULTATION / COMMUNICATION
2.1 Internal
2.1.1  Manager Field Services
2.1.2  Fire Prevention Officer
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Item 3.6.1

ITEM 3.6.1

3.  REPORT

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The Burning Policy is not required under legislation and does not provide any
legal obligations to Council or the community that is not covered by the existing
legislation.

It is intended that the policy be replaced with an information sheet that is designed
to inform and provide members of the community with a guiding document to
help understand and comply with the burning in the open requirements. The
Information Sheet is attached as Attachment 2.

The information sheet covers different scenarios of burning in the open, and what
can be burnt during the different times of the year, namely:

e within the fire danger season (usually 1st Dec — 30 Apr),
e on a total fire ban day, and
e the non-fire danger season (usually 1st May — 30 Nov).

It also provides examples of the controls under the Local Nuisance and Litter
Control Act 2016, in relation to burning activities and the creation of any nuisance
from smoke or odour.

In addition an application form for burning on non-domestic properties is included
for use in the information sheet to allow for applying to burn off agricultural
wastes.

4. CONCLUSION

4.1

As a result of the review of the policy it is recommended that it be discontinued
and replaced with the information sheet that summarises the legislative
requirements for burning in the open.

CO-ORDINATION

Officer: EXECUTIVE GROUP
Date: 13.11.17
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3.6.1 Burning Policy

.

CITY OF

Salisbury

Burning Policy

Policy Type: Policy
Approved By: Council Decision No: 1825, 2009/1482, 2011/469,
2013/1754, 2015/302

Approval Date: 24 October 2005 Most Recent Approval: 27 April 2015

Review Date: 27 April 2017 Internal Reference No.:

Department: City Infrastructure Division: Parks & Landscape

Function: 5 - Environmental | Responsible Officer: Manager, Parks & Landscape
Management

A - PREAMBLE

1. This policy details Council’s requirements for the issue of permits for lighting of fires in the open in
residential and non-residential areas within the City of Salisbury.

B -SCOPE
1. This Policy applies to all properties within the City of Salisbury Council boundaries.

C - POLICY PURPOSE/OBJECTIVES
1. The objective of this policy is to:
e Prevent or minimise air pollution emanating from burning in the open within the City of
Salisbury;
* Encourage recycling of green waste within the City of Salisbury;
* Minimise the potential for spread of bush/grass fires;

* Encourage a sustainable environment.

D - POLICY STATEMENT

1. This policy is to be read in conjunction with the Environment Protection (Burning) Policy 1994.

Fires in the Open on Non-Residential Premises:

1. A person must not cause or permit the burning of matter by a fire in the open on any non-residential
premises without written consent of the Council, except for:

* disposal of gaseous wastes;
e recreational purposes, including barbecuing, picnicking, scouting or similar outdoor
activities;
e instruction in methods of fire-fighting;
e the prevention and control of bushfires.
2. An application for consent must be in writing detailing:
e location of proposed fire;

City of Salisbury Page 15
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3.6.1 Burning Policy

* name of occupier/owner of property;

* reason for wishing to burn in the open;

o matter or class of matter to be burned;

* quantity of matter;

e period of time for which the consent is sought.

3. Where the Council gives consent, the consent must be in writing and be expressed to operate for such
periods and subject to such conditions as the Council considers necessary or desirable to control or
minimise air pollution from the land or premises concerned.

4. The requirements for consent should be restricted to the burning of prescribed pest plants, plants
infested with a prescribed pest or disease, agricultural/horticultural green waste that cannot be
recycled because of its large volume, or for ecologically accepted land management practices.

Fires in the Open on Residential Premises:

1. A person must not cause or permit the burning of matter by a fire in the open on any residential
premises, street, road or laneway, except for:
e any fire within a dwelling;
o any fire used principally for the preparation of food or beverages or the heating of a potable
liquid;
e the burning of charcoal within a brazier principally for the purpose of heating an area used
for outdoor entertainment;

® burning off by a person for the purpose of reducing the hazard of bushfires, provided that the
Council has permitted the burning-off by notice in writing.

Administration:
1. The administration of this policy is the responsibility of Council's Fire Prevention Officers.

2. Where an application for consent to burn is made to the Council, an application fee will be imposed
under section 188(1) (f) of the Local Government Act 1999.

E - LEGISLATION
1. Environment Protection Act 1993
2. Fire and Emergency Services Act 2005

F - REFERENCES
1. Environment Protection (Burning) Policy 1994

Document Control

Document 1D Burning Policy
Prepared by Mark Purdie
Release 4.0
Document Status Approved
Issue Date 01/05/2015
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3.6.1 City of Salisbury Burning in the Open Information Sheet

‘ gla'iisburv

Burning in the Open Information Sheet

Burning in the open and undertaking activities that involve fire, heat and the burning of
materials is a concern to community safety, due to the potential threat of bushfire and the
impacts of smoke and odour on air quality, amenity and health.

The Environmental Protection (Air Quality Policy) 2016 outlines the conditions and controls
that are imposed on burning in the open and seeks to improve the health and safety of
communities and the environment through improved air quality. In addition the Local
Nuisance and Litter Control Act 2016 provides for the control and abatement of local
nuisances which includes a nuisance caused by smoke, odour and fumes, all of which can be
created through activities involving fire, heat and the burning of materials.

A person must not cause or permit the burning of matter by a fire in the open on any
residential premises, street, road or laneway, except for:

any fire within a dwelling;
any fire used principally for the preparation of food or beverages or the heating of a
potable liquid;

» the burning of charcoal within a brazier principally for the purpose of heating an area
used for outdoor entertainment;

* burning off by a person for the purpose of reducing the hazard of bushfires, provided
that the Council has permitted the burning-off by notice in writing.

Further and most importantly is the threat of bushfire, which requires strict controls over
activities that involve fire, heat and the burning of materials. The following table lists the
restrictions during the Fire Danger Season and on Total Fire Ban days and provides
additional information relating to the specific controls for Non-Fire Danger Season and
under other applicable legislation and the City of Salisbury By-Laws.

Please refer to the following tables on the controls how these apply to you and what
restrictions are in place in your area, in or outside of these times. If you are unsure please
contact the City of Salisbury’s Fire Prevention Officer on 8406 8222.

TV AL CALICDIIDY _ 17 lamanre Chrant Calichiins £1N0  Dh. N 04ANZ 0777 L. ribemiealichiiniea ane an W ananar ealichiiniea ame s
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3.6.1 City of Salisbury Burning in the Open Information Sheet

Further Information

City of Salisbury
Web: www.salisbury.sa.gov.au

Phone: Fire Prevention Officer on 8406 8222.

CFS
Web: www.cfs.sa.gov.au

What Can | Do / What Can't | Do?
http://www.cfs.sa.gov.au/site/fire_bans_and_ratings/what _can i do_what cant i _do.jsp

CFS Code of Practice for wood fired pizza ovens -
http://www.cfs.sa.gov.au/public/download.jsp?id=64018

EPA
Web: www.epa.sa.gov.au

Burning in the open -
www.epa.sa.gov.au/environmental_info/air_quality/assistance_and_advice/burning-in-the-
open

Environment Protection (Air Quality) Policy) 2016 https://www.legislation.sa.gov.au

Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act
https://www.legislation.sa.gov.au
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3.6.1 City of Salisbury Burning in the Open Information Sheet

What Can | Do / What Can't | Do?

Can | use a fire for the preparation of food and beverages?
YES
Fire must be contained in a fire place, portable cooking appliance, or trench 30cm deep.

Clearance of 4m from flammable material.
Max size of 1 metre square.

Extinguishing agent on hand.

Fire supervised at all times.

Fire must be of size adequate for preparation of food or beverage. Dry wood, charcoal or dry plant
material may be used.
On a Total Fire Ban Day

Non-Fire Danger Season (usually 1st May — 30 Nov)
YES
As per “Within Fire Danger Season”

Other Legislation / Comments / Further Information

Even though a fire can be permitted for the purposes of cooking, you cannot create a condition that
causes Environmental Harm or a Local Nuisance.

Environment Protection (Air Quality)Policy
Clause 8—Environmental harm

For the purposes of section 5(1)(b) of the Act, the emission to the environment of ash or other
residual matter caused by burning a prohibited substance by fire in contravention of clause 7 is
declared to constitute environmental harm.

Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act 2016

Section 17—Meaning of local nuisance

(1) For the purposes of this Act, local nuisance is—

(a) any adverse effect on an amenity value of an area that—
(i) is caused by—

(A) noise, odour, smoke, fumes, aerosols or dust; or

and

(i) unreasonably interferes with or is likely to interfere unreasonably with the enjoyment of the area
by persons occupying a place within, or lawfully resorting to, the area;

Environment Protection (Air Quality) Policy) 2016 https://www.legislation.sa.gov.au
Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act - https://www.legislation.sa.gov.au
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3.6.1 City of Salisbury Burning in the Open Information Sheet

What Can | Do / What Can't | Do?

Can | burn-off on my property for fuel reduction and or bushfire management
purposes?

Within the Fire Danger Season (usually 1st Dec - 30 Apr)

NO

Unless you have obtained a Schedule 9 Permit from Council.

On a Total Fire Ban Day

NO

Unless you have obtained a Schedule 10 permit from Council.
Non-Fire Danger Season (usually 1st May — 30 Nov)

NO

Burn off is not permitted in any Council area without a permit

Other Legislation / Comments / Further Information

See, “How to apply for permit” below

For Schedule 9 and 10 Permits please contact Fire Prevention Officer

Can | burn grass clippings and agricultural wastes?

Within the Fire Danger Season (usually 1st Dec - 30 Apr)

NO

For any burning of rubbish or vegetation clippings, a Schedule 9 permit is required from your
Council.

On a Total Fire Ban Day

NO

Unless you have a Schedule 10 Permit from your Council.

The lighting of incinerators is banned during days of Total Fire Bans.

Non-Fire Danger Season (usually 1st May — 30 Nov)

YES

Permits can be issued for non-domestic properties.

However, burning of vegetation clippings is not permitted in any Residential Zone of the City of
Salisbury.

Other Legislation / Comments / Further Information

See, How to apply for permit” below

For Schedule 9 and 10 Permits please contact Fire Prevention Officer
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3.6.1 City of Salisbury Burning in the Open Information Sheet

What Can | Do / What Can't | Do?

Can | burn rubbish?

Within the Fire Danger Season (usually 1st Dec — 30 Apr)

On a Total Fire Ban Day

Non-Fire Danger Season (usually 1st May — 30 Nov)

NO
Permits will not be issued for burning of rubbish, including but not limited too plastic, tyres, treated

timber, liquid wastes, furnishings etc. These are prohibited under the Air Quality Policy.

Can | use a gas or electric barbecue?
Within the Fire Danger Season (usually 1st Dec — 30 Apr)
YES

Providing:
. The BBQ is clear of all flammable material to a distance of at least 4 metres;

. A person who is able to control the fire is present at the site of the fire until it is
extinguished;

. An appropriate extinguisher is at hand.

YES

A gas or electric barbecue can be used:

* within 15 metres of a domestic premises, OR
* 0n a coastal foreshore

Providing:

« The BBQ s clear of all flammable material to a distance of at least 4 metres;

» Aperson who is able to control the fire is present at the site of the fire until it is extinguished;
e An appropriate extinguisher is at hand.

Non-Fire Danger Season (usually 1st May — 30 Nov)

YES

Providing:

. The BBQ is clear of all flammable material to a distance of at least 4 metres;

. A person who is able to control the fire is present at the site of the fire until it is
extinguished;

. An appropriate extinguisher is at hand.

Other Legislation / Comments / Further Information

Council Reserves:

Under Council By-Laws a person must not without the permission of the Council, light a fire except in
a place provided by the Council for that purpose; or in a portable barbeque, as long as the barbeque
is used in an area that is clear of flammable material for a distance of at least 4 metres.

The use a kettle barbeque during fire danger season is not permitted
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3.6.1 City of Salisbury Burning in the Open Information Sheet

What Can | Do / What Can't | Do?

Can | use a Kettle BBQ?

Within the Fire Danger Season (usually 1st Dec — 30 Apr)

YES (other than Council Reserves)

Provided that:

« The BBQ s clear of all flammable material to a distance of at least 4 metres;

e A person who is able to control the fire is present at the site of the fire until it is extinguished;
» An appropriate extinguisher is at hand.

On a Total Fire Ban Day
NO

A solid fuel burning kettle BBQ (one that uses fuel such as wood, charcoal or heat beads) cannot be
used unless you obtain a Schedule 10 Permit from your Council.

A gas-fired kettle BBQ can be used if used within 15 metres of a domestic premises or on a coastal
foreshore, providing that:

The BBQ is clear of all flammable material to a distance of at least 4 metres;

A person who is able to control the fire is present at the site of the fire until it is extinguished;
An appropriate extinguisher is at hand.

Non-Fire Danger Season (usually 1st May — 30 Nov)

YES (other than Council Reserves)
Provided that:

» The BBQ s clear of all flammable material to a distance of at least 4 metres;
« A person who is able to control the fire is present at the site of the fire until it is extinguished;

An appropriate extinguisher is at hand.

Other Legislation / Comments / Further Information

Council Reserves:

Under Council By-Laws a person must not without the permission of the Council, light a fire except in
a place provided by the Council for that purpose; or in a portable barbeque, as long as the barbeque
is used in an area that is clear of flammable material for a distance of at least 4 metres.

The use a kettle barbeque during fire danger season is not permitted under Council By-Laws

The use of Kettle or solid fuel BBQ's is also subject to the following:
EP(AQ)Policy, Clause 8—Environmental harm, and
Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act 2016, Section 17—Meaning of local nuisance

See, “How to apply for permit” below

For Schedule 9 and 10 Permits please contact Fire Prevention Officer
Environment Protection (Air Quality) Policy) 2016 https://www.legislation.sa.gov.au

Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act - https://www.legislation.sa.gov.au
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What Can | Do / What Can't | Do?

Can | use a pizza oven?
Within the Fire Danger Season (usually 1st Dec — 30 Apr)

YES

Provided it is a gas or electric - see above for barbeques.
If wood fired, it must comply with CFS Code of Practice for wood fired pizza ovens or obtain a
Schedule 9 Permit from Council.

On a Total Fire Ban Day

NO
Unless it is gas or electric - see above for barbeques - or you have obtained a Schedule 10 Permit
from your Council

Non-Fire Danger Season (usually 1st May — 30 Nov)

YES
Provided it is a gas or electric - see above for barbeques.

If wood fired, it must comply with CFS Code of Practice for wood fired pizza ovens or fire must be
contained in a fire place, portable cooking appliance, and

Clearance of 4m from flammable material.
Extinguishing agent on hand.
Fire supervised at all times.

Other Legislation / Comments / Further Information

Council Reserves:

Under Council By-Laws a person must not without the permission of the Council, light a fire except in
a place provided by the Council for that purpose; or in a portable barbeque, as long as the barbeque
is used in an area that is clear of flammable material for a distance of at least 4 metres.

The use a kettle barbeque during fire danger season is not permitted under Council By-Laws

The use of pizza oven or solid fuel BBQ's is also subject to the following:
EP(AQ)Policy, Clause 8—Environmental harm, and
Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act 2016, Section 17—Meaning of local nuisance

See, “How to apply for permit” below

For Schedule 9 and 10 Permits please contact Fire Prevention Officer
Environment Protection (Air Quality) Policy) 2016 https://www.legislation.sa.gov.au
Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act - https://www.legislation.sa.gov.au
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What Can | Do / What Can't | Do?

Can | have a campfire, bonfire or light a fire for warmth or comfort?
Within the Fire Danger Season (usually 1st Dec — 30 Apr)
NO

Within the City of Salisbury open campfires and bonfires are not permitted. Comfort heating must
be in a chiminea and only charcoal used.

Please note that only charceoal is allowed to be burnt for comfort fires within a metropolitan area or
within township boundaries by the EPA Legislation. Check with Council before lighting a comfort fire.

On a Total Fire Ban Day
NO

Unless you have a Schedule 10 Permit from your Council.

Non-Fire Danger Season (usually 1st May = 30 Nov)
NO

Within the City of Salisbury open campfires and bonfires are not permitted. Comfort heating must
be in a chiminea and only charcoal used.

Please note that only charcoal is allowed to be burnt for comfort fires within a metropolitan area or
within township boundaries by the EPA Legislation. Check with Council before lighting a comfort fire.

Even though a fire can be permitted for heat and comfort you cannot create a condition that causes
Environmental Harm or a Local Nuisance.

Other Legislation / Comments / Further Information
EP(AQ)Policy Clause 8—Environmental harm
Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act 2016, Section 17—Meaning of local nuisance

See, “How to apply for permit” below

For Schedule 9 and 10 Permits please contact Fire Prevention Officer

Environment Protection (Air Quality) Policy) 2016 https://www.legislation.sa.gov.au
Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act - https://www.legislation.sa.gov.au
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How to Apply for a Burning Permit
Environment Protection (Burning) Policy 1994

1. An application for a permit can be in writing, via email, in person or over the phone

detailing:

e |ocation of proposed fire;

» name of occupier/owner of property and contact details including phone numbers;

e reason for wishing to burn in the open;

e matter or class of matter to be burned;

* guantity of matter;

e period of time for which the consent is sought, and

s payment of permit application fee
(Note: Payment of permit application fee is required prior to your application being
processed)

* payment of permit application fee (non-refundable) The application fee is set under
section 188(1) (f) of the Local Government Act 1999

e payment does not imply permission, formal written consent and a permit will be
issued upon approval

2. A person must not cause or permit the burning of matter by a fire in the open on any
non-residential premises without written consent (permit) of the Council, except for:
o disposal of gaseous wastes;
o recreational purposes, including barbecuing, picnicking, scouting or similar outdoor
e activities;
* instruction in methods of fire-fighting;
¢ the prevention and control of bushfires.

3. Where the Council grants consent (permit), the permit must be in writing and be
expressed to operate for such periods and subject to such conditions as the Council
considers necessary or desirable to control or minimise fire risks and air pollution from
the land or premises concerned.

4. The requirements for consent should be restricted to the burning of prescribed pest
plants, plants infested with a prescribed pest or disease, agricultural/horticultural green
waste that cannot be recycled because of its large volume, or for ecologically accepted
land management practices.

5. For Schedule 9 and Schedule 10 Permits under the Fire and Emergency Services Act 2005
please contact the Fire Prevention Officer on 84068222
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AN
~

S bur APPLICATION FOR A PERMIT
Isbury FOR BURNING ON NON DOMESTIC PREMISES

City of Salisbury

P O Box 8
SALISBURY SA 5108

Attention: Fire Prevention Officer

Applicant

I (full name)

Of (address)

Phone: Wk: Mobile:

Email:

Location of Proposed Fire

Site Address:

Name of Responsible Person(s) to be at site to control and completely extinguish fire:

Responsible Person(s) Phone: Wk: Mobile:

Proposed Fire Details

Hereby make application to the City of Salisbury for a permit for burning on non domestic

premises for the following purpose (describe reason for fire):

Items/materials or class of materials to be burned:

Quantity of materials:

Period of time consent is sought, from: / / to: /

Application Fee: $31.00

Permit subject to conditions as specified over page:
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City of Salisbury Burning in the Open Information Sheet

THE ISSUING OF A PERMIT IS SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS:

1.

w

The premises and materials must be inspected by a Fire Prevention Officer prior
to permits being issued.

A permit does not authorise a person to light or maintain a fire contrary to the
terms of a total fire ban.

Permits will not be issued during the fire danger season.

4. Burning shall only be conducted between the hours of 10.00am and 3.00pm

®NowW

10.

11

13,

14,

15,

16.

17.

Monday to Saturday. The fire shall be completely extinguished except between
those times.

Burning is not permitted to be conducted on Sundays and Public Holidays.

No Burning shall be within 4 metres of flammable material.

Adequate supply of water is to be available to extinguish the fire.

That a sufficient number of responsible persons to contain the fire must be
present at the site of the fire from the time the fire is lit to the time it is
completely extinguished.

Burning shall only be conducted so as not to cause nuisance to other properties
and in such a manner to minimize the emission of smoke.

Only dry vegetation may be burned

. Only light and maintain one small pile at a time.
12.

Compliance with CFS Vegetation Pile Burning and CFS Broad Acre Burning Code
of Practices

Any other specific conditions for each permit as identified by Fire Prevention
Officer

If a permit is issued you must;

(a) notify the Council on 84068222, and the Country Fire Service 0413940184

prior to lighting the fire.
(b) keep your permit with you while the fire is burning in the event of
inspections.

Non observance of any condition may result in the permit being revoked and may

incur a fine of $300 or category B offence.
A permit may be revoked by an authorised officer (Fire Prevention Officer) or by
the Chief Officer—

(a) if the permit holder fails to comply with a condition of the permit; or

(b) if the authorised officer or Chief Officer considers that sufficient reasons

exist to justify the revocation of the permit.

The fact that the holder of a permit has complied with the conditions of the
permit does not of itself relieve the holder from liability for any loss or damage
caused by a fire lit under the authority of a permit.

Applicants Signature Date

City of Salisbury
Resources and Governance Committee Agenda - 20 November 2017
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ITEM 3.6.2

RESOURCES AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 20 November 2017

PREV REFS

HEADING Review of Elected Members Induction Policy

AUTHOR Joy Rowett, Governance Coordinator, CEO and Governance

CITY PLAN LINKS 4.4 To ensure informed and transparent decision-making that is
accountable and legally compliant

SUMMARY This report presents the Elected Members Induction Policy to
Council for consideration and endorsement. The Policy has been
reviewed by the Policy Owner and only minor changes are
required.

RECOMMENDATION
1. The Information be received.

2. The Elected Members Induction Policy as set out in Attachment 1 to this report
(Resources and Governance 3.6.2, 20/11/2017), be endorsed.

ATTACHMENTS
This document should be read in conjunction with the following attachments:

1.  Elected Members Induction Policy

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 Council’s Policy Framework provides for Council Policies to be reviewed within
12 months of a general election and thereafter every two years.

1.2 The Elected Members Induction Policy was last endorsed by Council in
November 2015 and is now due for review.

2. CONSULTATION / COMMUNICATION
2.1 Internal

2.1.1 Consultation with the Manager, Governance has occurred as to the
continuing relevance of the Policy and any changes that may be required.

2.2 External
2.2.1 Nil
3. REPORT

3.1 The Elected Members Induction Policy has been reviewed by the Policy Owner.
Apart from minor editorial changes, no changes of substance are required.
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ITEM 3.6.2

4. CONCLUSION /PROPOSAL

4.1 The Elected Members Induction Policy as contained within Attachment 1 is
recommended to Council for endorsement.

CO-ORDINATION

Officer: Executive Group MG
Date:
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3.6.2 Elected Members Induction Policy

N

CITY OF

Salisbury

Elected Members Induction Policy

Policy Type: Policy

Approved By: Council Decision No: 2011/262, 2013/1611, 2015/751
| Approval Date: 26 July 2010 Last Reapproval Date: 23 Nevember 204520

November 2017
| Review Date: e b Internal Reference No.:
2047November 2019
Department: CEO and Governance Division: Governance
Function: 9 - Governance Responsible Officer: Manager, Governance

A - PREAMBLE

1. All positions on an elected Council become vacant at the end of each four year term of office.
The vacant positions are filled at a periodic election and the newly Elected Members form a new
Council.

2. The process of establishing the new Council, ensuring Elected Members are able to fulfil their
roles appropriately and building a positive team relationship with senior staff can be
substantially enhanced through a structured induction program.

B - SCOPE
1. This policy applies to Elected Members.

2. This policy complements the City of Salisbury's Elected Members Training and Development
Policy which deals with Council's overall commitment to the training and professional
development of Elected Members and which incorporates the new requirements for Council
Members to undertake mandatory training within the first year of election to office, which
complies with the LGA Training Standards as defined in regulation 8AA of the Local
Government (General) Regulations 2013.

3. This Induction Policy provides a focus for the introduction and provision of information and
training during the first six months following a periodic election.

C - POLICY PRINCIPLES

1. The following principles reflect good induction:

o Bach Elected Member has a personal responsibility to actively seek development
opportunities in order to appropriately fulfil his/her role and better represent constituents
and the community of the City of Salisbury.

e  All Elected Members are expected to actively participate in the Induction Program of the
Council; and
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e Information provided in Induction sessions will be supported by written materials provided

to Elected Members electronically, and available in hard copy on request.

D - DEFINITIONS

1. For the purpose of this policy induction is defined as the work done with the newly elected
Council, the individual Members of the Council and staff members of the Council over the first
six months of the new Council in order to prepare them to capably perform their different roles.
Orientation, providing new and newly elected Members with an understanding of the

environment they will work within, is one aspect of induction.

E - POLICY STATEMENT

1. An Induction Program will be designed by the Chief Executive Officer, in consultation with the
Mayor and the proposed program presented to the outgoing Council for endorsement prior to

the general election. The program content will include the following elements:

¢ Relationship Building: information and opportunities to ensure the development of
positive, professional working relationships between Elected Members and senior staff

(Chief Executive Officer, General Managers and Divisional Managers)

* Roles and Responsibilities: information and opportunities to enhance understanding of the
separate, but complementary, roles of the Council as a whole, individual Elected Members,
the Chief Executive Officer and council staff.

o Conduct of Elected Members and Procedure at Meetings: information and appropriate
resource materials on legislative requirements dealing with conduct of Elected Members (for
example: Conflict of Interest, Registers of Interests and Code of Conduct) and procedure of

meetings.

* Values and Behaviours: information related to Elected Members Code of Conduct, values
and behaviours. Will also include information on organisational values and behaviours,

e Strategic Directions: information and briefings relating to the City of Salisbury strategic
directions, key policy areas and ongoing projects, including details of the City Plan 2020:

Sustainable Futures.

¢ Orientation: primarily intended for first time Elected Members this will provide
information on operations of the City of Salisbury, administrative information relevant to
Elected Members and other information to assist them with their appointment as an Elected

Member.

F - LEGISLATION

1. Local Government Act 1999 Section 80A: Training and Development

G - REFERENCES

1. Elected Members Training and Development Policy

Document Control
Document ID

Elected Members Induction Policy

Prepared by Joy Rowett
| Release 45.00
Document Status Draft

Date Printed
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ITEM 3.6.3

RESOURCES AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 20 November 2017

PREV REFS

HEADING Review of Elected Member Recognition Policy

AUTHOR Joy Rowett, Governance Coordinator, CEO and Governance

CITY PLAN LINKS 4.4 To ensure informed and transparent decision-making that is
accountable and legally compliant

SUMMARY This report presents the Elected Member Recognition Policy to
Council for consideration and endorsement. The Policy has been
reviewed by the Policy Owner and only minor editorial changes are
required.

RECOMMENDATION
1. The Information be received.

2. The Elected Member Recognition Policy as set out in Attachment 1 to this report
(Resources and Governance 3.6.3, 20/11/2017), be endorsed.

ATTACHMENTS
This document should be read in conjunction with the following attachments:

1.  Elected Member Recognition Policy

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 Council’s Policy Framework provides for Council Policies to be reviewed within
12 months of a general election and thereafter every two years.

1.2 The Elected Member Recognition Policy was last endorsed by Council in
November 2015 and is now due for review.
2.  CONSULTATION / COMMUNICATION
2.1 Internal

2.1.1 Consultation with the Manager, Governance has occurred as to the
continuing relevance of the Policy and any changes that may be required.

2.2 External
2.2.1 Nil
3. REPORT

3.1 The Elected Member Recognition Policy has been reviewed by the Policy Owner.
Apart from minor editorial changes with respect to changes in practice, no
changes of substance are proposed by staff in the content of the Policy.
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4. CONCLUSION /PROPOSAL

4.1 The Elected Member Recognition Policy as contained within Attachment 1 is
recommended to Council for endorsement.

CO-ORDINATION

Officer: Executive Group MG
Date:

Page 34 City of Salisbury
Resources and Governance Committee Agenda - 20 November 2017



3.63 Elected Member Recognition Policy

.

CITY OF

Salisbury

Elected Member Recognition Policy

Policy Type: Policy

Approved By: Council Decision No: 2011/729, 2012/813, 2014/2397,
2014/2473, 2015/0746

Approval Date: 28 November 2011 Last Reapproval Date: S Nephes 200500
November 2017

Review Date: 23 November 20172019 Internal Reference No.:

Department: CEO and Governance Division: Governance

Function: 9 - Governance Responsible Officer: Manager, Governance

PREAMBLE

1. This Policy has been developed to provide a consistent and equitable approach to formally
and officially recognise the contribution of long serving Elected Members to the City of
Salisbury.

2. This policy establishes service recognition in addition to the recognition program operated
by the LGA for 10, 15, 20, 25, 30, 35 and 40 years of service.

3. This Policy authorises the Mayor to bestow tributes to Elected Members in the event of
illness/accident or bereavement.

SCOPE

4. This Policy covers all recognition that is extended to Elected Members who currently
serve or have served the City of Salisbury.

POLICY PURPOSE/OBJECTIVES

5. The purpose of this policy is to specify the circumstances in which to acknowledge the
services of current or retiring Elected Members, or Elected Members who have passed
away, so that they are appropriately recognised for their contributions.

DEFINITIONS

6.  Eligible Member:  means an Elected Member with at least three terms of continuous
service with the City of Salisbury.

7. Immediate Family: for the purposes of this Policy, ‘immediate family’ means spouse,
children; parents; and siblings.

8. Memorvial: an object or a landscaped feature designed to preserve the memory of
a person, event or place.

9.  Monument: an enduring physical object created in memory of a person or event
or place.
| Page 1 of 3 13/11/201747446/2017
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POLICY STATEMENT

10. In addition to the Certificates issued by the Local Government Association, the Eligible
Member will be presented at a Council meeting, the following acknowledgement of
continuous years of service:

e 12 years: Framed Certificate of Service

e 20 years: Framed Certificate of Service and Gift chosen by the Mayor to the value
of $200.

e 30 years: Plaque of the Council Crest and engraved plate identifying the name of
the Elected Member and years to service to Council. Gift chosen by the
Mayor to the value of $350.

11. Members achieving the 20 vyear milestone will also have their names included on a
“Service Recognition Honour Board” in the Civic Centre Foyer.

12.  All presentations will be made by the Mayor at a normal meeting of Council and recorded
in the minutes of the meeting.

13.  Elected Members who have passed away and who have been closely associated with the
Council and its history, are to be acknowledged and recognised for their contribution to
the City of Salisbury in the form of the following:

A sympathy (condolence) card or a personal note to the immediate family signed by
the Mayor and/or CEO on behalf of Council and staff;

* The publication of a notice in a local or state based newspaper on the death of a
current or former Elected Member;

» A floral tribute where this form of sympathy is considered acceptable. Where
appropriate, the provision of a floral tribute may be substituted by a donation to a
charity nominated by the immediate family of the person who has passed away.

14.  For those Elected Members who have served 20 or more years with the City of Salisbury,
and have made exceptional and significant contributions to Civic or Community matters,
Council may give consideration, on a case by case basis, to one of the following forms of
recognition:

e naming of a road (in accordance with the City of Salisbury’s Naming of Roads
Policy) and/or;

» naming of a park or reserve and/or;
* construction of artwork, memorial or monument and/or;
»  other form of acknowledgement

once they no longer hold the position of Elected Member.

15.  Outgoing Elected Members at the conclusion of an Elected Members term with Council,
whether it is through resignation, or not successfully gaining a position following an
Election, will be recognised by presentation of a Framed Certificate of Service by the
Mayor with:

e Details of length of service
e Membership of Council Committees

e  Membership on external Committees

Page 2 of 3 13/11/201 743482047
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16. The Mayor is further authorised to acknowledge Elected Members or their immediate
family (via card, flowers or small gift) in the event of hospitalisation or accident.

17.  Pursuant to Section 79 of the Local Government Act 1999, details of any benefits paid or
payable to, or provided for the benefit of an Elected Member by Council will be recorded
in the Register of Allowances and Benefits.

18.  Expenditure for gifts, certificates will be sourced from within the Civic Budget Area.
Where artwork, a monument or memorial is to be installed, and there are insufficient
funds within the existing budget to cover the costs, a new initiative bid must be submitted.

LEGISLATION
19.  Local Government Act 1999

REFERENCES

20. Local Government Awards — LGA
21. Plaques and Memorials Policy — City of Salisbury
22.  Naming of Roads Policy — City of Salisbury

Document Control

Document ID Elected Member Recognition Policy
Prepared by Joy Rowett

| Release 134.00

| [Document Status Draft
Date Printed
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ITEM

DATE

HEADING

AUTHOR

CITY PLAN LINKS

SUMMARY

RECOMMENDATION

3.6.4
RESOURCES AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
20 November 2017

Updated Elected Member Allowances, Facilities and Support
Policy

Michelle Woods, Projects Officer Governance, CEO and
Governance

4.3 Have robust processes that support consistent service delivery
and informed decision making.

Clause E6 of the Elected Member Allowances, Facilities and
Support Policy requires Clause 4 of Schedule 2 and all of Schedule
3 to be reviewed annually. This report addresses that requirement.

1.  The Elected Member Allowances, Facilities and Support Policy as attached to Item
3.6.4, Resources and Governance, 20/11/2017 be endorsed.

ATTACHMENTS

This document should be read in conjunction with the following attachments:

1.  Elected Members Allowances, Facilities and Support Policy

1. BACKGROUND

1.1

1.2

Section 78 of the Local Government Act 1999 allows for the provision of
facilities and support to Elected Members to “assist the members in performing or
discharging official functions and duties”.

Section 78(2) states that the provision of facilities and services is at the discretion
of the Council subject to complying with the following requirements:

(a) The council must specifically resolve that the provision of the facilities or
services is necessary or expedient to the performance or discharge of
official functions or duties;

(b) Facilities and services must be available to members on a uniform basis
(other than facilities or services specifically provided for the benefit of the
principal member),;

(c) Any property provided to a member remains the council’s.
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1.3

1.4

1.5

Section 78(3) specifies:

“A member of a council must not use a facility or service provided by the council
under this section for a purpose unrelated to the performance or discharge of
official functions or duties (unless the use has been approved by the council and
the member has agreed to reimburse the council for any additional costs or
expenses associated with this use).

Council has adopted an Elected Member Allowances, Facilities and Support
Policy which sets out:

o Elected Member allowances as determined by the Remuneration Tribunal in
Determination No. 7 of 2014: Members of Local Government Councils (as
varied from time to time)

o the expenses that may be reimbursed to Elected Members, as provided for
within the Local Government (Members Allowances and Benefits)
Regulations 2010, and

. facilities and other support available to all Elected Members as determined
by Council.

Clause E6 of the policy specifies:

‘Elected Member reimbursements, facilities and support, as detailed in Schedule 2
and 3 attached to this Policy, will be reviewed annually.’

2.  CONSULTATION / COMMUNICATION

2.1 Internal
2.1.1 Nil.

2.2 External
2.2.1 Nil.

3.  REPORT

3.1 Allowances detailed in Schedule 1 have been updated to reflect the annual
adjustment in accordance with the Remuneration Tribunal Determination No. 7 of
2014: Members of Local Government Councils (as varied from time to time).

3.2 As advised in paragraph 1.5, there are certain elements of the Elected Member
Allowances, Facilities and Support Policy that can be modified by Council.

3.3 Text highlighted in yellow on the attachment (clause 4. of Schedule 2 and all of
Schedule 3) are at Councils discretion and can be modified if required.

3.4 Any facilities/support accessed under the Elected Member Allowances, Facilities
and Support Policy will be recorded in the Allowances and Benefits Register, in
accordance with the requirements of section 79 of the Local Government Act
1999.

3.5 Clause 2b) of Schedule 2 has been amended to reflect the announcement by the
Australian Tax Office that separate vehicle reimbursement rates based on the size
of the engine are no longer available from 1 July 2015.
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3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

As advised to Elected Members on 6 July 2017 (via email), under the revised
method, individuals use 66 cents per kilometre for all motor vehicles for the 2016-
17 and 2017-18 income years when seeking reimbursement for vehicle use.

Clause 1 of Schedule 3 has been modified to reflect the process of Elected
Members utilizing the personalised Letterhead Template in Word. Members can
then choose how they use the blank paper issued to them, whether it be for
correspondence (using the template) or other requirements when letterhead paper
is not appropriate.

On 24 November 2016 the Local Government (General) Variation Regulations
2016 (‘the Variation Regulations’) commenced.

In addition to changes relating to the holding of informal gatherings and
discussions, the Variation Regulations amend the General Regulations by
expanding the definition of ‘ordinary business’ for the purpose of Sections 74(6)
and 75A(6) of the Local Government Act in relation to conflicts of interest.

Of relevance to this report, regulation 8AAA of the General Regulations has been
replaced and now includes as ‘ordinary business’:

e the preparation, discussion, adoption or revision of a policy relating to
allowances and benefits payable equally to each member.

Consequently, Elected Members are not required to declare a conflict of interest
for this item as the matter now falls within ‘ordinary business’.

However, the Mayor will continue to be required to declare a conflict of interest
for this item as she receives ‘benefits’ under the policy in additional to those
provided to other Elected Members, specifically paragraph 3 of Schedule 3.

In accordance with Resolution 0617/2015, a review of the provision of Elected
Member IT equipment is scheduled to be presented to Council in July 2018.

4. CONCLUSION /PROPOSAL

4.1

Elected Members are asked to consider the attached Elected Member Allowances,
Facilities and Support Policy and determine if any changes are required, noting
that no change can be made to allowances payable to Elected Members as these
are determined by the Remuneration Tribunal.

CO-ORDINATION

Officer: Executive Group MG
Date: 20/11/2017
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3.6.4 Elected Members Allowances, Facilities and Support Policy

A

CITY OF

Salisbury

Elected Member Allowances, Facilities and Support Policy

Policy Type: Policy

Approved By: Council Decision No: 0753/2015, 1516/2016
Approval Date: 24 November 2014 Last Reapproval Date: 19 December 2016
Review Date: November 2017 Internal Reference No.:

Department: CEO and Governance Division: Governance
Function: 9 - Governance Responsible Officer: Manager, Governance

A - PREAMBLE

1. The City of Salisbury seeks to ensure that the payment of Elected Member allowances and the
reimbursement of expenses is accountable, transparent and in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1999, Remuneration Tribunal Determination No. 7 of 2014: Members of Local Government
Couneils and the Local Government (Members Allowances and Benefits) Regulations 2010,

2. Allowances, reimbursements, facilities and support are provided to Elected Members to enable them to
effectively perform or discharge official functions and duties.

B - SCOPE
1. This policy applies to all Elected Members.

C - POLICY PURPOSE/OBJECTIVES
1. This policy sets out:

* [Clected Member allowances as determined by the Remuneration Tribunal in Determination No. 7 of
2014: Members of Local Government Councils;

s the expenses that may be reimbursed to Elected Members, as provided for within the Local
Government (Members Allowances and Benefits) Regulations 20110, and

s facilities and other support available to all Elected Members as determined by Council.

D - DEFINITIONS
1. Eligible journey — means a journey (in either direction) between the principal place of residence, or a
place of work, of a member of the council, and the place of a prescribed meeting.

2. Prescribed meeting — in rclation to a member of a council, means a meeting of the council or council
committee, or an informal gathering, discussion, workshop, briefing, training course or similar activity
which is directly or closely related to the performance or discharge of the roles or duties of the member.

3. Prescribed reimbursements — are those reimbursements provided for within Section 77 of the Local
Government Act 1999 (and supporting Regulations).

4. Facilities and support — facilities and other forms of support made available to Elected Members in
accordance with Section 78 of the Local Government Act 1999,
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Elected Members Allowances, Facilities and Support Policy

E -
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2.

3
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G-

1.
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H-
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POLICY STATEMENT
Elected Members shall be provided with reimbursements, facilities or support that are necessary or
expedient to the performance or discharge of official functions or duties.

In support of this philosophy Elected Members are provided with a range of reimbursements, facilities
and support on the following basis:

e All facilities and support are made available to Elected Members on a uniform basis (other than
facilities or services specifically provided for the benefit of the (Mayor).

e Any property provided to an Elected Member in accordance with this policy remains the property of
Council.

* Reimbursements will be restricted to prescribed reimbursements (travel and child care related)
unless otherwise approved within this Policy or specifically approved by way of Council resolution.

»  All reimbursements claimed by Elected Members must be for expenses actually and necessarily
incurred. Requests for reimbursement must be received within the financial year relevant to the
expense incurred and must include full details of the nature of the expense, be supported by
evidence of the expense and accompanied by the relevant request for reimbursement form.

Section 77(1)(b) of the Local Government Act allows for the provision of further reimbursement of
expenses, subject to the approval of council. Schedule 2 of this Policy provides full details relating to
reimbursements that may be made to Elected Members.

As required by section 79 of the Local Government Act 1999, the Chief Executive Officer will ensure a
record of the allowances paid, expenses reimbursed or any other benefits paid or provided to a member
is maintained (Register of Allowances and Benefits).

Elected Member Allowances are prescribed by Remuneration Tribunal Determination No. 7 of 2014:
Members of Local Government Couneils and will be adjusted in accordance with that Determination on
an annual basis.

Elected Member reimbursements, facilities and support, as detailed in Schedule 2 and 3 attached to this

Policy, will be reviewed annually.

LEGISLATION

Local Government Act 1999, sections 76, 77 and 78
Local Government (Members Allowances and Benefits) Regulations 2011
Remuneration Tribunal Determination No. 7 of 2014: Members of Local Government Councils

REFERENCES

Schedule 1 — Elected Member Allowances
Schedule 2 — Approved Reimbursements
Schedule 3 - Additional Facilities and Support

ASSOCIATED PROCEDURES

Register of Elected Members Allowances and Benefits - City of Salisbury
Reimbursement Form - City of Salisbury

Document Control

Document 1D Elected Member Allowances, Facilities and Support Policy
Prepared by Tami Norman
Release 1.00
Document Status Final
| 'Date Printed 08/11/2017, — 1z 06/11/2017
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3.6.4 Elected Members Allowances, Facilities and Support Policy

Schedule 1 — Elected Member Allowances

1. Elected Member Allowances are determined by the Remuneration Tribunal and set out in Determination
No. 7 of 2014: Members of Local Government Councils. In summary, this Determination provides the

following allowances for City of Salisbury Elected Members:

Councillor; $22.414 per annum
(effective 7/1 1/2017)

Mayor: $89,656 per annum
(effective 7/1 1/2017)

Deputy Mayor: $28,018 per annum

(effective 71 1/2017)

Chairman of Standing Committees

$28,018 per annum

(effective 7/1 1/2017)
Sitting fee payable to a Councillor $209 per meeting
(other than the principal member or limited to an

deputy principle member, chairperson
or deputy chairperson or a presiding

aggregate amount of
$1.251 per annum

member of a prescribed committee) (effective 7/1 1/2017)
who is the presiding member ofa
committee, that is not a prescribed
committee, such as a sub-committee,
2. The allowances prescribed in Determination No. 7 of 2014 are operative for all council members from the

first ordinary meeting of the Council held after the conclusion of the 2014 Local Government elections.

3. In accordance with section 76(9) and 76(15) of the Local Government Act, allowances set out in
Determination No. 7 of 2014: Allowances for Members of Local Government Councils will be adjusted
annually on the first, second and third anniversary of the 2014 local government election to reflect
changes in the Consumer Price Index, where the Consumer Price Index is defined as the “Consumer Price
Index (All groups index for Adelaide)” published by the Australian Bureau of Statistics™ (section 76(15)
Local Government Act 1999).
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3.6.4 Elected Members Allowances, Facilities and Support Policy

Schedule 2 - Reimbursement of Expenses

1. In accordance with the requirements of section 77 of the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local
Government (Members Allowances and Benefits) Regulations 2010 the kinds of expenses for which an
Elected Member will be reimbursed are as follows:

a) Travelling expenses actually and necessarily incurred by the member in travelling to or from a
prescribed meeting if —
(1) The journey is an eligible journey; and
(11) The journey is by the shortest or most practicable route;
b) Expenses for the care of -
(i) A child of the member; or
(ii} A dependant of the member requiring full time care

actually and necessarily incurred by the member as a consequence of the member’s attendance at
a prescribed meeting.

2. [n relation to reimbursement of travelling expenses:

a) Ifan eligible journey relates to travel between a place within the area of the council and a place
outside the area of the council (in either direction) the member is only entitled to be reimbursed in
respect of expenses that can be attributed to travel within the area of the council (unless the travel
relates to an activity specified in clause 4 below).

b) The rate of reimbursement for motor vehicle costs will be at a rate equal to the appropriate rate per
kilometre, prescribed for the purposes of calculated deductions for car expenses as detailed on the
Australian Taxation Office website.

Deleted: (defermined aceording
the engine capacity of the vehicle

Deleted: under section 2825 o
Tiecame Tax Assessment Act 1930
the Commonwealth

¢} Travel by taxi, bus or other means of public transport is reimbursed on the basis of expenses
“actually and necessarily incurred”, but is limited to ‘eligible journeys’ as defined in this Policy.

3 In relation to reimbursement of care expenses:

a) A member of council is not entitled to be reimbursed if the care is provided by a person who
ordinarily resides with the member,

4. Council has also determined that reimbursement will be available for travel to and from the following
meetings (both within and outside the Council area) and care costs associated with attendance at the
following meetings (subject to the limitations set out in clause 2 above):

s  Sub Committee meetings

s [nformal Strategy

*  Working Groups supported by Council

*  Regional Subsidiary meetings when a member is appointed by Council

*  Annual Christmas Dinner

*  Civic receptions

*  External Committees where an Elected Member is appointed by Council

*  Activitics where an Elected Member is representing the Mayor on behalf of Council
+  Conferences and Training

5. As provided under section 77(1)(b) of the Local Gavernment Act 1999, reimbursement of travel
expenses associated with attendance at meetings that are not included in the above list may be
approved by Council on a case by case basis.
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3.6.4 Elected Members Allowances, Facilities and Support Policy

Schedule 3 — Additional Facilities and Support

1. To facilitate the performance and discharge of official functions and duties Council has resolved to
make available to Elected Members the following facilities and support:
* A suitable laptop or desktop computer
e  Tablet (eg Apple iPad)

s A suitable multifunction device (printer, scanner and fax) with up to 16 sets of printer cartridges
per Council tern.

o Either a broadband internet connection or reimbursement to the value of Couneil provided
broadband internet connection (capped at $60 per month)

s Upto four (4) reams of paper per annun »“ Ouotad: itk the Boctod Mer
*  Envelopes —up to 1500 per Elected Member per annum required

¢  Business cards —up to 500 per Elected Member per annum

e With Compliments Slips - up to 500 per Elected Member per annum.

2. Where quantities of items are provided on a “per annum™ basis these amounts apply for a financial
year period (that is, from 1 July until 30 June). During an election year, a pro-rata quantity is
determined following the conclusion of the election.

3. Inaddition to the additional facilities and support provided to Elected Members, Council has resolved
to make available to the Mayor the following facilities and support to assist in the performance of the
Mayor’s official functions and duties:

s  Fully maintained motor vehicle

* A mobile phone and hands free car kit
o Office space

e Access to a Personal Assistant
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ITEM 3.6.5

RESOURCES AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 20 November 2017

HEADING Formal Meeting Schedule for 2018

AUTHOR Michelle Woods, Projects Officer Governance, CEO and
Governance

CITY PLAN LINKS 4.3 Have robust processes that support consistent service delivery

and informed decision making.

SUMMARY This report provides information with respect to the proposed
formal meeting schedule for 2018 and seeks Council’s
endorsement.
RECOMMENDATION
1.  The 2018 Formal Meeting Schedule as set out in Attachment 1 to this report (Item
3.6.5, Resources and Governance Committee, 20/11/2017) be endorsed.

2. The Chief Executive Officer be delegated authority to amend the 2018 Formal Meeting
Schedule should the need arise.

ATTACHMENTS

This document should be read in conjunction with the following attachments:

1.  Draft 2018 Formal Meeting Schedule
2. Variations to Formal Meeting Schedule Delegations
1. BACKGROUND

1.1 A requirement of the Local Government Act 1999 (‘the Act”) is that Council must
determine the time and place of ordinary meetings of Council.

1.2 Section 81(1) & (2) of the Act provides that ordinary meetings of Council shall be
held at times and places appointed by the Council, but there must be at least one
in each month.

2.  CONSULTATION / COMMUNICATION

2.1 Internal

2.1.1  This report has been prepared in consultation with the Manager
Governance.

2.2 External
2.2.1 Nil.
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ITEM 3.6.5

3.  REPORT

3.1 The following committee structure currently exists:

S

CITY OF

Salisbury
\l 'WHOLE OF COUNCIL \L \L i iV \L

AUDIT
COMMITTEE

SPORT,
POLICY & BUDGET & WORKS & RESOURCES & RECREATION & CEO REVIEW
PLANNING GOVERNANCE
FINANCE SERVICES GRANTS
Community \ ( Finance Community Development ( Community \
Development Centres and Control Admin Grants
Financial Youth
Economic Sustainability Health, Animal Phoebe
Development Community Management and Wanganeen
Long Term Health and By-Laws Indigenous
Urban Financial Plan Wellbeing Scholarship
Development External Applications
Annual Plan and Libraries Relations
Environmental Budget Sport,
Sustainability Landscaping Corporate Recreation and
Budget Review Management Open Space
Strategic Asset Property
Management Rating Matters Corporate Youth
Public Works Governance Sponsorship
Subsidiaries Business Units Applications
Traffic
Corporate Management
Planning
Waste
\ j \ j k Management j \_ / \ j

SUB COMMITTEES AS REQUIRED

3.2 There are no changes proposed to the meeting cycle that has taken place for 2017.
The table below sets out the cycle based on the above committee structure:

Week 1 Week 2 Week 3 Week 4
Mon « Informal Sports, Recreation & | « Standing « Council
Strategy Grants Committee Committees
o Sub Committees as
required
Tues o Other o Sub Committees as « CAP
workshops if/as required
required « Audit Committee
(every 3 months)

3.3 In the event that a scheduled meeting falls on a public holiday, the meeting will be

held on the following day.
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34

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

Sub Committees may determine their own meeting location and times. This must
be done in consultation with Governance to ensure all legislative meeting
notification requirements are met and to allow consideration of the endorsed
meeting schedule, meeting room availability and other resource requirements
when determining meeting times.

As required under the Informal Gatherings Policy, a separate schedule has been
prepared for informal meetings and workshops. This schedule includes Informal
Strategy and Budget Workshops. This is communicated to Elected Members
separately and published on our website on a weekly basis.

It should be noted that, historically, meetings in December are held one week
earlier to accommodate Christmas and one week later in January to accommodate
the New Year.

It is expected the schedule for November next year will be modified due to Local
Government elections being held. It is likely there will only be a Council Meeting
to enable the new Council to be sworn into office and the Standing Committee
structure endorsed, along with other essential items of business such as
appointments to positions of Deputy Mayor and Standing Committee Chairman.

The Chief Executive Officer has been delegated authority to amend the meeting
schedule (refer Attachment 2).

4. CONCLUSION / PROPOSAL

4.1

A proposed meeting schedule for 2018, based on the meeting structure outlined
above is provided in Attachment 1 to this report for consideration.

CO-ORDINATION

Officer: Exec Group MG
Date: 13/11/2017 08/11/2017
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3.6.5 Draft 2018 Formal Meeting Schedule

e

2018 Formal Meeting Schedule

Salisbury
Month Meetings Date Time
Sport, Recreation & Grants Committee | Mon 15 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Mon 15 | At concl of SR&G
Sub-Committees as required Tues 16 6.30pm
Policy & Planning Committee Mon 22 6.30pm
JAN Budget & Finance Committee Mon 22 | At concl of P&P
Works & Services Mon 22 | At concl of B&F
Resources & Governance Committee Mon 22 | At concl of B&F
Council Assessment Panel (CAP) Tues 23 6.00pm
Council Mon 29 6:30pm
Sport, Recreation & Grants Committee | Mon 12 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Mon 12 | At concl of SR&G
Audit Committee Tues 13 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Tues 13 6.30pm
FEB Policy & Planning Committee Mon 19 6.30pm
Budget & Finance Committee Mon 19 | At concl of P&P
Works & Services Mon 19 | At concl of B&F
Resources & Governance Committee Mon 19 | At concl of B&F
Council Mon 26 6.30pm
Council Assessment Panel (CAP) Tues 27 6.00pm
Sport, Recreation & Grants Committee | Tues 13 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Tues 13 | Atconcl of SR&G
Sub-Committees as required Wed 14 6.30pm
Policy & Planning Committee Mon 19 6.30pm
MAR Budget & Finance Committee Mon 19 | At concl of P&P
Works & Services Mon 19 | At concl of B&F
Resources & Governance Committee Mon 19 [ At concl of B&F
Council Mon 26 6.30pm
Council Assessment Panel (CAP) Tues 27 6.00pm
Sport, Recreation & Grants Committee Mon 9 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Mon9 | At conclof SR&G
Audit Committee Tues 10 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Tues 10 6.30pm
APR Policy & Planning Committee Mon 16 6.30pm
Budget & Finance Committee Mon 16 | At concl of P&P
Works & Services Mon 16 | At concl of B&F
Resources & Governance Committee | Mon 16 | At concl of B&F
Council Mon 23 6:30pm
Council Assessment Panel (CAP) Tues 24 6.00pm
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Item 3.6.5 - Attachment 1 - Draft 2018 Formal Meeting Schedule

3.6.5 Draft 2018 Formal Meeting Schedule
_— 2018 Formal Meeting Schedule
Salisbury
Month Meetings Date Time
Sport, Recreation & Grants Committee | Mon 14 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Mon 14 | At concl of SR&G
Sub-Committees as required Tues 15 6.30pm
Policy & Planning Committee Mon 21 6.30pm
MAY Budget & Finance Committee Mon 21 | Atconcl of P&P
Works & Services Mon 21 | At concl of B&F
Resources & Governance Commitiee Mon 21 | At concl of B&F
Council Mon 28 6.30pm
Council Assessment Panel (CAP) Tues 29 6.00pm
Budget & Finance Committee Mon 4 7.00pm
Sport, Recreation & Grants Committee | Tues 12 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Tues 12 | At concl of SR&G
Sub-Committees as required Wed 13 6.30pm
JUN Policy & Planning Committee Mon 18 6.30pm
Works & Services Mon 18 | At concl of B&F
Resources & Governance Commitiee Mon 18 | At concl of B&F
Council Mon 25 6.30pm
Council Assessment Panel (CAP) Tues 26 6.00pm
Sport, Recreation & Grants Committee Mon 9 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Mon9 | Atconclof SR&G
Audit Committee Tues 10 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Tues 10 6.30pm
JUL Policy & Planning Committee Mon 16 6.30pm
Budget & Finance Committee Mon 16 | At concl of P&P
Works & Services Mon 16 | At concl of B&F
Resources & Governance Committee Mon 16 | At concl of B&F
Council Mon 23 7.00pm
Council Assessment Panel (CAP) Tues 24 6.00pm
Sport, Recreation & Grants Committee Mon 13 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Mon 13 | Atconcl of SR&G
Sub-Committees as required Tues 14 6.30pm
Policy & Planning Committee Mon 20 6.30pm
AUG Budget & Finance Committee Mon 20 | At concl of P&P
Works & Services Mon 20 | At concl of B&F
Resources & Governance Committee Mon 20 | At concl of B&F
Council Mon 27 6.30pm
Council Assessment Panel (CAP) Tues 28 6.00pm
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~“.. 2018 Formal Meeting Schedule

Salisbury
Month Meetings Date Time
Sport, Recreation & Grants Committee | Mon 10 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Mon 10 | At concl of SR&G
Sub-Committees as required Tues 11 6.30pm
Policy & Planning Committee Mon 17 6.30pm
SEP Budget & Finance Committee Mon 17 | At concl of P&P
Works & Services Mon 17 | At concl of B&F
Resources & Governance Committee Mon 17 | At concl of B&F
Council Mon 24 6.30pm
Council Assessment Panel (CAP) Tues 25 6.00pm
Sport, Recreation & Grants Committee Mon 8 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Mon 8 | Atconcl of SR&G
Audit Committee Tues 9 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Tues 9 6.30pm
ocT Policy & Planning Committee Mon 15 6.30pm
Budget & Finance Committee Mon 15 | At concl of P&P
Works & Services Mon 15 | At concl of B&F
Resources & Governance Committee Mon 15 | At concl of B&F
Council Mon 22 6.30pm
Council Assessment Panel (CAP) Tues 23 6.00pm

No sub committee or committee meetings will be held in
November 2018 due to Local Government elections.
A Council Meeting will take place to deal with procedural
issues relating to the election only.

Item 3.6.5 - Attachment 1 - Draft 2018 Formal Meeting Schedule

Council tha 6.30pm
Sport, Recreation & Grants Committee Mon 3 6.30pm
Sub-Committees as required Mon 3 | Atconclof SR&G
Sub-Committees as required Tues 4 6.30pm
Policy & Planning Committee Mon 10 6.30pm
DEC Budget & Finance Committee Mon 10 | At concl of P&P
Works & Services Mon 10 | At concl of B&F
Resources & Governance Committee Mon 10 | Atconcl of B&F
Council Mon 17 6.30pm
Council Assessment Panel (CAP) Tues 18 6.00pm
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3.6.5 Variations to Formal Meeting Schedule Delegations

City of Salisbury 589 Delegations Register

1. Delegation of Authority
D. COUNCIL

COUNCIL POLICY

Variations to Formal Meeting Schedule

The Chief Executive Officer be delegated authorityto ® 000174 Chief Executive Officer -
6474  amend the 2018 Formal Meeting Schedule should
the need arise.

A condition on the exercise of this delegation be that ® 000174 Chief Executive Officer - not
6476  advice be given to elected members as soon as to be sub delegated -

practicable when a need for change is determined

and no later than three clear business days before

the relevant meeting(s).

In the event that changes to the Formal Meeting ® (000174 Chief Executive Officer - not
6475  Schedule are made, the Chief Executive Officer to be sub delegated -

ensure that appropriate advice of any changes is

provided to Elected Members and public notification

of changed meeting details is made via the Notice of

Meetings.

Last reviewed on 23/10/2017 Printed as at 6/11/2017

City of Salisbury Page 57
Resources and Governance Committee Agenda - 20 November 2017






ITEM 3.6.6

RESOURCES AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

DATE 20 November 2017

HEADING Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

AUTHOR Craig Treloar, Team Leader, Corporate Communications, Business
Excellence

CITY PLAN LINKS 4.4 Embed long term thinking, planning and innovation across the
organisation.
4.2 Develop strong capability and commitment to continually
improve Council’s performance.
3.4 Be a proud, accessible and welcoming community.

SUMMARY The Annual Report is a legislative document required following
each financial year to highlight the achievements and financial
statements of the City of Salisbury. This is the first developed
under the new City Plan 2030 and features KPIs, a showcase of
works based on Council’s Objectives, financial statements and
annual reports from Council subsidiaries.

RECOMMENDATION

1. That the Draft 2016/17 Annual Report forming attachment 1 to Item Number 3.6.6 of
the Resource and Governance Committee agenda dated 20 November 2017 be
endorsed, subject to any amendments by Council and the inclusion of Mayor and CEO
messages.

ATTACHMENTS
This document should be read in conjunction with the following attachments:
1.  Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 The Draft 2016/17 Annual Report reflects the performance and achievements
made by Council during the past financial year under the key directions of
Prosperous City, Sustainable City, Liveable City and Enabling Excellence as
outlined in the City of Salisbury’s Strategic Management Plan the ‘City Plan
2030°.

1.1.1 The Draft 2016/17 Annual Report presented is primarily complete with a
message from the Mayor and CEO to be added. The messages will reflect
the content of the document.

1.1.2  In view of sustainable practices, the final version of the Annual Report
will be available on the Council website for download or print. A small
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ITEM 3.6.6

print run of 10 copies will be arranged for distribution to required
legislative authorities, as well as each Elected Member receiving a
printed copy.

2.  CITY PLAN CRITICAL ACTION

2.1 NA

3. CONSULTATION / COMMUNICATION
3.1 Internal

3.1.1 Governance, Business Excellence, Executive Group

4. REPORT
4.1 Attached for endorsement is the Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

4.2 Tt is a legislative requirement that Council’s endorsed Annual Report be received
by both Houses of Parliament no later than 31 December 2017.

4.3 The City of Salisbury’s Financial Statements included in the Draft 2016/17
Annual Report were endorsed by the Audit Committee at the 10 October 2017
meeting.

5. CONCLUSION / PROPOSAL

5.1 Council endorse the Draft 2016/17 Annual Report, subject to the inclusion of any
amendments and the inclusion of Mayor and CEO messages.

CO-ORDINATION

Officer: Executive Group
Date: 13/11/2017
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

CITY OF

Salisbury
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

City of Salisbury
12 James Street
Salisbury 5108
South Australia
PO Box 8
Salisbury SA 5108

Telephone
08 8406 8222
TTY 08 8406 8596

(For people with
hearing impairment)

Facsimile 08 8406 5466
Email A

city@salisbury.sa.gov.au

ﬂ Jcityofsalisbury
S ecityofsalisbury

www.salisbury.sa.gov.au

A
~

CITY OF

Salisbury

© 2017
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

To be updated

Gillian Aldridge, Mayor A

p e

4 CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 1o/17
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

"

To be updated

A

John Harry, Chief Executive Officer

e

CITY OF SALISBURY ANMNUAL REPORT 16,17 5
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

City Plan 2030 is our blueprint for achievi isi Key infrastructure projects, our environmental assets,

you helped us develop: Salisbury - a
opportunity for all.

for those who live, work, play and study in our City.

This Plan was developed with a great deal of commu
input. Achieving our vision for the City will require

Council, the community and our partners to work as one.
We recognise that we are facing challenges in the future,
and that we need to move beyond a "business as usual”
approach in order to meet these challenges. we are seeki

The Plan is visionary and broad ranging. It provides
practical strategies and actions to build on our existing

assets and make the most of opportunities that have P %
the potential to be transformative for not only the City

of Salisbury, but the northern Adelaide region more Salisbury
broadly.

economic strengths and the liveability of this City
provide us with immense opportunities that will benefit
the entire community. We have a diverse population
that brings with it a wealth of knowledge and an
entrepreneurial spirit that needs to be encouraged.

face challenging but very exciting times. We need

nd innovative leaders. We need to think and
hip. We need to take pride in and promote
nd what we are working towards. This
ective effort to achieve the outcomes
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report
- - ’ - - - -
The City of Salisbury’s City Plan 2030 contains four key directions. Each
direction includes a statement of what we want to aspire to achieve,
how we will achieve it e indicators to monitor our progress.
[ ]
mmmmm The Prosperous City — m— The Sustainable City  m—
Driving economic growth in South Australia, A place where people actively experience and
creating more jobs, providing people with the care for their natural environment, where green
skills and knowledge to connect to those jobs and industries thrive and our urban and natural spaces
sustainably increasing our population. are adaptive to future changes in climate.
I The Liveable City N BN Enabling Exellence I
A welcoming community that celebrates its A Council where people work because they can
diversity, embraces change and where people are make a difference, an organisation that anticipates,
able to participate in community life. It is a City understands  and meets community needs, a
with interesting places and experiences. Council with a positive attitude.
7 CITY OF SAUSBURY ANNUAL REPORT 16,17
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report
Our vision for Salisbu ply:
/ - - - - ,
Salisbury - A flourish th opportunity for all
If we are able to capture these opportunities, the that celebrates its diversity and provides
community will see: portnities for all to engage in community life
regardlessof ability; and
Increased investment and a wider range of job
opportunities A transp rk that enables people to
move gasily around the City and supports freight
Well designed and maintained neighbourhoods and maovemnent.
places that are inclusive and accessible
Salisbury brands itself as the Living City. It has unique
A strong economy consisting of well established leat_ures that make it appealing for residents, visitors and
businesses and innovative entrepreneurs businesses.
A broader range of education options and more A Living City is a city that is flourishing and provides
people engaged in learning opportunity for our residents, businesses and visitors
through investment in its future, by valuing our stunning
More opportunities to use technology in the way they natural environments, by providing a great lifestyle,
work, study, relax and interact with Council encouraging and supporting a vibrant innovative culture,
' ! is a destination for business and is a diverse and proud
A healthy natural environment enjoyed by more community.
eople
Peop Salisbury is a Living City. A place we are proud to be part
New communities and a regeneration of existing EBJISaIISbury 's “a flourishing City with opportunity for
urban areas :
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Looking ahead to 2017/18

The City of Salisbury’s 2017 /18 Annual Plan is maintaining
all existing services while also expanding investment

in the areas that matter to our community, in particular
provision of and access to community spaces within the
City, streetscapes, verge maintenance, flood management,
and recreation and sporting facilities.

The Annual Plan contains 556 million in Gross
Infrastructure Investment ensuring Salisbury continues to
be a great destination that is inviting and inspiring. This
investment has been factored into our Long Term Financial
Plan to ensure we maintain and improve our $1.6 billion
worth of assets in a sustainable manner with stable
increases in rates as a result.

Itincludes commencement of the Salisbury City Centre
Community Hub, which is a major element of our ongoing
Salisbury City Centre Revitalisation. The Hub will bring
together a range of community, civic and learning services
within one vibrant, adaptable and multi-functional
building.

The Hub will provide modern spaces for
use and have state-of-the-art technolo
improve how we work and engage with Ol Cof
Construction is planned to start in 2018 following
comprehensive design process that involves co
and stakeholder input and subject to Council approval
December 2017

More than $14 million has been allocated to Asset
Renewal in 2017 /18 including $8.8 million towards
road resealing, reconstruction and kerb replacement,
approximately 51.6 million for building renewal, $1.4
million for drainage works, and $1.4 million for park and
playground upgrades.

The 2017 /18 Annual Plan includes an average rate
increase of 3%, which equates to a $41 increase on the
average residential rate. Council is forecasting a $3.8
million surplus, which includes one-off road funding of
$1.1 million.

Features of the 2017/18 Budget

Major works are being undertaken alongside the existing
Para Hills Library and Positive Ageing Centre creating a
new Para Hills Community Hub. The Hub is strategically
located within walking distance of the Para Hills
Neighbourhood Shopping Centre and Para Hills schools.
It will offer business, cultural, education and recreational
opportunities and feature well-equipped facilities, a
multi-function space for up to 120 people, and spaces
for events, exhibitions and workshops. The Paddocks
Community Centre (excluding the netball clubrooms) will
be decommissioned.

The Salisbury Oval Precinct has a major role to play in

10 CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 16/17

the ongoing Salisbury City Centre Revitalisation including
encouraging private and public sector investment, and
supporting the community’s recreation and sporting
needs. In 2017/18 Council is upgrading the existing
grandstand, CCTV network, fencing and stormwater
infrastructure. Options are also being considered for the
future construction of a new indoor training facility subject
to future external funding opportunities.

The Local Flooding Program has been increased in
2017 /18 in response to significant storm events in
2016,/17. This funding provides for the design and
construction of localised minor flood mitigation works,
mainly as a result of flooding reports.

Budget highlights:

City Centre Community Hub $27 million ($37 million
net project)

+ Salisbury Oval Precinct $1.7 million ($3 million
project)

Para Hills Community Hub $2.3 million ($4.4 million
project)

Autism Friendly Playspace $0.45 million (dependent
on grant funding)

-8 Local Flooding and Flood Mitigation Projects $1.2
million

ewal Program $8.8 million

+ Park and playground upgrades $1.4 million

Additional verge maintenance 50.4 million

How Do We Set Rates?

Setting rates is a balance between needing to fund

Council operations, maintain our financial sustainability
and the need to contain increases to minimise the impact
on ratepayers. Council is mindful of the impact and
affordability of rates and reqularly compares our rates with
those of other metropolitan councils.

The first step we take in setting rates is to remove the
impact of the average market increase /decrease in
property values for the year. What this means is that if
property values go up 15 per cent in a year, we adjust our
calculations down to remove this impact. Then we apply
the increase we need to fund our activities for the coming
year.
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For 2017/18 Council has determined an average increase Key services
of 3 per cent.
Significant factors placing pressure on the budget include:
Declining Federal Assistance Grant
Depreciation associated with new infrastructure R AR E 1,607 142 1465
. . Development Management 2953 1,187 1766
Mandatory rates rebates for Community Housing — Iljlannin L m—— —
Associations 9 ‘ ‘
Roads 4,369 3,742 627
+ Increase in State Government EPA Levy e i 1,549 i Il
TOTAL THE
Increase in energy costs
Water Management 4,631 2,669 1,962
Rate (ategorles / leferentlal Waste Management 15,492 1,479 14,013
. Parks and landscape 18,926 88 18,838
Rating City Infrastructure <07 (1,107)
TOTAL THE SUSTAINABLE CITY [ 39,049] 5343] 33,706
Minimum Rates - apply to all properties where the value
falls below a certain level so that all ratepayers make a _
fair contribution. The minimum rate will incre Communily Development 1,900 7 1902
5958 to 5987 for 2017 /18. Recrealion Centres 1,700 - 1,700
Community Sport and Club Facilities 2,074 = 2,074
Differential Rating - different rates may B P Library Services 5,340 604 4736
different categories of property called ‘land™8 Communily Centres 2,062 294 1,768
determined by the Valugr Generall. A loading is Community Health and Wellbeing 4940 2,940 2,000
con'!merc_ial and industrial pru_pertles and to vacant la etery 595 511 8
Residential and other properties pay the base rate. d and Health Regulation 1142 146 996
) ) _ ) ) Bylaws Control 627 329 298
The differential for vacant land is 30 per cent higher which g 1640 1178 462
reflects Council’s desire to promote the development of ’?59 ’ —
large land holdings in the city. :
Separate Rates - Council collects rates for three distinct
purposes:
Corporate Services
+  Salisbury City Centre Busines§ Association to enable it Governance -
to market and promote the city centre sundry 3224
Globe Derby C ity Club t il i Infrastructure Depreciation 22,339
obe Derby Community Club to maintain an area o TOTAL ENABLING EXCELLENCE
common land belonging to 63 shares —— (&S0
Capital Works and Project Preparalion 2,107
Natural Resources Management (NRM) Levy is a State Corporate Unallocated 5,081
Government imposed tax, which councils are required Corporate Governance Qverhead 3,798 - 3798
to collect on behalf of the State Government with Rale Revenue - 93989 (93,989)
all _funds going to the State Government. The Ci_ty_of JRPLUS /(DEFICIT)
Salisbury supports the Local Government Association
of South Australia’s efforts to lobby the State
Government for the cessation of the current collection
method. All enquiries or concerns about the NRM Levy
should be directed to the Adelaide and Mount Lofty
Ranges NRM Board on 08 8273 9100 or www.nrm.
sa.gov.au.
These separate rates are paid to the respective entities.
CITY OF SALISBURY ANMUAL REPORT 16,17 11
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MAYOR : : EAST WARD

Gillian Aldridge JP © {r Dawid Balaza Cr Betty Gill Cr Joe Caruso Cr Damien Pilkington
 DgpitySWhayor :
DO 1 Noveber 2075)

LEVELS WARD

-

Cr David Bryant Cr Shiralee Reardon JP ©(r Steve White Cr Beau Brug ¢ (rLinda Caruso
: {From 22 May 2017) %

SOUTH WARD

Cr Robyn Cook (r Riccardo Zahra ©Cr Sean Bedford Cr Julie Woodman P ¢ (1 thad Buchanan Jp r Donna Proleta
; : Deputy Mayor
{Novemder 2076 to June 2077}

LEVELS WARD

(1 Brad Vermeer
(T 3 February 2017)
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North Ward

West Ward

East Ward

Levels Ward

Hills ward

. Central Ward
. Para Ward

South Ward
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Elected Members
(July 2016 - June 2017)

Mayor:

Central Ward:

Fast Ward :

South Ward:

Hills Ward :

Para Ward:

Morth Ward:

Levels Ward:

West Ward:

Gillian Aldridge

Cr David Balaza
(Deputy Mayor, July 2016 to
November 2016)

Cr Betty Gill

Cr Joe Caruso

Cr Damien Pilki

Cr Sean Bedford

Cr Julie Woodman
Cr Shiralee Reardon
Cr David Bryant

Cr Riccardo Zahra
Cr Robyn Cook

Cr Linda Caruso

Cr Graham Reynolds

Cr Brad Vermeer
(to 3 February 2017)

Cr Beau Brug (from 22 May 2017)
Cr Steve White
Cr Chad Buchanan

Cr Donna Proleta
(Deputy Mayor, November 2016 to
June 2017)

14 CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 10/17

salisbury 17 92,635 5449
Playford 16 58,415 3650
West Torrens 15 40,663 2710
Charles Sturt 17 82,203 4835
Port
Adelaide/ 18 81,801 4544
Enfield

arion 3 63,598 4892
0 a 2 121,366 5779
G‘:ﬁly 13 72,676 5590
rg:ge ! 14 47,408 3437

1 Data supplied by the Local Government Association.

2 Including the mayor

3 Representation quota for a council is an amount ascertained by dividing the
number of electors for the area of the council (as at the last closing date under
the Local Government (Elections) Act 1999) by the number of members who
constitute the council {ignoring any fractions resulting from the division and
expressed as a quota). Local Government Act 1999, Schedule 4.

4 Based on 19 metropolitan councils, including the City of Adelaide
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COUNCIL

Elector Representation

The community of Salisbury is currently represented

on Council by a Mayor who is elected from the whole
community, and 16 Elected Members. Elected Members
represent ane of eight wards, and are elected by the
residents of their ward.

In accordance with Section 12 of the Local Government
Act 1999, Council is required to conduct an Elector
Representation Review at least once in every eight years.
The City of Salisbury conducted a Representation Review
in 2016,/2017, in readiness for the November 2018 Local
Government Elections. The Representation Review will
result in changes to the number of wards and,Elected

publish an appropriate notice in the Governme@t Ga
(on a date specified by the Electoral Commissioner)
which will effectively provide for the implementatiofyof
the proposed (certified) future composition and struct
of Council at the November 2018 Local Government
elections.

No public initiated submissions under section 28 of
the Local Government Act 1999 have been received in
2016/17.

The representation quota for the City of Salisbury, that is
the number of electors represented by each Councillor,
is shown in the table on the adjacent page. Comparative
data for other major metropolitan Councils in Adelaide
has also been included’.

Elector Member Allowances

Changes to the Local Government Act in 2010 resulted
in the Remuneration Tribunal being responsible for the
determination of Elected Member Allowances to be
applied from the first Council Meeting following the
November 2010 Elections. Elected Member allowances
were reviewed by the Remuneration Tribunal in
Determination No. 7 of 2014, which resulted in an
increase to allowances for City of Salisbury Elected
Members plus the introduction of a new allowance for a
sub-committee chairman as follows:

Councillor $22,008 per annum
Mayor $88,032 per annum
Deputy Mayor $27180 per annum

Chairman of Standing Committees  $27,510 per annum

Sitting fee payable to a Coundillor ~ $205 per meeting
(other than the principal member limited to an

or deputy principle member, aggregate amount
chairperson or deputy chairperson of $1,229

or a presiding member of a per annum

prescribed committee) who

is the presiding member of

a committee, that is not a
prescribed committee, such as
a sub-committee.

In accordance with section 76(9) and 76(15) of the Local
Government Act, allowances set out in Determination
No. 7 of 2014: Members of Local Government Councils
will be adjusted annually on the first, second and third
anniversary of the 2014 local government election to
reflect changes in the Consumer Price Index, where the

sumer Price Index is defined as “the Consumer Price
| groups index for Adelaide) published by the

ces to assist in the representation of
their commugity and conducting Council business. This
includes pple iPad, laptop computer and printer,
broadband internet access, stationery and business
cards. The Mayor has access to a personal assistant

and is provided with a mobile phone and car. The
Elected Members Allowances, Facilities and Support
Policy provides full details of resources (including
reimbursement of expenses) provided to Elected
Members.

provided with

CITY OF SALISBURY ANMNUAL REPORT 16,17 il
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COUNCIL

Council and Committee Structure from July 2016 to June 2017

Council is supported in its decision making process by six Standing Committees: Policy & Planning; Budget & Finance;
Works & Services; Resources & Governance; Sport, Recreation & Grants; and Audit Committee. The Sport, Recreation &
Grants Committee meet on the second Monday of the month and the remaining standing committees meet on the third
Monday of each month. The Audit Committee meets on a quarterly basis.

The CEO Review Committee has also been established by Council and meets at a minimum twice per year or as required.

Council has also established a Development Assessment Panel (DAP) as an independent Committee comprising of

experts external to Council as well as Elected Members, which meet as required.

The Mayor is, ex officio, a member of the Works & Services Committee, Resources & Governance Committee and the

Sports, Recreation & Grants Committee. The Committee structure and membership is set out below:

I

16

A

CITY OF

Salisbury

Community Community Development
Development Centres and Control Admin

Economic Youth Health, Animal
Development Community Management

Urban Health and and By-Laws

Development Wellbeing External
Environmental Libraries Relations
Sustainability Landscaping Corporate
Strategic Asset Property Management
Management Public Works Corporate
Subsidiaries Traffic Governance

Corporate Management

\ Planning J Waste
\f\nm it y k J

OTHER COMMITTEES & SUB-COMMITTEES AS REQUIRED

CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 10/17

Finance
Financial
Sustainabili
Long Te
Financial Plan
Annual Plan
and Budget
Budget Review
Rating Matters
Business Units

|

SUB COMMITTEES AS REQUIRED

Community
Event
Sponsorship
Grants
Community
Grants

Phoebe
Wanganeen
Indigenous
Scholarship
Applications
Sport,
Recreation and
Open Space
Youth
Sponsorship
Applications
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COUNCIL

Membership of each of the Committees in 2016/17:

Policy and Planning Committee Cr Riccardo Zahra (Chairman from December 2016)

+  (rlinda Caruso (Chairman until November 2016) +  (rSean Bedford (Deputy Chairman until December
Cr Damien Pilkington (Chairman from December 2016)
2016) - (r Elizabeth Gill (Deputy Chairman from January
Cr Shiralee Reardon (Deputy Chairman until 2017)

December 2016) All members of Council

Cr Julie Woodman (Deputy Chairman from January
2017)

* Al members of Council sport’s Recreation and Grants Committee

Cr Donna Proleta (Chairman until December 2016) -

West Ward
Works and Services Committee +  Crlinda Caruso (Chairman from January 2017) -
Cr Julie Woodman (Chairman until Novepiligr 2016) - North Ward
South Ward Cr David Bryant (Deputy Chairman until - December

2016) - Hills ward

Cr Julie Woodman (Deputy Chairman from January
2017) - South Ward

Cr David Balaza - Central Ward

Cr Graham Reynolds (Chairman frg
2016)- North Ward

Cr Joe Caruso (Deputy Chairman until Dece
2016) - East Ward

+  (r Shiralee Reardon (Deputy Chairman from January
2017) - Hills ward

Cr Chad Buchanan - West Ward
Cr Elizabeth Gill - Central ward
-+ (r Steve White - Levels Ward
Cr Riccardo Zahra - Para Ward
+  The Mayor is, ex-officio, a member of this Committee

(r Beau Brug - Levels Ward (From 22 May 2017)
Cr Damien Pilkington - East Ward
Vermeer - Levels Ward (Resigned 3 February

Audit Committee

Resources and Governance Committee

- Cr Brad Yermeer (Chairman until November 2016) -
Levels Ward (Resigned 3 February 2017)

Cr Sean Bedford (Chairman from December 2016) -
South Ward

+  Cr Robyn Cook - (Deputy Chairman) - Para Ward
+  (r David Balaza - Central Ward
+  Cr David Bryant - Hills Ward
Cr Beau Brug - Levels Ward (from 22 May 2017)
Cr Linda Caruso - North Ward
+  Cr Damien Pilkington - East Ward
Cr Donna Proleta - West Ward
The mayor is, ex-officio, a member of this Committee

Budget and Finance Committee

+  Cr Damien Pilkington (Chairman until November
2016)

Mr Peter Brass (Chairman)

Mr Craig Johnson (Deputy Chairman)
Ms Kristen Briggs

(r Joe Caruso

Cr Graham Reynolds

Development Assessment Panel
From July 2016 to June 2017

Mr Doug Wallace (Presiding Member)
Mr Ross Bateup

Ms Stephanie Johnston

Mr John Watson

Cr Graham Reynolds

Cr Linda Caruso

Cr Steve White

CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPGRT 16,17
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Open and transparent decision-making

The City continues to ensure its commitment to open and transparent decision making through minimising the number
of decisions it takes in confidence.

In 2016/17 a total of 546 items were considered by Council and Committees. Of these, 44 were confidential.

2003/04 34 6.30%
2004/05 20 4.00%
2005/06 1 0.20%
2006/07 1 0.20%
2007/08 6 1.00%
2008/09 4 0.80%
2009/10 5 119%
2010/1 12 2.15%
2011/12 14 2.33%
2012/13 2.54%
2013/14 5.61%
2014/15 38 6.59%
2015/16 55 9.56%
2016/17 44 8.05%

—_

0f the 44 items where members of the public were excluded; r of thig, documents presented remained

confidential after discussion in confidence had taken place.

The following table is a summary of the number of occasions that the prggiSions listed in Section 90 (excluding the
public during debate) OR Section 91 (documents to be kept confidential for a period of time) were used during the
2016/2017 financial year.

CEO Performance Review

July 2016 8.21 Committon @ 1 1
July 2016 1101 g:gﬁ?:epla""i"g (b) 1 1
july 2016 1102 Eg'rirffn;:':ep'a""i“g ) 1 1
July 2016 691 E;':_Igr:;e'f iDL @ 1 1
August 2016 PRSC2 E:E:;‘te':e"iew Sub- (b) & (d) 1 1
CITY OF SALISEURY ANNUAL REPORT 16,17 18
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Budget and Finance

August 2016 603 Comnlites (b) & (d) 1 1
Budget and Finance

August 2016 6.9.1 Committee (d) 1 1
Strategic Property

September 2016 SPDSC4 Development Sub- (b) 1 1
Committee
Policy and Planning

September 2016 1.10.1 Committee (b) 1 1

September 2016 1101 Policy and Planning (b) 1 1
Committee
Budget and Fi

Septemnber 2016 6.911 Committee (a) 1 1
Budget anc 8

September 2016  6.9.2 Committed (b) 1 1

September 2016 C1 Council (a) 1 1

October 2016 PRSQ2 Brogram Review Sub- ) & ( 1 1
Committee

October 2016 691 LAyl & (d) 1 2
Committee

October 2016 (@] Council (@) 1 1

October 2016 (] Council (d) 1 1

November 2016 6.91 L (b) & (d) 1 1
Committee

November 2016  C1 Council (a) 1 1
Strategic Property

December 2016 ~ SPDSC3 Development Sub- (b) 1 1
Committee
Policy and Planning

December 2016 1101 Committee (b) 1 1

19 CITY OF SALSBURY ANNUAL REPORT 16/17
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December 2016 :‘L‘;'_ﬁg‘;semm (b) 1 1
December 2016 6.9.1 g{‘)’ign‘::t:‘:s L (b) & (d) 1 1
January 2017 291 gﬁﬁiﬂise"'im (b) 1 1
January 2017 292 :ﬂ'ﬁ;;’isew“es 10) 1 1
February 2017 PRSC4 ::’Lorﬁ:ir::;eview sub- (a) 1 1
february 2017 1101 [P:::fm:':ep'a"“i"g (b) & (d) 1 1
February 2017 291 (b) 1 1
February 2017 6.91 . b) & (d) 1 1
March 2017 291 ;‘;Tn'fm":te“i S & (d) 1 1
Strategic Property
April 2017 SPDSC4 Development Sub- ) 1 1
Committee
April 2017 291 E‘::nﬁ&isewices (b) & (d) 1 1
April 2017 292 E?Lﬁ.?mni Sl (b) & (d) 1 1
April 2017 293 :;%ﬁ;l‘ismkes (b) 1 1
May 2017 PRSCA EL?;:;::;E“EW SUi @) 1 1
May 2017 291 :"‘;T_rn'fm?te“‘i Sl ) 1 1

Resources and
May 2017 381 Governance Committee © ! 1
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Budget and Finance @)

May 2017 6.91 Committee 1 1

May 2017 (@] Council (a) 1 1

May 2017 Q Council (b) 1 1

May 2017 (6] Council (a) 1 1
Program Review Sub-

June 2017 PRSC1 Committee (a) 1 1
Warks and Services

June 2017 291 Committee (b} 1 1

June 2017 292 DT (b) & (d) 1 1

Committee

17 confidentiality orders were revoked

per year and should it be deemed appropiate Bxecutive Officer has the delegation to revoke the orders.

i : 2016,/17. Remaining orders will be reviewed internally twice

121 orders remained operative at the end of 2016,/1
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Management and Governance

The City of Salisbury places particular emphasis on its
commitment to democratic principles. These principles
include fair representation, openness and transparency in
all its operations.

The Local Government Act 1999 provides the legislative
foundation for Council and contains a range of reporting
and operating requirements that contribute toward good
governance. As part of its compliance with the Local
Government Act 1999, the City of Salisbury maintains the
following registers, codes of conduct and policies:
Registers

+  Register of Interests for Elected Members

+  Register of Allowances and Benefits for Elected
Members

Register of Salaries (Remuneration) for Staff
Register of Interests (Officers)
Register of Public Roads”
Register of By-laws*
+  Register of Gifts and Benefits
Codes
Code of Conduct for Council Members™
Code of Conduct for Council Employees®
Code of Practice for Access to Meetings and Documents”®
Policies
Procurement Policy”
Rating Policy”
By-Laws and Order Making Policy”
Public Consultation Policy™
Internal Review of Council Decision Making Procedures”
other
Internal Audit Charter
Governance Framework and Statement
Risk Mmanagement Charter

Whistleblower Policy”

A comprehensive list of codes, documents, policies,
registers and quidelines are available for public
inspection either at the Council offices, 12 James Street,
salisbury or at www.salisbury.sa.gov.au

Copies of most documents are available for purchase for
a small fee. All of these documents are updated on a
regular basis as required by the Act. Documents marked
with © are also available at www.salisbury.sa.gov.au

Number of Requests for a Review
of Council Decisions

During the 201617 financial year, the City of Salisbury
did not receive any requests for review of a Council
decision. There was one application carried forward
from 2015/16 which was still being reviewed. The
request was for a review of the decision of Council

to take no further action with respect to complaints
regarding the impact of a dwelling approved by Council
on the adjoining property. The review proceeded with
remedies with respect to the decision above determined
for action by both the applicant and Council. No further
action was determined to be available concerning the
provision of plans, specifications and paperwork and the
Land Management Agreement

Ombudsman SA Investigations

ring 2016,/17, 35 complaints were received by the SA

il for action, six were declined, one had
dy availability, three were withdrawn
y the Complai and one complainant could not be

contacted.

Financial Internal Controls
Framework

The City of Salisbury follows the Better Practice Model -
Financial Internal Control for South Australian Councils.
In order to demonstrate compliance with this model,
the City operates an extensive financial internal controls
framewaork. The framework is designed to ensure
financial processes, procedures, policies and systems are
applied efficiently and effectively in order to mitigate
the financial risks identified in the Model. Oversight of
the financial internal controls framework is provided by
the Audit Committee of Council, through the Governance
Division. An external audit of the framework is
conducted annually.

CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPGRT 16,17 22
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Audit Committee of Council

As a critical component of Council’s governance
framework, and in compliance with Section 126 of the
Local Government Act 1999, the Audit Committee of
Council provides an oversight function for the City's
financial statements and regularly reviews the adequacy
of the accounting, internal control, reporting and other
financial management systems and practices of the City.

The Committee reports to Council five times a year and is
committed to assuring Council that the governance and
risk management frameworks are in place and operating
effectively.

This assurance to Council is given through the completion
of an Internal Audit Plan, which is linked to the Strategic
Risk Register and reviewed four times a year by the
Committee. Linking the Internal Audit Plan to the
Strategic Risk Register ensures that internal audits are
focussed on those areas that pose the greatest risk to the
achievement of the City's objectives.

The Committee also maintains a close worki
relationship with the City’s external audi
particular focus on the end of year fine
External audit provides opinions on the

Each year the Committee undertakes a self-assessmeft,
the results of which are reported to Council and usedito
identify areas for development or improvement in the
operations of the Committee.

Audit Committee Membership
July 2016 - June 2017

- Mr Peter Brass (Chairman & Independent Member)
- Chief Operating Officer and Company Secretary,
Water Research Australia Ltd., attended four of five
meetings.

+  Mr Craig Johnson (Deputy Chairman - Independent
Member) - Independent Consultant, attended five of
five meetings.

+ Ms Kristyn Verrall (Briggs) (Independent
Member) - Legal Counsel / Company Secretary at
StatewideSuper, attended four of five meetings.

Cr Joe Caruso (Elected Member of Council) - attended
four of five meetings.

+  Cr Graham Reynolds (Elected Member of Council) -
attended four of five meetings.
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Elected Member Training and Development

Below is a table showing training and development activities attended by Elected Members during the past financial year

Gillian Aldridge JP

David Balaza

Sean Bedford

Beau Brug
(From 22 May 2017)

David Bryant

Chad Buchanan JP

Giuseppe (Joe) Caruso

Linda Caruso

Robyn Cook

Elizabeth (Betty) Gill JP

Damien Pilkington

Donna Proleta

Shiralee Reardon JP

Graham Reynolds

Brad Vermeer
(until 3 February 2017)

Steve White

Julie Woodman JP

Riccardo Zahra

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Elected Member Development Program, Local Government
Association Ordinary and Annual General Meeting and Networking Dinner, Elected Member Weekend
Workshop.

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Elected Member Development Program, Elected Member Weekend
Waorkshop.

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Elected Member Development Program, tlected Member Weekend
Workshop.

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Local Government Electricity Forum, Elected Member Development
Program, Elected Member Weekend Workshop.

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Elected Member Development Program, Elected Member Weekend
Workshop.

Conflict of Interest
Workshop.

Training, Elected Member Development Program, Elected Member Weekend

Conflict of Interest p i@
Workshop, National Gener,

ected Member Development Program, Elected Member Weekend
Local Government (Canberra).

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Tra
Waorkshop.

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Ele
Workshop, Local Government Association
Government Women's Association Conferenc
Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Elected Member De ment Program, Elected Member Weekend
Waorkshop.

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Elected Member Development Program, Elected Member Weekend
Workshop.

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Elected Member Development Program, Elected Member Weekend
Workshop, WEA ‘Comnmunication Secrets’, WEA ‘The Influential Communicator’, WEA ‘Leadership 2017’, Local
Government Tourism, Festival and Events Workshop.

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Elected Member Development Program, Elected Member Weekend
Workshop.

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Elected Member Development Program.

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Elected Member Development Program, Elected Member Weekend
Workshop, Council and Committee Meeting Procedures and Chairing Skills.

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Elected Member Development Program, Elected Member Weekend
Workshop, Australian Local Government Women's Association Conference (Hobart).

Conflict of Interest Follow Up Training, Elected Member Development Program, Elected Member Weekend
Waorkshop.

CITY OF SALISBURY ANMNUAL REPORT 16,17 24

Page 84
Resources and Governance Committee Agenda - 20 November 2017

City of Salisbury



Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

Elected Member Representation on External Bodies

Gillian Aldridge JP

David Balaza

Sean Bedford

David Bryant

Chad Buchanan P

Giuseppe (Joe) Caruso

Linda Caruso

Robyn Cook

Elizabeth (Betty) Gill JP

Damien Pilkington

Donna Proleta

Shiralee Reardon JP

Graham Reynolds

Brad Vermeer
(until 3 February 2017)

Steve White

Julie Woodman )P

Voling Representative, Local Government Association Board

Member, Metropalitan Local Government Group

Member, Metropolitan Local Government Group - Executive Committee
Reconciliation Action Plan Working Group (Co-Chair)

Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority Board (Member)
Salisbury City Centre Business Association
Salisbury Park Primary School Governing Council

Metropolitan Seaside Councils Committee

Salisbury East High School Governing Council

Local Government Fip Authority of SA (Voting Delegate)
Lake Windemere B pverning Council

Twelve25 Youth Ad

Australian Local Government Wo
Australian Local Government Wi
Morthern Adelaide Waste Manage:
Social Participation and Diversity Advisory
Parafield Airport Consultative Committee
Twelve25 Youth Advisory Group

n - Vice President (Mational)
v B Deputy Member)

Salisbury East Neighbourhood Centre

Burton Community Centre
St Kilda and Surrounds Development and Tourism Association

Salisbury and Districts Historical Society
Para Hills High School Governing Council

Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority Board (Deputy Member)
Paralowie R-12 School Governing Council
Salisbury High School Governing Council

Parafield Airport Consultative Committee
Twelve25 Youth Advisory Group
Mawson Centre Management Committee

Valley View Secondary High School Governing Council
Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority Board (Member)

Resources and Governance Committee Agenda - 20 November 2017
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Executive Allowances Urban Planning Advisory Group
The Executive Management Structure Chief General Manager Business Excellence, Charles
Executive Officer and four General Man ar Mansueto

packages for these five executives are compfised
local Government Association Workers Compensation
A negotiated annual salary; Scheme

Statutory superannuation; Council Solutions

Provision of a fully maintained Council vehicle or
equivalent. G | M ger Community Development, Jane

General Managers membership on
External Boards and Committees:

Discovery Circle Advisory Committee

Membership on external bodies by City of Salisbury
General Managers during the past financial year
General Manager Community Development, Pippa
H Webb (F 10 October 2016
General Manager Membership ebb (From 10 October 2016)
Industry Leaders Group for Department of State

Chief Executive Officer, John Harry Development

Northern Economic Leaders Group Discovery Circle Advisory Committee

Metropolitan CEQ's Group General Manager City Infrastructure, Mark van der

Pennen
Council Solutions
Northern Economic Development Plan - - Adelaide Mt Lofty Ranges Bushfire Management
Implementation Group Committee (Deputy Member)

Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority
General Manager City Development, Terry Sutcliffe (NAWMA)

Institute of Public Works Engineering Australasia
Burial Discovery Working Group Committee Member

United Nations Office for Disaster Risk Reduction
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Participation in decision-making forums (AR.03.02.03)

In 2016/17, there were five Committees with 45 non-
elected members in their membership. The Committees
are Youth Council (24), Audit Committee of Council

(3), Development Assessment Panel (4), Strategic and
International Partnerships (8) and the Tourism and Visitor
Sub Committee (6).

Youth Council 24
Audit Committee of Council 3
Development Assessment Panel 4
Strategic & International Partnerships Sub-Committee 8
Tourism and Vistor Sub Committee 6

Number of internal controls rating 4 or higher (CAMS)
(AR.04.02.01)

The Control Assessment Management Syste
a support tool for performing self-assessife
effectiveness of internal financial con
Salisbury currently utilises 371 controls ¥
across six classes: Assets, Expenses, Externa
Liabilities, Revenue and Strategic Financial Pla

CAMS uses a five point rating scale (1=ineffective,
2=requires significant improvement, 3=partially effectiVe€,
4=majority effective and 5=effective). This indicator
reports the number of controls assessed as 4 or higher

of the controls utilised. The total number of controls
assessed in 2016,/17 was 371, of these controls 369
were assessed as a 4 or a 5, which represents 99% of
controls assessed against a target of 80%. Both Core and
Additional controls were assessed and this will be the
case in subsequent years.

High risk outcomes/findings from
internal audits/program reviews

Six high risk outcomes / findings from internal audits
were identified in the 2016 /17 financial year, that have
in place an appropriate action to address.
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201617 CITIZEN OF THE YEAR AWARD WINNERS

Citizen: Christopher Moore

Young Citizen: Damien Walker
Senior Citizen: William Leslie

Community Event of the Year: Opening Doors to Domestic Violence
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Page 88
Resources and Governance Committee Agenda - 20 November 2017

City of Salisbury



3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

2016/17 LEGENDS AWARDS

Living Legend: Working Legend: Mrs Baynes and Mrs Roberts
Christopher Moore Geoff Thiel Outstanding Contribution Award:

Patrick Trimboli
(Amelia Trimboli - Potrick’s doughter accepting
award on Partricks behalf)

Active Legend:
Heart Foundation Walk Organisers - Salisbury

Left to Right: Christine Hillier, Christine Schreiber, Lorraine Thalbourne, Leanne Cowen, Janet Higgins,
Paulina Knowles and Michael Crabb. Absent: Ambika and Indira Dulal, Ursula Klok, Robyn Pettitt.
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By 2030 Salisbury remains at the forefront of attracting investment into the
City due to its excellent infrastructure, skilled workforce, diverse and thriving
economic base and overall affordability of doing business. Our businesses are
innovative and outwardly focussed.

Our industry base is transforming, creating new job opportunities. Creativity
thrives and we are recognised as one of the best places to start a business in
the nation. Our infrastructure and our neighbourhoods support the exchange
of goods, services and ideas. Technology is used to develop new products
and capture new markets, and businesses in Salisbury are global innovators.
Have a community Wlth the Ski"S, Tutoring delivered a weekly service for 12 student

e .. 5@55i0ns

knowledge and agqility to patticipate

i i i The most significant and rapid change being faced by both
ina rapldly changlng €co the local and state economy was the pending closure of

he Gitv of Salisbury i ki ) the automotive manufacturing sector in South Australia.
fhe ?'W N Sab\s ury '_Sd.wor ing to |mfpro support and guidance would be essential for the workers,
e':np oyment vlpro\g g E'rograms of %eop €w families, supply-chain businesses and those to be direcily
t €y are unemployed, seexing to enter the woriforce impacted by the loss of this major economic contributor.
looking to change careers.

. . : : collaborated with Holden, supply chain companies and
Workln_g wnh_allpcal h|gr_| school, the Business Sylrslems e A tive Transformation Taskforce to identify and
& Solutions Division provided several students with a - h tging pathways including:
practical experience of working within an information '
technology team. The Twelve25 Salisbury Youth Enterprise | f ion in librari p )

Centre structured and supported a 10-week social media Regular in mr '"d' raries an ““"F””"'f‘y
education / support campaign on the Youth in Salisbury .cenlre.s buildi ate mp'?ll‘e' preparing for
Facebook page focused on youth unemployment. interiglv, building a successtul cv
This aligned with a trial of a new model called “Youth o o ) )
Employment Family Conversations’, which pairs a Providing stakehqlders wnh‘lnforma_lmn on learning
volunteer employment coach with parents and a young programs that build work skill capacity
person.
Having representation on the BeyondAuto committee
Foundation Skills programs focused on building core headed by Northern Connections
skills and increasing confidence and capacity, enhancing
opportunities for participants to go on to further training, Staff participated in Job Fairs and two Holden Expos
volunteering or employment. This included: reaching approximately 6,000 automotive workers
and their families
STEM programs: Nine sessions with 150 registrations/
attendees Realignment of ACE programming to provide digital
literacy training to supply chain workers, automotive
Commenced training with eight young pizza operators workers and thelcomm_unity in general across
who are starting to undertake community events the northern region. This was supported by State
Government grant funding

Coffee Connoisseurs: Trained two groups with a

total of 14 young people. They have attended 18

community events

Airbrush Enterprise undertook 14 paid events
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Be the place of choice for
businesses to invest and grow in
South Australia, nationally and
internationally

To attract new investment and support existing firms to
grow, the region needs to build on its strengths such as
food processing, defence, logistics and education.

The City of Salisbury’s Investment Prospectus was updated
and a health industries fact sheet created. The Polaris
Business & Innovation Centre supported 18 firms to
expand/relocate in 2016/17, which created 481 new jobs
in Salisbury. Fifty per cent were new inbound jobs and the
other 50% of jobs created were from local businesses that
have expanded and/or relocated within Salisbury.

To further develop Salisbury Water, a desalination research
and development project to establish the economic
feasibility of supplying higher grade water to the food
industry has been introduced. Industrial waste water

with UniSA. Trials were ‘operationalised”
peak summer demand with more tha
of blended desalinated water and nativelg
supplied to customers.

As we look to build new industries around our region’
research strengths, an EOI process to secure Waste to
Energy project proposals was carried out in partnershi
with UniSA, the (SIRO and Green Industries SA. The
objective is to reduce waste and energy costs for existing
industry and attract new industry to the area. Five project
proposals were received with shortlisting and cost/benefit
analyses to be progressed in 2017/18.

Support programs available through our libraries and
community centres are planned around employment
growth areas such as the Northern Connector project and
have information on the Northern Adelaide Economic
Plan and Where the Jobs Are projects. Our ACE Accredited
programs attracted 54 participants and 3,417 contact
hours, while the ACE Non Accredited programs attracted
227 participants and 3,157 contact hours.

32 CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 10/17

Have a thriving business sector that
supports community wellbeing,

is globally oriented & creates job
opportunities

The City of Salisbury continued to play an active role in
providing targeted services to business owners through
the Polaris Business & Innovation Centre including business
advice, workshops, mentoring and networking events
including:

Information and advice to 1,083 individual businesses

32 workshops attended by 547 people, and 22
networking events attended by 2,143 people

Intensive mentoring provided to 43 clients

Digital economy program accessed by 200 business
owners

The City of Salisbury is working to ensure our regulations

and procurement activities support local economic growth

where possible. A review of Council policies relating

fo business was undertaken to remove unnecessary

impediments to economic growth, along with a

contribution made to the State Government's Industry
icipation Policy review.

ed to provide a range of statutory services to
ity in relation to development approvals and
sed focus on case managing development
d to facilitate increased certainly for

plicatigns as

ment applications lodged for the period
remained steady at 2,582

The total value of approved development was within
expected trends of $145 million

The City of Salisbury implements measures to ensure
that food offered for sale is safe and suitable for human
consumption and is sold, stored, manufactured and
prepared in a hygienic manner from hygienic premises.
This is undertaken through the administration of the Food
Act and Food Requlations and key activities that aim to
educate and support local businesses in their compliance
and improve the food safety for the community. Key
activities include:

871 routine inspections of food premises, including
the use of the State wide Food Safety Rating System
for 452 of those.

62 Food Safety Plan audits for premises serving food
to vulnerable populations, children and aged care.
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101 food complaint investigations involvigdgunsafe mitigation for the industrial areas in the immediate

food, unsuitable food or unclean prem vicinity. The City of Salisbury has been liaising with
Lendlease to ensure clear links to job opportunities
during the construction of the Northern Connector, and
ensuring that construction will have flow-on benefits for
the community such as improvement'’s to the shared-use

To support firms in accessing new markets, workfhops -
PP g P paths to and from it.

were held on China, protecting IP and a “learn from r
experience” event attended by more than 40 people.
The City of Salisbury hosted inbound delegations of Lin
Government officials and buyers, while MOUs were signed
to progress trade and investment opportunities.

livering new housing that meets identified gaps in

y housing market is a focus in the residential
rojects delivered by Council. In 2016/17,

ibury worked with Rivergum Homes to

ffordable housing allotments at

Have well planned urban growth Boardwalk a e.

tha.t.stlmulates |nvestment and - Affordable housing of 20% achieved on residential
facilitates greater housing and development projects
employment choice

67% of buyers in the residential development projects

were existing Salisbury residents
Concept development was completed and a preferred

site identified for the proposed Salisbury City Centre To encourage well-designed infill development and unlock
Community Hub as we work to regenerate Salisbury City new urban development opportunities, the Salisbury City
Centre into a vibrant, diverse and successful destination. Centre DPA was completed and the Mawson Lakes DPA
Salisbury Secret Garden - the Fringe Hub for the North of largely finalised. A Growth Action Plan was endorsed.
Adelaide - is a key initiative in activating the City Centre Staif continue to work with State Government and owners
with Thirsty Merc headlining the 2016/17 event. A record of the Dry Creek saltfields to review the feasibility of a
13,000 people attended performances and activities in master-planned urban development over the crystalliser
the Salisbury City Centre, while a new partnership with field located adjacent Globe Derby.

the Salisbury Business Association will see an increase in

activities in the future. The Salisbury Oval Masterplan was A Strategic Land Review was completed identifying a
developed incorporating active and passive recreation and 25-year pipeline of infill opportunities on Council land
identifying new housing opportunities to contribute to that will unlock new urban development opportunities
new housing within the Salisbury City Centre. for between 1,069 and 1,600 new dwellings across 82

individual parcels. A five year implementation plan was
Bridgestone Reserve was completed, which provides adopted to guide prioritisation aligned to strategic and
high quality recreational activity but also provides flood market demand.
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By 2030 Salisbury remains internationally recognised for its innovative
environmental management in water, energy, waste and biodiversity.
People and businesses have ready access to a range of renewable
energy and waste management options. Recycled and waste water
management are major contributors to the economic and environmental
sustainability of our City.

People choose to live here because Salisbury offers a sustainable lifestyle
choice which is adaptive to future changes in climate. They have a sense
of ownership and pride in their natural spaces, places and streetscapes.
Jobs are being created in our globally renowned green industries sector.

Capture economic opportunities
arising from sustainable
management of natural
environmental resources, |
climate, emerging policy dire
and consumer demands

To support businesses to minimise resource usage

and waste production, the Adaptive Economy Forum

was held in November 2016 with approximately 65

attendees. A Speed Networking Event at Fluid Solar in

March 2017 focussed on reducing energy inputs attracting

approximately 30 solution providers and more than 70

participants. Foundational work on the green industries

concept was undertaken. Approximately 85 businesses

participated in Adapting Northern Adelaide events or
ressed an interest in supporting the Northern Adelaide

e . . . _— een Industries Concept.
[~ ~ To improve our attractiveness as a visitor destination an
= a place to live, the City of Salisbury manages current open . .
? space assets through maintenance activities and capital d mul’llty that is
.| renewals to ensure that street trees, wetlands and parks
o e ' knowled le about our natural
enviropfMment and embraces a
The capital renewals in 2016,/17 saw 20 street tree . .
renewals, numerous parks where assets/ elements were SUStamable IIfEStyle
renewed or created new such as upgrading Underdown ) _ S )
Park’s playing fields and playspace, landscape renewal of The City of Salisbury provides information and events that
reserves within Mawson Lakes as well as the development ~ enable people to better understand and care for their
of Amsterdam Crescent Reserve to better provide for the environment.
local community with a new multi-use sports court, an
irrigated turf area, shelter and seating. Salisbury Water maintains a suite of fact sheets on the
Council website and facilitates technical tours for schools,
Additional plantings were added to the City’s wetlands universities, government agencies, international visitors
and river corridors to strengthen these natural areas for and community groups. In 2016/17 this included:
the purpose of maintaining biodiversity. All activities, .
capital and operational, are undertaken to maintain the Two education tours
City of Salisbury as a place where community members
are aware of the natural systems that they live within as Light government / international tours
well as providing the residents with assets that they can
have pride in. Six community tours
Community savings of 52.4 million (compared to mains In order to reduce the volume of waste that Council
water pricing) were achieved through the delivery of disposes to landfill from the Capital Works Program,
1,883 million litres of fit-for-purpose water to 1,059 construction and demolition waste generated is re-used.
customers by Salisbury Water. Road profilings are re-used in new asphalt and concrete
35 CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 16,17
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waste is crushed and re-used in road and curb building
works. It is estimated 137,000 people live in the City of
Salisbury and that one tyre per person per annum is sent
to landfill. To reduce the volume of rubber tyres disposed
to landfill, recycled rubber is re-used in the road crack
sealing process. To reduce Council’s carbon footprint, road
asphalt profilings are re-used in new asphalt and warm
asphalt is used in road resealing works.
Approximately 1,200 tonnes per year of road profilings is
diverted from landfill and re-used in new asphalt in the
City
Approximately 500 tonnes of crushed waste concrete
is diverted from landfill per annum through re-use in
curbing concrete in the City
Approximately 4,000 tonnes of crushed waste
concrete is diverted from landfill per annum through
re-use in curb building works in the City
+  Approximately 1,400 vehicle tyres per annum are
recycled and the rubber content used in the road crack
sealing process in the City
Approximately 320 tonnes of carbd
annum is achieved through the re-us
profilings in new asphalt and the use of warg
in the City ) o
Fortnightly treatment undertaken in high risk areas
by contractor and includes application of larvicide and
Have natural resources and anent bait stations in waterways
landscapes that support biodiversity , _ o
. . ntify adult mosquitoes to identify species
and community wellbeing otential breeding
The City of Sal\;bury recorded a net increase in bio diverse nd inform the community through
land of 9.9 Ha in 2016/17 as we look to manage our publication and distribution of reqular newsletter and
natural spaces and landscapes to support the health of online information
local habitats.
To help manage coastal environments to ensure their The (ilyl of.Sglisbury aldrnini.sters a variety of legislated
future natural, economic and recreational value, the City resp0|_15|b|||tles that aim to improve the_ safety and
of Salisbury continued to be actively involved in planning amenity of the area through the effective enforcement
around the Adelaide International Bird Sanctuary, with of the relevant sections of the Local Government Act
master planning being undertaken for Stage 2 of our St and By-Laws, Local Nuisance and Litter Control Act and
Kilda Renewal Project. Environment Protection Act. The key activities in this area
included:
The City of Salisbury recognises that undertaking a
mosquito control program - including the surveillance and + 113 nuisance animal complaints
control of mosquitoes - is a key strategy to manage and
minimise the_ public heglth effects afld nuisance issues 418 littering and illegal dumping investigations
associated with mosquitoes. Mosquito control is focussed
on the coastal environments of St Kilda and Globe Derby ) o o
Park, however, additional work is undertaken wherever 99 unauthorised burning investigations
activity may be detected and identified. Key activities
include: + 300 investigations and activities under the Local
Government Act including; Footpath trading permits,
Identify and monitor mosquito breeding habitats, and Parks and reserves patrols, Hoarding permits for skips
treat and/or eliminate mosquito breeding habitats and scaffolds, Moveable signs complaints
CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 16,17
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Have urban and natural spaces that
are adaptive to future changes in
climate

The City of Salisbury is ensuring long term flexibility
in the management of our urban spaces (assets and
infrastructure) to adapt to a changing environment.

Climate variability is considered across the Asset
Management Plans of the City of Salisbury. In the past 12
months the St Kilda Sea Wall was completed to cater for
possible future sea level rises. Similarly, we are adjusting
our asset management around potential increases in
intense storm and heat events.

We are proactively managing stormwater to reduce its
impact on our community and the natural environment.
In 2016,/17 we reduced stormwater run-off and pollutant
loads to the marine environment by harvesting, cleansing
and storing stormwater for reuse.

+  Harvested: 5,138 million litres

Community Reuse: 1,883 million lit

Large scale Local and Major Flooding prog re b
undertaken with 1.3 million spent of flooding g
and 51 million spent on Watercourse Management in
2016/17. The planned watercourses, stormwater and
wetlands projects were delivered through the capital
works program. A further $2.4 million was spent in
2016/17 on infrastructure improvements associated with
drainage and waterways. It is estimated that 500 tonnes
of material per year is prevented from entering the Barker
Inlet, based on the volumes of material removed in
desilting works in our waterways and wetlands.

Our Streetscape Renewal Program has continued with the
maintenance of the existing number of trees in the City as
we look to moderate the impact of extreme heat events
through street tree plantings and management. However,
with 10% of trees having been removed and replaced
over the last seven years, these trees are yet to mature
resulting in an initial reduction in canopy cover. It is
expected that the net loss in canopy cover will be minimal
as the trees reach mature status over the next five years,
maintaining the long term reduction in heat effect whilst
managing the street trees in a sustainable way.
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By 2030 Salisbury is known for being a vibrant, welcoming City that
embraces diversity. All people have an opportunity to shape community
life whether they are young or old, newly arrived or long term residents.
There is a strong sense of optimism and pride, people embrace change
and pursue healthy lifestyles.
Salisbury is a destination of choice to live, work, study and play. People
can move easily around the City to enjoy our many interesting places,
spaces and experiences. Our people embrace lifelong learning, are
able to access employment and participate in community life. Our city
is recognised for having a technologically advanced, innovative and
connected community, with diverse housing, cultural and recreational
choices. We are a place where people aspire to live.
Be an adaptive COMMU NI The City of Salisbury has played a key role in the
4 development of University engineering students hosting
embraces chan ge and OppoRy six in 2016/17 - all of whom either live in the Salisbury
community or the northern suburbs. Work continued with
The City of Salisbury’s extensive library facilities and ‘Friends Of" community groups and schools in areas within
services are focal points for community engagement linear corridors; from Dry Creek through to Cobblers
and participation. Our collections, systems, resources, ek.
programs and partnerships are regularly reviewed and
adapted to meet changing community needs, interests h of Sglisbury looks to lead by example when
and technologies. In 2016,/17, the Salisbury Library Service pting,to orgupporting social and economic change.
Saw: Multicultural an igenous events help raise cultural
awareness ac whole community. In turn, this
SabreNet rolled out to increase speeds at library sites leads to gra@ter understanding of cultural differences
and prom@tes respect, communication and integration
559 471 visits for all. A range of events were held in 2016/17 with the
! aim of Iinkin_g lesi_dents with opportunities or increasing
25,864 people utilize the Justice of the Peace service awareness; including:
Harmony Day and Refugees welcome Zone celebration
288 people use the Job Pod attended by more than 200 people
104,804 library website visits Age to Perfection with more than 50 activities
) ) organised across senior centres attended by more
79,828 people use the public computers and wireless than 800 people
internet connection
) ) . Jack Young Centre Open Day held three times per year
To help provide youth with the skills and knowledge to with attendance reaching 150 new members
effectively participate in the digital age, the Twelve25
Salisbury Youth Enterprise Centre’s digital one-on-one
classes held 275 sessions, eSports Tournaments and short
workshops occurred in February 2017 (LOL), March (Rocket
League) and May (C5:GO) with 70 players participating.
The Centre also had 24 students participate in radio,
podcast and video projects during the year, including
enterprise style projects for external community clients
including Salisbury North Neighbourhood Watch. In total
more than 2,500 study hours were recorded.
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Have inte resting places where Endorsement of the Salisbury Oval Precinct Masterplan
P90D|e want to be Completion of a review into carparking at key
locations; the Salisbury City Centre and Mawson Lakes
Well maintained, clean and attractive places and facilities
play a fundamental role in building community pride A range of activities and events were held in public
and ensuring residents feel connected to locations and spaces throughout 2016,/17 including Matsuri on Mobara,
key sites within their City. As well as enhancing our Australia Day Family Picnic, Salisbury Secret Garden and
neighbourhoods, streets and public spaces, it is important Salisbury Writers’ Festival collectively attracting more than
that this work is supported through place activation 20,000 attendees. Dozens of smaller events were held
initiatives and encouraging active citizenship. or supported throughout the community such as NAIDOC
and Youth week events, the Library Service school holiday
A new recreation reserve in Salisbury South called programs and sports development activities, to name a
Bridgestone Reserve was officially opened in April 2017 on few.
land gifted to the City of Salisbury by Bridgestone for use
as a recreational reserve. It features turfed playing areas, d . h ”
play spaces, walking trail, fitness equipment, barbecue Be a connecte Clty whnere a
facilities, drinking fountain, public toilets and water DEOD|E have op pUFtUﬂitiES to
harvesting facilities. L.
participate
A 1km walking and cycling route for families called
Lowie’s Loop was launched in the new Greentree at Participation in sport, social and recreational opportunities
Boardwalk development in Paralowie. In total the is strongly supported by the City of Salisbury to help our
development delivered more than $1 millionfiglandscape residents enjoy the wellbeing benefits from a healthy and
upgrades to benefit the new and existing ity, active lifestyle.
equating to 11% of the total project bu
The annual Growing for Gold program saw more than
The City of Salisbury maintained a range o 500 children participate and connect with local sport
that renew and upgrade local sireetscapes, tree and recreation clubs, while more than 2,500 children
playspaces and reserves. OQur 2016/17 capital works participated in activities through the OPAL program in
program invested more than 520 million in enhancin 6/17, which also developed bike paths at local schoals
community buildings, services and facilities including: use by children during class and lunch times, ride to
Transportation and lighting: $13.4 million
Property & Buildings: $6.6 million
Parks & Streetscape: $4.1 million the SA Wo N in Sport Taskforce. This forum encouraged
clubs to consider a variety of approaches to support
N . ) . participation by women in sport as athletes, coaching,
Significant future planning occurred including: officiating and administrative roles.
Endorsement of the St Kilda Stage 2 Masterplan
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Our elderly, fail and vulnerable residents are supported - 81,540 total volunteer hours
through a wide range of programs and initiatives to

remain connected with the community. Some key figures + $1,964,300 economic value
include:

As part of our responsibilities under the SA Public Health

* Number of individual residents receiving support: Act, the City of Salisbury provides and supports the
3,000 per annum provision of immunisation services, which included:
Number of transport trips: 5,840 - Three weekly clinics at Burton, Salisbury East and

Ingle Farm

Domestic assistance: 5,200 hours

2,596 vaccinations delivered at the childhood clinics
Home maintenance: 3,280 hours

4,641 vaccinations delivered via the schools program
Home modifications $106,600

The City of Salisbury also has a pivotal role in the

Social Support Individual: 2,265 hours protection of the community’s health. A range of
functions undertaken by Council to preserve, protect and
social Support Group: 74,000 hours promote public health within its area included:
Number of meals: 22,168 + Identifying 29 premises which are registered and
audited for their high risk manufactured water
The City of Salisbury works with key partnersdfgnsure systems for the control of legionella

transport options efficiently link people to 7
recreation and social activities. 75 inspections of health premises that require
compliance with associated codes of practice to

In 2016/17 the Integrated Transport Plan protect public health

with implementation strategies to be rolled ou
the next New Initiative Bid process. The City of Salisb
also enforces and administers traffic rules and parking
restrictions, which is aimed at ensuring equitable and
parking opportunities and also in many cases maintaining
the health and safety of road users and pedestrians. Key
activities in this area included:

Managing 770 customer requests associated with
public health and or environmental protection or
nuisance matters

, accessible and

ommunity
360 parking patrols around schools and in public car

parks and street parking Building agd nurturing pride and a strong sense of
community spirit is vital to having a happy, welcoming
608 abandoned vehicle complaints with 48 vehicles and healthy City. This is done via:
towed
The Mayoral International Women's Day breakfast to

With significant assistance from the State Government, our encourage and empower women - particularly local
linear trails project is close to completion with some minor students - to achieve personal development and
works still required. This will see a continuous off-road growth
pedestrian bike path from Salisbury City Centre to Mawson
Lakes.

There are few greater ways or more fulfilling opportunities
to be connected with your community than by
volunteering. Council continues to promote and develop
opportunities for volunteering to build skills, employability
and business sustainability, with volunteer services in
2016/17 achieving:

+ 400 enquiries

biternations vy, |
omer” -, |
Mayoral preakps ¥

y "NHG(U”HUU\‘;.
A
=8
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The annual Legends Awards to publicly recognise
individuals, groups and/or organisations helping to
make Salisbury a great place to live, work, play and
study

+  The annual Citizen of the Year awards, which are
presented in front of thousands of attendees at the
local Australia Day presentation

+  Distribute Salisbury Aware magazine to the
community and local businesses three times a year. It
contains articles and photos showcasing local success
stories

- The annual City of Salisbury Community Calendar is
a free publication featuring a theme that positively
showcases a key aspect of our community

Opportunities are made available for City of Salisbury
based events to be promoted via roadside banner
bookings, free community calendar listings, and via
the City of Salisbury's social media channels and
website

program, a variety of opportunities were prov
people to share their culture and develop their
increase their creative capacity including 10 exhibition,
at John Harvey Gallery, the Matsuri on Mobara Festiva
Salisbury Writers’ Festival and other specific programs
provided by partners such as Marra Dreaming. Other
2016/17 initiatives include:

Commenced developing an Intercultural Strateqy

- Commenced developing the Inclusive Communications
Project

Commenced developing Consumer Engagement
Framework

Commenced planning Council’s NDIS participation
and inclusion based on upcoming changed to this
Australian Government Program

+  The City of Salisbury officially became a Refugee
Welcome Zone

+  The Welcome Booklet for new residents is now
available in different languages via the City of
Salisbury website

Continued programs for people from CaLD (Cultural
and Linguistically Diverse) backgrounds as well as the
Salisbury Senior Alliance and Disability Access and
Inclusion Network

Maintained our commitment to the Assistance to Care
and Housing program ensuring knowledge of housing

needs for seniors are shared across the Council and
beyond

Every resident deserves to feel safe both at home and
throughout the broader community.

In 2016/17 the City of Salisbury successfully applied for
more than $200,000 in grant funding to address domestic
violence under the projects ‘No More Excuses’ and ‘A
Better Future’. These projects involve a wide range of
programs designed to promote respectful relationships
within primary and secondary schools and within our
community and provide people with strategies around
domestic violence. We also held two Connect2U events
and a White Ribbon Event in partnership with local
indigenous organisations.

Council continued to support the SA Safeguarding Strategy
for older adults, through information dissemination and
participation in WEAAD and promotion of Planning Ahead
events

The City of Salisbury administers the Dog and Cat
Management Act with an aim of promoting responsible
pet ownership and ensuring interactions between people
and pets is a positive, healthy and safe experience. Key
activities and services include:

24,234 dog registrations
137 dog attack reports resulting in 73 investigations

noise and nuisance complaints

ine dog friendly parks and dog tidy bag
our network of parks

Respdfding to 1,419 dogs wandering at large reports

+ Impounding 835 dogs and returning 530 to their
owners

2,033 expiations issued for offences under the Dog
and Cat Management Act
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By 2030 the City of Salisbury will excel in our provision of services to
our community. The community and the people who work for and with
the City of Salisbury value highly the Council and the role it plays. We
work closely with our community to anticipate and understand future
needs and respond to immediate issues earning their respect and
acknowledgment.
Our customer service offers choice to people and businesses, and we
deliver in ways that people prefer. We are proactive in developing strong
relationships that make our City a better place.
We are a partner of choice because we can be relied upon to deliver
outstanding results thanks to the knowledge of our people and
supportive processes. People want to work for us because we make a
difference in our communi,Our processes enable us to work seamlessly
across Council, embrace @ of technology and share information. We
have a positive attitude.
Strengthen partnerships that
enable us to better address our
community’s priorities
Opportunities are consistently being explored and
developed for working with neighbouring councils to
address issues of regional importance.
A significant achievement in 2016 /17 was successfully
tendering to deliver business advisory services into Tea
Tree Gully from 2017/18 through the Polaris Business &
Innovation Centre, which already provides these services
into the City of Playford.
Formulating stormwater infrastructure strategies and
Another new partnership will see the cities of Salisbury potential funding options for the future rezoning of
and Playford deliver GovHack in 2018 to encourage digital Greater Edinburgh Parks
literacy and entrepreneurial skills within the region. Our
two councils have a rich history of collaborating on youth, In order to maintain partnerships, address regional
skills and infrastructure related programs, which continue and state-wide issues, influence policy and investment
to include: decisions, the City of Salisbury actively engages with the
State and Federal governments. Input was provided into
The Jibba Jabba Radio and Jibba Jabba TV projects as the work of the Automotive Transformation Taskforce, the
forums for youth voices and leadership Northern Economic Plan, Northern Adelaide Food Park
and Adapting Northern Adelaide. Council staff continued
The Wheels in Motion Program - based out of the to work with the SA Department of Transport in the
Twelve25 Youth Enterprise Centre - is helping young design and delivery of the Northern Connector Project to
people overcome barriers to genmg their Provisional ensure it maximises the potenlial economic developmenl
Drivers Licence, which in turn creates opportunities to opportunities in the northern region. Advocacy documents
address youth unemployment were also developed to reflect community priorities.
CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 16,17 14
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The City of Salisbury continues to have strong partnerships Learning, development and innavation all play a role in
with local business and industry - along with new ones transforming the way Council operates. In 2016/18 we:
- to address the challenges facing our region. In relation

to the automotive sector, we worked with all partners + Developed the Strategic Procurement Vision which
on the Beyond Auto Group project to identify possible encompasses transforming procurement to a more
future collaborations to address increasing skills needs of commercially focussed, value function

automotive workers.

Developed a Competency Framework tool to allow

Our community’s needs and priorities were represented the objective measuring of the current procurement
by the City of Salisbury through many forums, team’s capabilities, benchmarked aqgainst international
groups and committees including the Inner Northern standards and tailored to the City of Salisbury.

Homelessness Youth Sub Committee, Violence Against
Women Collaboration Group, Disability SA, National
Disability Insurance Agency, Council Of The Ageing, Age
and Community Services Australia, Multicultural Aged
Care, University of South Australia, Age Friendly Alliance
Committee and the Community Ambassadors Group. We
continued to facilitate, host and support the Salisbury
Youth Services Network as the professional development

Developed a Field Operations Leadership Program and
appointed a trainer

Developed a Senior Leadership Program ready for
sourcing of trainer

network for some 400 people working on the frontline +  Achange management -framve)rk was developed as
with young people across the Salisbury region, while part of lhe_ proposed Salisbury City Centre Community
Northern Economic Leaders was developed into a regional Hub planning process; and
body.

A new Mentoring Program Pilot was approved
Communicating and engaging with our co is a
significant focus for the City of Salisbur Training programs in 2016/17 included:

Important information was distributed via Coaching Skills
Magazine. The magazine was distributed in July
November 2016 and April 2017 to more than 55

residential and business addresses per edition.

000 + WHS Due Diligence

Incident Investigation Training
Our digital communication channels continue to expand

their reach and relevance to community members seeking . 3 Court
Council-related information and updates. As of June 2017,
the City of Salisbury Facebook page had 6,821 followers
(increase of 23% on 2016), St Kilda Adventure Playground
had 17,388 followers (increase of 7.41%), the Salisbury
Library Service had 1,162 followers (increase of 26%),
Youth in Salisbury had 2,271 followers (increase of 27%)
and the Polaris Centre had 876 fallowers (increase of * Workzone Traffic Management and other compliance
12%). The City of Salisbury website achieved 950,878 hits. topics

| bili d To ensure we continue to provide a safe working
Deve op strong Capabl |ty an environment, a Key Performance Audit Action Plan was

i i i completed, along with reqular ongoing initiatives such as
commitment to COﬂtlnua”y improve the Salisbury Vitality Program’s delivery of health checks,

Council’s performa nce skin screenings, the Corporate Cup, Pedometer Challenge,
nutrition workshops, healthy ageing, flu vaccinations and

It is vital the City of Salisbury builds strong leadership Mind your Wellbeing.

capabilities within Council and the community to support

our desire for a skilled, innovative and well-serviced A Culture & Effectiveness Survey was completed, an

community. Internal Traineeship Program commenced, and the LGE
Enterprise Agreement was approved as we continue

This work starts with ensuring we have a consistent and to develop a flexible, capable and engaged workforce

customer first approach across Council. The Customer that can meet the changing needs of Council and our

Service Improvement Program looks at our customer community.

service performance and capabilities for both internal and

external relations. The program has seven core project New internal processes were developed in line with

interventions in identified areas aimed at improving our ensuring a shared focus on accountability and performance

service delivery and experience. including:
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Implementing a business partner / vertically Have robust processes that su ppO[t
integrated structure resulting in a single point of R . R

contact for key stakeholders for increasing our consistent service delivery and
understanding of their needs informed dECiSiOﬂ making

+  Centralising the procurement process for above
$150,000 activities and clearly defined roles and
responsibilities, which will enable value adding
strategies to be developed with clear sight to
accountability and performance

A number of new initiatives have been introduced as we
work to continually improve business practices to remove
barriers and ensure appropriate levels of service that
respond to emerging needs and opportunities.

A Continuous Improvement Specialist was appointed
with responsibility for coordinating the identification
and facilitating continuous improvements across the
organisation. Initial work focused on the development
of a Continuous Improvement Framework. Meanwhile,
the development of a six stage procurement process will
standardise the process across the City of Salisbury and
provide clarity and transparency. Salisbury Water adopted
a Customer Service Charter, consistent with Council’s
charter, but adapted and approved by the Essential
Services Commission of SA (ESCOSA) for use as a water
retail business.

Many of the City of Salisbury’s programs and services are
driven by Strategic Action Plans that are developed in
consultation with the community. In 2016,/17 more than
1,000 young people contributed to the development of
The City of Salisbury’s leadership and initiative w, a new Youth Action Plan, while significant feedback was

recognised in 2016,/17 with wins at the followifl aw received in regards to updating Council’s Reconciliation
jon Plan.

Planning Institute of Australia, Awards for Planni

Excellence 2016 Best Planning Ideas - Small Project is used to support transformation within

roactively address community needs. With

Maxima Trainee of the Year Emily Kennon, Project
Support Officer - Arts and Culture

Motor Accident Commission 2016 Safe Cycling Awards
- Metropolitan

The SCADA system (System Control and Data Acquisition)
provides 24/7 monitoring and control of Council's recycled
water system, which was further upgraded with additional
field instruments being progressively added to provide

Business Enterprise Centres Australia, 2016 BEC more robust decision support for operators.
Australia Awards for Performance - Best Metropolitan

Business Enterprise Centre

+ Walking SA, Inaugural Walking SA Award Local
Government Award - Individual

Electronic processes are being rolled out in stages to allow
development applications to be submitted online. This is

Local Government Professionals Australia SA, reducing the need for applicants to travel to the Council
SA Leadership Excellence Awards Leadership in office and means they can track the progress of their
Community Services application via Council’s website.
2017 Institute of Public Works Engineering Australasia The City of Salisbury's budget and annual plan are
Excellence Awards - Emerging Leader/Individual to developed over several months with the community
Local Excellence in Public Works Management provided comprehensive information on the proposed
base operating budget and new initiatives as well as
- 2017 Institute of Public Works Engineering Australasia opportunities to submit feedback prior to endorsement.
SA Excellence Awards - Excellence in Design and/ This ensures our decision-making is well informed,
or Construction of a Public Works Environment transparent, inclusive, and complies with legislative and
Enhancement Project policy requirements.
CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 16,17 6
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Embed long term thinking,
planning and innovation across the
organisation

Long term sustainability through good financial practices,
sound business planning and asset management ensures
the City of Salisbury can continue servicing the needs of
our community.

The end of financial year statements for 2016,/17 were
successfully completed within legislative timeframes, with
an unqualified opinion provided by the External Auditors.
The 2017/18 Budget and Annual Plan process led to the
adoption of the budget and the declaration of rate in

June 2017, which was within the legislative timeframes.
The budget process includes having strong alignment to
our Asset Management Plans and Planning Framework.
Divisional Business Planning was further embedded
within the organisation, with all Divisions establishing and
reporting periodically on their achievements during the
year.

The Long Term Financial Plan forms part of budget
process, and includes financial impacts o
initiatives. It is a priority of Council to
approach to developing and resourcing |Ofige

policies and strategies, which in 2016,/17 also in
continued development of the City of Salisbury 48 an
Age Friendly City, and continued development of the
Intercultural Strategic Plan. Other new initiatives saw:

The Twelve25 Youth Enterprise Centre pair SMS and
self-booking into programs to enable seamless 24/7
access to program access, booking and payment; and

Council began working in partnership with the
City of Playford on development of the Home and
Community Services Business model Framework
beyond 2020.

Since 2001, the City of Salisbury has conducted periodic
surveys with its residents to track the perceptions of

the residents and compare with previous surveys to
assess trends and identify opportunities for change or
improvement in services. Satisfaction with the overall
service delivered by Council remains high (mean score of
7.4, asin 2014 and 2012).

CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPGRT 16,17 47
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KEY DIRECTION 1:

THE PROSPEROUS CITY

OBJECTIVES
Have a community with Be the place of choice Have a thriving business Have well planned urban
the skills, knowledge and  for businesses to invest sector that supports growth that stimulates
agility to participate in a and grow in South community wellbeing, investment and facilitates
rapidly changing economy  Australia, nationally and 15 globa!ly oriented & greater housing qnd
internationally creates job opportunities employment choice
INDICATORS
Size of workforce and Gross Regional Product Number of actively value of residential and
participation rate trading businesses commercial construction

EXPLANATION OF INDICATORS

Workforce as outlined Source: Australian Bureau Approved by the City of

in the Department of Institute of Ecamomi of Statistics, Counts of Salisbury in the 2016/17
Employment, Small Area Industry Research Australian Businesses, Financial Year

Labour Markets, March ding Entries and Exits,

Quarter e 2012 to June 2016

Participation rate as
recorded by the Public
Health Information
Development Unit

RESULT

Workforce: 69,793 $6.15 billion 6,554 $145.4 million
P/rate: 62.5%

CITY OF SALISBURY ANMNUAL REPORT 16,17 49
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KEY DIRECTION 2:

THE SUSTAINABLE CITY

OBJECTIVES
Capture economic Have a community that is Have natural resources Have urban and natural
opportunities arising from  knowledgeable about our ~ and landscapes that spaces that are adaptive
sustainable management  natural environment and ~ Support biodiversity and to future changes in
of natural environmental ~ embraces a sustainable community wellbeing dimate
resources, changing lifestyle

climate, emerging policy
direction and consumer

demands

INDICATORS
Volume of stormwater Percentage of waste Community Perceptions of  Percentage of Council area
captured diverted from landfill QOpen Space. with tree canopy cover

EXPLANATION OF INDICATORS

As recorded by Salisbury Source: N Response out of 10 to This Objective addresses
Water (a business unit of statement “I feel that the State Government’s
the City of Salisbury) in I live in a pleasant 30 year Plan for Greater
the 2016/17 Financial Year jronment in terms of Adelaide - A Green
ning, open space and Liveable City where the
k of pallution” target is an increase in the
urban green cover of 20%
rce: 2016 munity by 2045.
Survey

5.138 billion litres 46.04% 73 Council manages Tree
and Open Space assets to
support a Green Liveable
City within the northern
suburbs.

Work is underway to
identify the best process
for collecting tree canopy
data.
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KEY DIRECTION 3:

THE LIVEABLE CITY

OBJECTIVES

Be an adaptive community

that embraces change and
opportunities

INDICATORS

Socio-economic Indexes
for Areas (SEIFA)

The SEIFA Index of
Disadvantage measures
the relative level of socio-
economic disadvantage
based on a range of
Census characteristics. It
is a good place to start

to get a general view

of the relative level of
disadvantage in one area
compared to others and
is used to advocate for an
area based on its level of
disadvantage.

SEIFA data was last
released in the 2011
Census.

Source:

http://profile.id.com.au/
salisbury/seifa-disadvantage

RESULT

In the 2011 Census, the
City of Salisbury received a
SEIFA score of 936.7.

Have interesting places
where people want to be

Percentage of residents
who have participated in

local community activities

EXPLANATION OF INDICATORS

Source: 2016 Communi
Perceptions Survey

Community events 61%
Council libraries 58%

Organised sport, church or
community groups 48%

Local recreation centres 47%
Comm or youth centres 24%
Council events 21%
Senior centres 14%

Be a connected city
where all people
have opportunities to
participate

Wellbeing

SATAC data for 2016
on school leavers
participation in higher
education

NCVER data for 2015

Response out of 10 to
uestions:

w affordable is it to

“I can get help
family, frien
neighbour.
it”
“Access to information,
services & activities

that support health and
wellbeing”

Source: 2016 Community
Survey

+ 327%
23,552 persons

7,71,79and 7.5
respectively

CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL RE

Be a proud, accessible and
welcoming community

Perceptions of quality of
life and perceptions of
Salisbury

Response out of 10 to
questions “I like living in
my local community” and
“Overall satisfaction with
quality of life in Salisbury
area”

Source: 2016 Community
Perceptions Survey

7.9 and 7.5 respectively
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OBJECTIVES
strengthen partnerships Develop strong capability ~ Have robust processes Embed long term
that enable us to better and commitment to that support consistent thinking, planning and
address our community’s  continually improve service delivery and innovation across the
priorities council’s performance informed decision making  organisation
INDICATORS
Targeted surveys of our Benchmarking our Customer satisfaction Financial sustainability
partners performance through survey
people, systems and
processes
EXPLANATION OF INDICATOR®
In delivering its various This indicater looks at Operating Surplus (deficit)
services, Council engages the Council Governance - The difference between
with a number of program o Framework as to how income and expenditure:
stakeholders to ensure its functions t it ensures that Council Council UDEIaling with a
the services are delivered  the service levels are de ision-rnak_ing is sound surplus means that current
to meet community meenng cummunny app‘rﬂprlate |EVE|S Of rate payers dre mEQtlng
expectations while needs and being deli rmation al'ld a Slfﬂng the costs Df the services
also capitalising on in the most efficient derstanding of risks and  that they are consuming.
opportunities to bring and effective manner as Net Financial Liabilities
in external funding or possible. The initiative is Ratio - Indicates the
expertise to enhance referred to as Program extent that Council can
economic and social Review supported by a meet its net financial
outcomes. This indicator transition to a continuous ] liabilities out of operating
is intended to reflect the improvement framework internal controls revenue: Councils with 3
number and outcomes of to ensure benefits falling ratio over time are
these partnerships achieved are sustainable becoming stronger in their
and continually improved capacity to meet their
financial obligations.
Asset Sustainability
Ratio - Indicates whether
capital assets are being
renewed or replaced at
the same raie as these
assets are wearing out.
Councils with a high
ratio are replacing and
renewing capital assets
at a rate comparable to
depreciation/ wear
See over page for results
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KEY DIRECTION 4:

ENABLING EXCELLENCE CONT'D

53

RESULT

Council was involved in

a number of stakeholder
partnerships in delivering
on this Objective, but

at this stage work is in
progress as to how this
indicator is to be compiled
given the number of
engagements that occur
across the financial year.

8 Program Reviews were
completed in 2016/17
with various benefits
achieved, including
improved; service levels,
customer service, and cost
savings. A new Continuous
Improvement Framework
was also endorsed, which
will suppart ongoing
improvement initiatives.

CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 16/17

Three internal audits were
conducted in 2016/17 in
line with the approved
Audit Committee Internal
Audit Plan. No major
issues were identified
with minor improvements
implemented as a result.
The Executive regularly
assess the Strategic Risks
which is also discussed
with the Audit Committee
to ensure the appropriate
management if these
risks are occurring and
to identify any emerging
risks. Council achieved a
high level of compliance
in the externally
audited Internal Controls
ssment.

Operating Surplus Ratio
9% (Target 0.5%-5%)

Net Financial Liabilities
Ratio 2% (Target less than
40%)

Asset Sustainability Ratio
133% (Target between
90%-110%)
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X

City of Salisbury

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Salisbury - a flourishing City with opportunity for all ’\,

iy oy

Salisbury
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City of Salisbury

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
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City of Salisbury

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Certification of Financial Statements

We have been authorised by the Council to certify the financial statements in their final form.

In our opinion:

* the accompanying financial statements comply with the Local Government Act 1999, Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and Australian Accounting Standards,

* the financial statements present a true and fair view of the Council’s financial position at 30 June
2017 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the financial year,

2 Council provide a reasonable assurance that the Council's
te and reliable and were effective throughout the financial year,

* internal controls implemented b
financial records are comple

* the financial statements accurat Council’s accounting and other records.

John Harry
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

= 1119/ %07
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City of Salisbury
General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Understanding Council's Financial Statements
Introduction About the Notes to the Financial Statements
Each year, individual Local Governments across The Notes to the Financial Statements provide
South Australia are required to present a set of greater detail and additional information on the four
audited Financial Statements to their Council and  Primary Financial Statements.
Community.
About the Auditor's Reports
About the Certification of Financial Statements
Council's Financial Statements are required to be
The Financial Statements must be certified by the  audited by external accountants (that generally
Chief Executive Officer and Mayor as "presenting a  specialise in Local Government).
true and fair view" of the Council's finangial results
for the year, and ensuring both respo forand In South Australia, the Auditor provides an audit
ownership of the Financial Stat cross  report, with an opinion on whether the Financial
Council. Statements present fairly the Council's financial
performance and position.
What you will find in the Statements
About the Independence Certificates
The Financial Statements set out the financial
performance, financial position and cash flows inancial Statements are also required to
Council for the financial year ended 30 June 2017. d Certificates by both the Council and
that the Council's Auditor has
The format of the Financial Statements is standard ependence in accordance with the
across all South Australian Councils and complies  requirements of ocal Government Act 1999 and
with both the accounting and reporting requirements the Local nt (Financial Management)
of Australian Accounting Standards and the  Regulation 11.
requirements as set down in the South Australia
Model Financial Statements.
Who uses the Financial Statements?
The Financial Statements incorporate four "primary"
financial statements: The Financial Statements are publicly available
. documents and are used by (but not limited to)
1. A Statement of Comprehensive Income Councillors, Residents and Ratepayers, Employees,
A summary of Council's financial performance for the ~ SuPpliers, Contractors, Customers, the Local
year, listing all income and expenses. Government Association of South Australia, the SA
Local Government Grants Commission, and
2. A Balance Sheet Financiers including Banks and other Financial
Institutions.
A snapshot as at 30 June 2017 of Council's financial
pesition including its assets and liabilities. Under the Local Government Act 1999 the Financial
. Statements must be made available at the principal
3. A Statement of Changes in Equity office of the Council and on Council's website.
The overall change for the year (in dollars) of
Council's "net wealth".
4. A Statement of Cash Flows
Indicates where Council's cash came from and
where it was spent.
page 2
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City of Salisbury

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30 June 2017
L ! . e NotES L2007 2018,
Income

Rates Revenues 2a 91,438 87,704
Statutory Charges 2b 3,026 2,989
User Charges 2¢ 5,749 5,629
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 29 17,401 11,583
Invesiment Income 2 562 518
Reimbursements 2 547 540
Other Income of 1,343 1,210
Net Gain - Equity Accounted Council Businesses e - 707
Total Income 120,066 110,880
Expenses

Employee Costs 3a 34,883 34,651
Materials, Contracts and Other Expen: 3b 48,418 45,713
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairmen 3¢ 24,781 23,802
Finance Costs 3¢ 1,106 1,255
Net Loss - Equity Accounted Council Businesse I |- 83 1
Total Expenses 109,271 105,422
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 10,795 5,458
Asset Disposal and Fair Value Adjustments 4 4,073 (1,588)
Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 29 1,935 1,437
Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 2 3,741 3,379
Net Surplus / (Deficit) * 20,544 8,686
Other Comprehensive Income

Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to operating result

Changes in Revaluation Surplus - |, PP&E 9 13,431 6,011
Total Other Comprehensive Income 13,431 6,011
Total Comprehensive Income 33,975 14,697
" Transferred to Equity Statement
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

City of Salisbury

Statement of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2017
$'000 L Notes 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 53 28,576 16,816
Trade and Other Receivables 5b 5,848 5,042
Inventories 5¢ 5,144 10,256
Total Current Assets 39,568 32,114
Non-Current Assets
Financial Assets 6a 1,327 1,025
Equity Accounted Investments in Council Businesses 6b 3,946 4,030
Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment 7a 1,354,629 1,328,507
Other Non-Current Assets 6c 17,401 17,903
Total Non-Current Assets 1,377,303 1,351,465
TOTAL ASSETS 1,416,871 1,383,579
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 8a 13,674 12,821
Borrowings 8b 2,350 2,560
Provisions 8¢ 7,241 6,918
Total Current Liabilities 23,265 22,299
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 12,717 14,580
Provisions 8c 1,814 1,600
Total Non-Current Liabilities 14,531 16,180
TOTAL LIABILITIES 37,796 38,479
Net Assets 1,379,075 1,345,100
EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus 333,969 309,864
Asset Revaluation Reserves 9a 1,016,925 1,003,494
Other Reserves 9 28,181 31,742
Total Council Equity 1,379,075 1,345,100
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report
City of Salisbury
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Asset )

Accumulated Revaluation Other Total
$'000 R Notes  Surplus Reserve Reserves Equity
2017
Balance at the end of previous reporting period 309,864 1,003,494 31,742 1,345,100
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 20,544 - - 20,544
Other Comprehensive income
- Gain {Loss) on Revaluation of | PP&E 7a - 13,431 - 13,431
Other Comprehensive Income - 13,431 - 13,431
Total Comprehensive Income 20,544 13,431 P 33,975
Transfers between Reserves 3,561 B (3,561) -
Balance at the end of period 333,969 1,016,925 28,181 1,379,075

Asset

Accumulated Revaluation Other Total
$'000 Notes  Surplus Reserve  Reserves Equity
2016
Balance at the end of previous reporting period 007 997,483 27,913 1,330,403
Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 686 - - 8,686
Other Comprehensive Income
= Gain (Loss) cn Revaluation of |, PP&E 7a 6.011 - 6.011
Other Comprehensive Income - 6,011 - 6,011
Total Comprehensive Income 8,686 6,011 - 14,697
Transfers between Reserves (3,829) - 3,829 -
Balance at the end of period 309,864 1,003,494 31,742 1,345,100
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

City of Salisbury

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2017

$ ‘000 Noles 2017 2016
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts
Rates Receipts 91,245 87,773
Statutory Charges 3,124 2,989
User Charges 4,881 6,084
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions (operating purpose) 17,811 12,363
Investment Receipts 557 525
Reimbursements 602 594
Other Receipts 9,018 7,598
Payments
Payments to Employees (35,233) (34,337)
Payments for Materials, Contracts and Othier Expenses (54,142) (55,321)
Finance Payments (1,108) (1,255)
Net Cash provided by (or used.i_r-ﬁ 11b “‘“‘3%}57_ N Ei’.615
Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Receipts
Amounts Received Specifically for New/Upgraded Assets 1,935 1,437
Sale of Replaced Assets 479 465
Net Disposal of Investment Securities 177 -
Sale of Real Estate Developments 11,359 7,782
Repayments of Loans by Community Groups 19 3
Payments
Expenditure on Renewal/Replacement of Assets (25,092) (13,750)
Expenditure on New/Upgraded Assets (10,610) (18,837)
Development of Real Estate for Sale (691) (4,358)
Loans Made to Community Groups (500) -
Net Cash provi;'.l_;é l;; {or used in) Investing Activities (22,924) (27,258)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Receipts
Proceeds from Borrowings 500 -
Pay]!!ents
Repayments of Borrowings (2,573) (2,399)
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities - (Z:Dﬁir (2,39“9")-‘
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held 11,_'?6('1 . (2,644)
plus: Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period 1 16,816 19,460
Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of period 1 28,576 16,816
Additional Information:
plus: Investments on hand - end of year 6a 831 988
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments 29,407 17,804
page 6
City of Salisbury Page 121

Resources and Governance Committee Agenda - 20 November 2017




3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report
City of Salisbury
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Contents of the Notes accompanying the Financial Statements
Note Details Page
1 Significant Accounting Policies 8
2 Income 14
3 Expenses 19
4 Asset Disposal and Fair Value Adjustments 21
Current Assets
5a  Cash and Cash Equivalents 22
5b  Trade and Other Receivables 22
5¢ Inventories 22
Non-Current Assets
6a Financial Assets 23
6b  Equity Accounted Invest in Council's Businesses 23
6¢c  Other Non-Current As: 23
Fixed Assets
Ta Infrastructure, Property, n ent 25
7b  Valuation of Infrastructure, Propert nd Equipment 26
Liabilities
8a  Trade and Other Payables 33
8b  Borrowings 33
8¢ Provisions 33
Reserves
9a  Asset Revaluation Reserve 34
9b  Other Reserves 34
10  Assets Subject to Restrictions 36
11 Reconciliation to Statement of Cashflows 37
12a  Functions 38
12b  Components of Functions 39
13 Financial Instruments 40
14 Commitments for Expenditure A4
15  Financial Indicators 45
16 Uniform Presentation of Finances 47
17 Operating Leases 48
18  Superannuation 49
19 Interests in Other Entities 50
20  Contingencies and Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet 53
21 Events After the Balance Sheet Date 54
22 Related Party Transactions 55
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report
City of Salisbury
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The principal accounting policies adopted by Council The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
in the preparation of these financial statements are complexity, or areas where assumptions and
set out below. estimates are significant to the financial statements
are specifically referred to in the relevant sections of
These policies have been consistently applied to all these Notes.
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
1.4 Rounding
1 Basis of Preparation All amounts in the financial statements have been
rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).
11 Compliance with Australian Accounting
Standards
2 The Local Government Reporting Entity
This general purpose financial repo been
prepared on a going concern i The City of Salishury is incorporated under the South
historical cost convention in Australian Local Government Act 1999 and has its
Australian Accounting Standards z principal place of business at 12 James Street,
not-for-profit entities, other g Salisbury. These financial statements include the
pronouncements of the Australian Council's direct operations and all entities through
Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant Se which Council controls resources to carry on its
Australian legislation. nctions.
AASB 2016-4 Recoverable Amount of Non e Recognition
Cash-Generating Specialised Assets of Not-for-Profit
Entities has been adopted early in the preparation of easured at the fair value of the
these financial reports. eceived or receivable. Income is
he Council obtains control over the
This Standard removes the requirement for prising the income, or when the amount
impairment  testing of non-cash generating due titutes an enforceable debt, whichever first
specialised assets that are carried at fair value. The occurs
early adoption of this Standard has not resulted in
any changes to any amounts disclosed in these Where grants, contributions and donations
reports. recognised as incomes during the reporting period
were obtained on the condition that they be
The financial report was authorised for issue by expended in a particular manner or used over a
certificate under regulation 14 of the Local particular period, and those conditions were
Government (Financial Management) Regulations undischarged as at the reporting date, the amounts
2011 dated 11 October 2017. subject to those undischarged conditions are
disclosed in these notes. Also disclosed is the
1.2 Historical Cost Convention amount of grants, confributions and receivables
recognised as incomes in a previous reporting period
Except as stated below, these financial statements which were obtained in respect of the Council's
have been prepared in accordance with the historical operations for the current reporting period.
cost convention.
In recent years the payment of untied financial
1.3 Critical Accounting Estimates assistance grants has varied from the annual
allocation. On 30 June 2015, Council received two
The preparation of financial statements in conformity quarters of the 2015/16 grant amounting to
with Australian Accounting Standards requires the $4,065,160. There were no untied financial
use of certain critical accounting estimates, and assistance grants paid in advance during the
requires management to exercise its judgement in 2015/16 reporting period. However on 09 June 2017,
applying Council's accounting policies. Council received two quarters of the 2017/18 grant
Page 8
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

amounting to $3,995,448. The advanced payments
received are summarised in the below table:

Payment
Received in
Advance
$°000
2014/15 4,065 | Relates to 2015/16
2015/16 Nil
201617 3,995 | Relates to 2017/18

Because these grants are untied, the Australian
Accounting Standards require that pa ents be

had the grants been paid in the ye
were allocated.

The Operating Surplus Ratio disclosed in Not
has also been calculated after adjusting for,
distortions resulting from the differences between
actual grants received and the grants entitlements
allocated.

4 Cash, Cash Equivalents and other
Financial Instruments

Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible
to cash on hand at Council's option with an
insignificant risk of changes in value with a maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Receivables for rates and annual charges are
secured over the subject land, and bear interest at
rates determined in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1999. Other receivables are
generally unsecured and do not bear interest.

All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date
and adequate allowance made for amounts the
receipt of which is considered doubtful.

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value
at the date of recognition. A detailed statement of the
accounting policies applied to financial instruments
forms part of Note 13.

64 CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 10/17

5 Inventories

Inventories held in respect of stores have been
valued by using the weighted average cost on a
continual basis, after adjustment for loss of service
potential. Inventories held in respect of business
undertakings have been valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

5.1 Real Estate Assets Developments

Real Estate Assets developments have been
classified as Inventory in accordance with AASB 102
Inventories and are valued at the lower of cost or net
realisable value. Cost includes the costs of
acquisition, development, borrowing and other costs
incurred on financing of that acquisition and up to the
time of sale. Any amount by which cost exceeds the
net realisable value has been recognised as an
expense.

evenues arising from the sale of property are
recognised in the operating statement when
ement is completed.

Estate Held for Resale

ot acquired for development, but which
has decided fo sell as surplus to
requirements, are recognised at the carrying value at
the time of that decision.

6 Infrastructure, Property, Plant &

Equipment
6.1 Initial Recognition
All assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets

acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost
is determined as fair value at the date of acquisition.
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report
City of Salisbury
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
All non-current assets purchased or constructed are these reviews are conducted either internally or
capitalised as the expenditure is incurred and externally through the completion of asset audits and
depreciated as soon as the asset is held “ready for valuations. As a result of these reviews, the following
use”. Cost is determined as the fair value of the changes in accounting estimates have occurred that
assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to will impact the future depreciation of Councils
the acquisition, including architects' fees and infrastructure assets.
engineering design fees and all other costs incurred.
The cost of non-current assets constructed by the * Residual values for Building component
Council includes the cost of all materials used in assets has been removed.
construction, direct labour on the project and an = The useful lives for Building component
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed assets have been adjusted to between 10
overhead. and 80 years.
= The useful lives of Road Seal assets have
Capital works still in progress at balanteidate are been adjusted to between 20 years (for
recognised as other non-curre ts  and higher use roads such as Collector roads)
transferred to infrastructure, prope t and and 40 vears (for lower use roads such as
equipment when completed ready fo Residential roads).
= The useful lives of Road Base assets have
6.2 Materiality been adjusted to between 60 years (for
higher use roads such as Collector roads)
Assets with an economic life in excess of one and 150 years (for lower use roads such as
are only capitalised where the cost of acqui Residential roads).
exceeds materiality thresholds established by The useful lives of Road Sub-Base assets
Council for each type of asset. In determining (and in ve been adjusted to between 180 years
annually reviewing) such thresholds, regard is had to ( higher use roads such as Collector
the nature of the asset and its estimated service life. roa and 300 years (for lower use roads
Examples of capitalisation thresholds applied during su esidential roads).
the year are disclosed in Note 7. No capitalisation . useful life of Concrete and Block Paved
threshold is applied to the acquisition of land or ootpaths has been adjusted to 80 years.
interests in land. = The useful life of Kerbing and Medians has
been adjusted to between 180 and 300
6.3 Subsequent Recognition years to align with the renewal of Road Sub-
Base assets as part of a full road
All material asset classes are revalued on a regular reconstruction.
basis such that the carrying values are not materially = The useful lives of Drainage component
different from fair value. Significant uncertainties assets (such as Headwalls, Box Culverts
exist in the estimation of fair value of a number of etc.) have been adjusted to between 20 and
asset classes including land, buildings and 100 years.
associated structures and infrastructure. Further = The useful life of Concrete Sports Surfaces
detail of these uncertainties and of existing has been adjusted to 30 years.
valuations, methods and valuers are provided at = The useful life of Street Trees has been
Note 7. adjusted to 50 years.
6.4 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets Council has deemed it impractical to estimate the
future year impact of these changes.
Other than land, all infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment assets recognised are systematically Major depreciation periods for each class of asset
depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line are shown in Note 7. Depreciation periods for
basis which, in the opinion of Council, best reflects infrastructure assets have been estimated based on
the consumption of the service potential embodied in the best information available to Council, but
those assets. appropriate records covering the entire life cycle of
these assets are not available, and extreme care
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual should be used in interpreting financial information
values of classes of assets are reviewed annually; based on these estimates.
Page 10
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

6.5 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets have been accounted for in
accordance with the requirements of AASB 138
Intangible Assels. An ilem is recognised as an
intangible if it meets the definition of an intangible
asset, it is probable that future economic benefits will
flow to Council and the cost of the asset can be
reliably measured.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment yearly, or
when there is objective evidence or an indication that
these assets may be impaired. Further
determinations on useful lives are revie nually.

6.6 Impairment

Assets that are subject to depreciatio
for impairment whenever events or ¢ £
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount ma
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recog
for the amount by which the asset's carrying ame
exceeds its recoverable amount (which is the higher
of the present value of future cash inflows or value in
use).

For assets whose future economic benefits are not
dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and
where the future economic benefits would be
replaced if Council were deprived thereof, the value
in use is the depreciated replacement cost. In
assessing impairment for these assets, a rebuttable
assumption is made that the current replacement
cost exceeds the original cost of acquisition.

Where an asset that has been revalued is
subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset
against such amount as stands to the credit of that
class of assels in Asset Revaluation Reserve, any
excess being recognised as an expense.

7 Payables
7.1 Goods & Services

Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the
supply of goods and services and are recognised as
liabilities when the goods and services are received.
Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month
of invoice. No interest is payable on these amounts.

66 CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 10/17

7.2 Payments Received in Advance & Deposits

Amounts other than grants received from external
parties in advance of service delivery, and security
deposits held againsi possible damage io Council
assets, are recognised as liabilities until the service
is delivered or damage reinstated, or the amount is
refunded as the case may be.

8 Borrowings

Borrowings are carried at their principal amounts
which represent the present value of future cash
flows associated with servicing the debt. Interest is
accrued over the period to which it relates, and is
recorded as part of “Payables”.

Employee Benefits

laries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be
paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows
(including payroll based oncosts) to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Present values are calculated using
government guaranteed securities rates with similar
maturity terms.
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City of Salisbury
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
No accrual is made for sick leave as Council * Except in relation to input taxed acfivities,
experience indicates that, on average, sick leave revenues and operating expenditures exclude
taken in each reporting period is less than the GST receivable and payable.
entittement accruing in that period, and this = Non-current assets and capital expenditures
experience is expected to recur in future reporting inciude GST net of any recoupment.
periods. Council does not make payment for untaken = Amounts included in the Statement of Cash
sick leave. Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.
9.2 Superannuation
13 New accounting standards and UIG
The Council makes employer superannuation Interpretations
contributions in respect of its employees to the
Statewide Superannuation Scheme. The Scheme In the current year, Council adopted all of the new
has two types of membership, eac hich is and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by
funded differently. Council also makes butions the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB)
to other Superannuation Schen d by that are relevant to its operations and effective for
employees under the ‘Choice of Fu the current reporting period. The adoption of the
new and revised Standards and Interpretations has
No changes in accounting policy have not resulted in any material changes to Council's
during either the current or previous repo accounting policies.
periods. Details of the accounting policies applied
and Council's involvement with the schemes ity of Salisbury has not applied any Australian
reported in Note 18. ing Standards and Interpretations that have
but are not yet effective.
10 Leases cil has applied AASB 124 Related
Party Dis for the first time. As a result
Lease arrangements have been accounted for in Council disclosed more information about related
accordance with Australian Accounting Standard parties‘and transactions with those related parties.
AASB 117. In respect of operating leases, where the This information is presented in Note 22.
lessor substantially retains all of the risks and
benefits incident to ownership of the leased items, Apart from the AASB's listed below, there are no
lease payments are charged fo expense over the other amended Australian Accounting Standards or
lease term. Interpretations which were issued at the date of
authorisation of the financial report, but have future
commencement dates, that are likely to have a
11 Equity Accounted Council Businesses material impact on the financial statements.
Council participates in cooperative arrangements
with other Councils for the provision of services and Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
facilities. Council's interests in  cooperative on or after 1 January 2018
arrangements, which are only recognised if material,
are accounted for in accordance with AASB 128 and * AASB 9 Financial Instruments
set out in detail in Note 19.
« AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers
12 GST Implications
Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting on or after 1 January 2019
for the Goods & Services Tax”
« AASB 16 Leases
* Receivables and Creditors include GST
receivable and payable.
Page 12
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

14 Comparative Figures

To ensure comparability with the current reporting
period’s figures, some comparative period line items
and amounts may have been reclassified or
individually reported for the first time within these
financial statements and/or the notes.

15 Disclaimer

Nothing contained within these statem may be
taken to be an admission of any li to any
person under any circumstance.
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2. Income

$'000 - . __ Noles 2017 2016
(a). Rates Revenues
General Rates
General Rates 90,582 86,878
Less: Mandatory Rebates (1,102) (1,056)
Less: Discretionary Rebates, Remissions and Write Offs (319) (305)
Total General Rates 89,161 85,517
Other Rates (including Service Charges)
Natural Resource Management Levy 1,875 1,770
Salisbury Town Centre Separate 160 160
Globe Derby Separate Rate 6 6
Mawson Centre Carparking Separate - 19
Total Other Rates 2,041 1,955
" Mawson Lakes Carparking Separate Rate was abolished b | Resolution 0981/2016 in March 2016.
Other Charges
Penalties for Late Payment 236 232
Total Other Charges 236 232
Total Rates Revenues 91,438 87,704
(b). Statutory Charges
Development Act Fees 873 862
Town Planning Fees 491 429
Animal Registration Fees and Fines 1,088 1,106
Parking Fines and Expiation Fees 296 316
Other Licences, Fees and Fines 278 276
Total Statutory Charges 3,026 2,989
(c). User Charges
Cemetery Fees 579 452
Property Leases 790 655
Waste Disposal Fees 1,549 1,336
Water Supply 1,674 2,097
Aged and Disability Services 528 469
Sundry 629 620
Total User Charges 5,749 5,629
page 14
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2. Income (continued)
50060 ) Notes 2017 2015
(d). Investment Income

Interest on Investments

- Local Government Finance Authority 195 189
- Banks and Other 354 327
- Loans to Community Groups 13 2
Total Investment Income 562 518
(e). Reimbursements

Contract Maintenance 154 228
Other 393 312
Total Reimbursements 547 540
(f). Other Income A

Insurance and Other Recoupments - Infrastructure, IPP&E 10 14
Rebates Received 767 698
Sundry 566 498
Total Other Income 1,343 1,210
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2. Income (continued)

$'000 Noles 2017 2016

Lomi e mnna

(g). Grants, Subsidies, Contributions

Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets e 1,935 1,437
Total Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assets 1,935 1,437
Other Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 13,408 11,583
Individually Significant Item - Advance Grants Commission Payment (refer below) 3,995 -
Total Grants, Subsidies, Contributions 19,336 13,020
The functions to which these grants rel shown in Note 12.

(i) Sources of grants

Commonwealth Government 2,398 3,969
State Government 15,718 7,993
Other 1,220 1,058
Total 19,336 13,020

(ii) Individually Significant ltems
Advanced Grant Commission Grant Recognised as Incom 3,995 E

On 9 June 2017, Council received payment of the first two instalments of the 2017/18 Financial Assistance Grant,
totalling $3,995k and combrised of $3,210k in general purpose funding and $785k in untied local road funding. This has
materially increased Council's operating results in the current year, as these amounts are recognised as income upon
receipt. Potential material effects will be experienced when the timing of these grant payments are once again restored
to a normal schedule.

page 16

City of Salisbury Page 131
Resources and Governance Committee Agenda - 20 November 2017



3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report
City of Salisbury
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 2. Income (continued)
$ ‘000 Notes 2017 2016
(h). Conditions over Grants and Contributions
Grants and contributions which were obtained on the condition that they
be expended for specified purposes or in a future period, but which are
not yet expended in accordance with those conditions, are as follows:
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 981 1,848
Less:
Expended during the current period fro ues
recognised in previous reporting peri
Roads Infrastructure (280) (394)
Green Trails (279) (78)
St Kilda/Robinson Road - Traffic Manageme (134) -
Crime Prevention Grant (100) -
St Kilda CCTV Renewal - 16/17 (41) -
Digital Growth Program (33) (50)
Economic Regional Collaboration - Business Taskforce (28) (60)
Building Safe Communities (26) -
Mawson Lakes Signs (24) =
Resilient Salisbury (11) (99)
Aged Friendly Retail Project (8) (7)
Playford Business Services (5) (87)
Youth Network Grant (5) -
Waterwatch General Program (5) -
St Kilda Playground Renewal - (363)
Parafield Soccer - (200)
Pine Lakes Aquifer Storage/Storage Tank/Booster - (32)
OPAL (Obesity Prevention and Lifestyle) Program - (26)
Healthy Communities Initiative - (16)
Gawler Street Salisbury Safety Initiative - (9)
Indigenous Capability and Development Program - (8)
LEAP Program - (5)
Other (2) (98)
Subtotal (981) (1,532)
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 2. Income (continued)

_$ ‘coo R Notes 2017 . 2_(116
Plus:

Amounis recognised as revenues in this reporting

period but not yet expended in accordance with the conditions

Economic Regional Collaboration - Business Taskforce 137 28
Digital Growth Program 128 33
Aged Friendly SA Grant 17 =
Aboriginal Sports Development 10 -
Resilient Salisbury ] 11
Duke of Edinburgh -

Fairbanks Drive/Byron Bay Drive Traffic
Youth Network Grant 5
Diment Road Burton/Direk Upgrade - 280
St Kilda/Robinson Road - Traffice Manage - 134
Crime Prevention Grant - 100
St Kilda CCTV Renewal - 16/17 - 41
Building Safe Communities - 26
Waterwatch General Program - 5
Other 5 2
Subtotal 325 665
Unexpended at the close of this reporting period 325 981
Net increase (decrease) in assets subject to conditions
in the current reporting period (656) (867)
(i). Physical Resources Received Free of Charge
Land and Improvements 602 2,280
Roads, Bridges and Footpaths 2,237 710
Stormwater Drainage 902 389
Total Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 3,741 3,379
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 3. Expenses

5006 Notes 2017 2016

B e . S— e R

(a). Employee Costs

Salaries and Wages 28,225 28,162
Employee Leave Expense 5,276 5,049
Superannuation - Defined Contribution Plan Contributions 18 1,242 1,261
Superannuation - Defined Benefit Plan Contributions 18 1,766 1,787
Workers' Compensation Insurance 1,545 1,529
Less: Capitalised and Distributed Costs (3,171) (3,137)

Total Operating Employee Costs 34,883 34,651

end of reporting period) 407 408

)

Total Number of Employees (full time &

(b). Materials, Contracts and Other E&p

(i) Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration

- Auditing the Financial Reports 59 43
Bad and Doubtful Debts 12 4
Elected Members' Expenses 467 468
Election Expenses 121 39
Operating Lease Rentals - Cancellable Leases _ 748 957
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 1,407 1,511
(ii) Other Materials, Contracts and Expenses

Contractors 33,221 30,400
Energy 3,785 3,702
Parts, Accessories and Consumables 3,027 2,982
Sundry 3,009 2,951
Levies Paid to Government - NRM Levy 1,874 1,738
Insurance 926 994
Water Rates 592 870
Levies - Other 330 309
Legal Expenses 247 256
Subtotal - Other Material, Contracts and Expenses 47,011 44,202
Total Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses 48,418 45,713
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 3. Expenses (continued)

r$ ‘000 o Motes 2017 2016

(c). Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment

(i) Depreciation and Amortisation

Land Improvements 4,565 4177

Buildings and Other Structures 1,293 1,262

Infrastructure 16,954 16,491

Plant and Equipment 1,760 1,725

Library Books 209 147

Subtotal 24,781 23,802

(d). Finance Costs

Interest on Loans 1,106 1,255

Total Finance Costs 1,106 1,255
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report
City of Salisbury
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 4. Asset Disposal and Fair Value Adjustments
$ '000 Notes 2017 2016
Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment
(i) Assets Renewed or Directly Replaced
Proceeds from Disposal 479 465
Less: Carrying Amount of Assets Sold B (3,231) (5,065)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal (2,752) (4,600)
(ii) Assets Surplus to Requirements
Carrying Amount of Assets Sold o - (83) (82)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal (53) (82)
Real Estate Development A
Proceeds from Disposal 11,359 7,782
Less: Carrying Amount of Assets Sold o (4,501) (4,688)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal 6,858 3,094
Other Financial Assets
Proceeds from Disposal 177 -
Less: Carrying Amount of Assets Sold (157) -
Gain (Loss) on Disposal 20 -
Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal or Revaluation of Assets 4,073 (1,588)
Upon review of the prior year comparatives, it was noted that there were classification issues relating to
infrastructure asset disposals. Specifically these had been incorrectly classified as Asset Surplus to Requirements, rather
than Assets Renewed or Directly Replaced. This classification issue has been resolved and the current year and prior year
comparatives now reflect the true nature of the asset disposals. This reclassification does not affect other components of the
Annual Financial Statements.
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 5. Current Assets

$'000 Notes 2017 2016

(a). Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand at Bank 688 2,388
Short Term Deposits and Bills, etc. 27,888 14,428
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 28,576 16,816

(b). Trade and Other Receivables

Rates - General and Other 2,751 2,390
Accrued Revenues 46 41
Debtors - General 2,331 1,128
GST Recoupment 274 1,061
Prepayments 417 418
Loans to Community Organisations 29 4

Total Trade and Other Receivables 5,848 5,042
(c). Inventories A

Stores and Materials 250 244
Real Estate Developments’ 4,855 9,986
Cemetery Plinths and Vaults 39 26
Total Inventories 5,144 10,256

' Real Estate Development Inventories have been reclassified between Non-Current and Current Assets for both
the current reporting period and the prior year comparatives to correctly reflect the timing of these projects.
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City of Salisbury
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 6. Non-Current Assets
5 0D ~ Notes 2017 2016
(a). Financial Assets
Receivables
Council Rates Postponement Scheme 22 19
Loans to Community Organisations 474 18
Total Receivables 496 37
Other Financial Assets (Investments)
Mortgages over Property - Affordable Housing Scheme 831 988
Total Other Financial Assets (Investm ) 831 988
Total Financial Assets 1,327 1,025
(b). Equity Accounted Investments in
Council Businesses
Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority 19 3,858 3,929
Council Solutions 19 88 101
Total Equity Accounted Investments in Council 3,946 4,030
(c). Other Non-Current Assets
(i) Inventories
Real Estate Developments 1,846 1,842
Total Inventories 1,846 1,842
(ii) Other
Capital Works-in-Progress 15,389 16,061
Intangible Assets 166 -
Total Other 15,555 16,061
Total Other Non-Current Assets 17,401 17,903
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 6. Non-Current Assets (continued)

$'000 Notes 2017 2016

Real Estate Developments - Current and Non-Current

(Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value)

Residential 6,701 11,828

Total Real Estate for Resale 6,701 11,828

Represented by:

Acquisition Costs 3,886 5,926

Development Costs 2,815 5,902

Total Real Estate of Resale 6,701 11,828

Apportionment of Real Estate Devglo

Current Assets 4,855 9,986

Non-Current Assets 1,846 1,842
6,701 11,828
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3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment and
Investment Property

S 'oo00

Valuation of Assets

Council measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis after initial recognition:
- Land

- Land Improvements

- Infrastructure

- Buildings and Other Structures

Council does not subsequently measu iabilities at fair value on a recurring basis, or any assets or liabilities
at fair value on a non-recurring basi

Information on Valuations

a) Fair Value Hierarchy

information according to the relevant level in the
0 one of three possible levels based on the

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires the discl
fair value hierarchy. This hierarchy categorises fair value m

lowest level that a significant input can be characterised in tined below:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Measurements based on quoted Measurements based o uts Measurements based on
prices (unadjusted) in active other than guoted prices included unobservable inputs for the
markets for identical assets that in Level 1 that are observable for asset.
the entity can access at the the asset, either directly or
measurement date. indirectly.

The fair value of assets that are not fraded in an active market is determined using one or more valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise, to the extent possible, the use of observable market data. If all significant inputs
required to measure fair value are observable, the asset is included in Level 2. If one or more significant inputs are not
based on observable market data, the asset of liability is included in Level 3.

b} Valuation Techniques

Council selects valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available
to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily depends upon the specific characteristics
of the asset being measured. The valuation techniques selected by Council are consistent with one or more of the
following valuation approaches:
- Market Approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving
identical or similar assets.
- Income Approach converts estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single current (ie.
discounted) value.
- Cost Approach reflects the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity.
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City of Salisbury
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment and
Investment Property (continued)
$000 R S .
Each valuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use when pricing
the asset, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique, Council gives priority to those
techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are
developed using market data (such as publicly available information on actual transactions) and refiect the
assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally use when pricing the asset or liability are considered observable,
whereas inputs for which market data is not available and therefore are developed using the best information available
about such assumptions are considered unobservable.
¢) Capitalisation Thresholds
Capitalisation Thresholds used by C& entative range of assets are shown below. No capitalisation
threshold is applied to the acquisition o
Office Furniture and Equipment $5,000
Plant and Light Vehicles $5,000
Buildings - new construction/extensions $10,000
Park and Playground Furniture and Equipment
Road construction and reconstruction
Paving and footpaths, Kerb and Gutter
Drains and Culverts
Reticulation extensions
Sidelines and household connections $5,000
Artworks $5,000
d) Estimated Useful Lives
Useful lives are estimated for each individual asset. In estimating useful lives, regard is had to technical and
commercial obsolescence, as well as legal and other limitations on continued use. The range of useful lives for a
representative range of assets is shown below, although individual assets may have an estimated total useful life of
greater or lesser amount:
Plant, Furniture and Equipment:
Office Equipment 3 to 10 years
Office Furniture 3to 10 years
Vehicles and Road-making Equipment 2 to 20 years
Other Plant and Equipment 3 to 20 years
Building and Other Structures:
Building Components 10 to 80 years
Playground Equipment 15 to 25 years
Benches, Seats, etc 10 to 15 years
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment and
Investment Property (continued)

$ 000
Infrastructure:

Roads - Seal 20 to 40 years

Roads - Base 60 to 150 years

Roads - Sub-Base 180 to 300 years

Unsealed Roads 5to 10 years

Bridges 100 years

Footpaths 8 to 80 years

Kerb, Gutter and Medians 50 to 300 years

Drainage Pipes 80 to 100 years

Culverts, Headwalls and Ji 40 to 100 years

Dams and Reservoirs 400 years

Bores 75 years

Reticulation Pipes - PVC 60 to 80 years

Pumps and Telemetry 10 to 50 years

Other Assets:

Library Books 3107 years

Artworks/Local History Indefinite
€) Table of Fair Values 2016/17

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000s $'000s $'000s $'000s
Land 409,641 - 409,641
Land Improvements - 170,588 170,588
Buildings and Other Structures - 81,408 81,408
Infrastructure - 1,154,166 1,154,166
Total 409,641 1,406,162 1,815,803
f) Disclosed Fair Value Measurements
Asset Category Fair Value Valuation Fair Value
Land 2 Market Value $409,641
Valuations of assets in this category are undertaken using the State Valuer Generals Site Values.
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment and
Investment Property (continued)

v S i PR s 2

3000

e - e

Asset Category Fair Value Valuation Fair Value
Land Improvements 3 Cost Approach $170,588

Valuations of assets in this category are undertaken via one of three methods:

a. Independent valuations are provided by Tonkin Consulting using a methodology that utilises observable Council specific
contract rates to derive a unit rate used to calculate a depreciated replacement cost for each asset. Assets valued via this
method include Footpaths, Kerbing and Carpark Pavement/Seals all situated on Council Reserves.

ing Index (LGPI). Assets valued via this method include Fencing, Irrigation

b. Revalued using the Local Government Pri
Facilities, Reserve Furniture, Landscaping and Other Structures all

Equipment, Playgrounds, Kerbing, Sports
situated on Council Reserves.

ervable rates and cost information from their extensive
is method include all those associated with Councils Recycled

knowledge across the water indusiry. Asset:
, Pumps, Bores, Valves, Electrical and Computer

Stormwater Business Unit, which includes assets s

Equipment. In 2015/16 and 2016/17 an independent valuat: the current depreciated replacement cost for these
assets was undertaken using an ASR Asset Price Inde kin Consulting, derived from references to various
construction guides (such as Rawlinsons Australian Construgtion baok).

Asset Category Fair Value Valu Fair Value
Buildings and Other Structures 3 Cos proach $81,408

Valuation of assets in this category are undertaken via the following method:

a. Independent valuation of the current depreciated replacement value and depreciated replacement cost for buildings at a
component level was undertaken by GHD for the year ending 30 June 2017 using a methodology that utilises observable
rates and cost information from their extensive knowledge across Building Infrastructure.
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment and
Investment Property (continued)

Asset Category Fair Value Valuation Fair Value
Infrastructure 3 Cost Approach $1,154,166

Valuation of assets in this category are undertaken via one of four methods:

a. Independent valuations are provided by Tonkin Consulting using a methodology that utilises observable Council specific
contract rates to derive a unit rate used to calculate a depreciated replacement cost for each asset. Assets valued via this
method include Footpaths, Kerbing, Carpark Pavements/Seals, Road Pavement/Seals and Drainage Pipes/Pits all
situated on Council Roads.

and Assetic in 2016/17 (as sub-consultant to IMG) using a methodology
Lrates and rates and cost information from their extensive knowledge
s method include Road Surfaces and Road Pavements.

b. Independent valuations were provided

¢. Independent valuations were provided b @ 5/17 using a methodology that utilises observable rates and cost
information from their extensive knowledge o entis

Major Drainage Dams.

d. Revalued using the Local Government Pricing Ind Assets valued via this method include Bridges, Irrigation
Equipment on Roads, Road Furniture, Landscaping on Roa i

The requirements of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement have been applied to allvaluations undertaken since 1 July
2013. There has been no change in the valuation technique(s) used to cal e the fair values disclosed in the
financial statements from previous years.

Highest and best use
All of Council's non financial assets are considered as being utilised for the highest and best use unless market or

other factors suggest a different use by market participants would maximise the value of the asset.

Land Under Roads

Council being of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value sufficiently reliably to qualify for recognition; land
under roads has not been recognised in these reports. Land acquired for road purposes during the year is initially
recognised at cost, but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure.

Land

Much of the land under Councils care and control is Crown land or has been declared as community land under

the provision of the Local Government Act 1999. Other types of restrictions on the land may also apply. Valuations
of this land are based on the State Valuer Generals Site Values, which are based on observable sales in an active
market of similar properties with a similar land use on both vacant land and land with improvements. Adjustments to
these values are then made by the State Valuer General taking into consideration the highest and best use of the
property e.g. if there is a single house on the land but zoning would allow it to be divided for home units.
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment and
Investment Property (continued)

$7000 —
Infrastructure, Buildings and Land Improvements

As there is no known active market for the majority of infrastructure, building and land improvement assets owned by
Council, these assets have been valued at depreciated replacement cost using the Cost Approach. Upon revaluation,

the current replacement cost and accumulated depreciation are restated such that the difference (the current

depreciated replacement cost) represents the fair value of the asset determined in accordance with AASB 13 Fair

Value Measurement.

This method involves the determination of the current cost to construct the asset (or its modern engineering equivalent)
and then calculating the value of its remai ervice capacity (depreciated replacement cost). Council utilise a
number of observable and unobservab the calculation of these values which may include:

Observable Inputs:
- Council specific contract rates
- Recent construction costs for similar as
- Independent valuations

Unobservable Inputs/Estimates:

- Quantities of materials used

- Economic {Useful) Lives of assets

- Residual Value of assets

- Preserved Value of assets

- Pattern of consumption of an assets economic benefits

- Condition

- Obsolescence

- Impairment

- Industry construction pricing indexes e.g. Rawlinson's Construction Handbook and Cost Guide

- Other construction pricing indexes e.g. Local Government Pricing Index which is an index developed by
the Australian Bureau of Statistics and is prepared quarterly by the South Australia Centre for Economic
Studies and is based on price movements in the goods and services purchased by Local Governments.

Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets have been accounted for in accordance with the requirements of AASB 138 Infangible Assets.
Council has purchased, from the market in arm's length transactions, Water Licences that enable the harvesting and
sale of stormwater, and is of the opinion that these Water Licences meet the definition and recognition requirements of
Intangible Assets, specifically intangible assets with an indefinite useful life. Initial recognition of these Water Licences
is at cost, and after initial recognition they shall be carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Testing for impairment, in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets, will be undertaked annually and also
whenever there may be an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. Further the determination that these
Water Licences have an indefinite useful life will also be reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful life assessment.
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City of Salisbury
Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment and
Investment Property (continued)
EALLL — —
Street Trees
Council is of the opinion that street trees and tree screens are tangible assets that the City uses to support
the provision of environmental and recreational services to the community, and have an initial cost that can be reliably
measured (that is the cost of planting and establishment). It is therefore considered that costs relating to tree
plantings for street trees and tree screens only meet the recognition criteria of property, plant and equipment
and should be recognised as an asset.
Plant, Furniture and Equipment
Assets are carried at cost, less any accu ted depreciation and impairment losses,
Library Books
Library books are accounted for unde method. Library stock at 30 June 2017 is valued using
nominal values recommended by PLS (Puk ice). All new purchases are treated as replacement
items and the expense is classified as depreci pense is then adjusted by the movement in the calculated
value of the library stock.
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 8. Liabilities

2017 2017 2016 2016
$'000 Noles Current Non Current Current Non Current
(a). Trade and Other Payables
Goods and Services 12,203 - 10,621 -
Payments Received in Advance 1,207 - 1,109 -
Accrued Expenses - Employee Entitiements - - 723 -
Accrued Expenses - Other 56 - 98 -
Deposits, Retentions and Bonds 208 - 270 -
Total Trade and Other Payables 13,674 - 12,821 -
(b). Borrowings
Loans 2,350 12,717 2,560 14,580
Total Borrowings 2,350 12,717 2,560 14,580
Allinterest bearing liabilities are secured over the future
revenues of the Council ﬁ
(c). Provisions
Employee Entitlements (including oncosts) 7,241 26 6,918 1,522
Salisbury Memorial Park Maintenance Provision - 60 - S0
Mortgage Loss Provision - 28 - 28
Total Provisions 7,241 1,814 6,918 1,600

Salisbury
Memorial Park Modf:g:
Maintenance
Provision
Provision
Opening Balance 50 28
Additional Amounts Recognised 10 <
Closing Balance 60 28
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 9. Reserves
11712016 Increments Transfers Impairments 30/6/2017
§'000 (Decrernents).
(a). Asset Revaluation Reserve
Land - Other 302,447 13,499 - - 315,946
Land Improvements 17,542 1,353 - - 18,895
Buildings and Other Structures 34,572 (24,538) - - 10,034
Infrastructure 646,243 23,117 - - 669,360
Library Books 2,338 - - - 2,338
JV's / Associates - Other Comprehensive Income 352 - - - 352
Total Asset Revaluation Reserve 1,003,494 13,431 - - 1,016,925
Comparatives 997,483 6,011 - - 1,003,494
Thsto Tirs from Other )
$'000 016 Reserve Reserve Movements aoferz017
(b). Other Reserves
Plant Replacement Reserve - (53) (526) 350
Development and Public Infrastructure Reserve 1,587 14 (97) - 1,604
Open Space Reserve 1,7 (810) - 1,045
Car Parking Reserve 944 - - 958
Property Disposal Reserve 4,417 8 (6,654) - 3,901
Mausoleum Perpetual Care Reserve 690 82 - - 772
Salisbury Memorial Park Reserve 866 13 - - 879
Carried Forward Funds Reserve 18,657 16,791 (18,657) - 16,791
Salisbury Water Business Unit Reserve 1,881 = - - 1,881
Total Other Reserves 31,742 23,236 (26,271) (526) 28,181
Comparatives 27,913 23,585 (19,756) - 31,742
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 9. Reserves (continued)

s ‘000

i 4 BTt e e

PURPOSES OF RESERVES

Asset Revaluation Reserves
The assel revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements arising from changes in fair value of
non current assets (less any subsequent impairment losses, where applicable).

Plant Replacement Reserve
Used to fund the purchase of items of major plant.

signs and street trees specific o the
associated with drainage systems,

Open Space Reserve
For developer contributions towards the future ac n space areas.
Carpark Reserve
For the provision of car parking areas within the Salisbui
Town Centre.

tre le Farm Town Centre and Mawson Lakes

Property Disposal Reserve

To retain the proceeds of any property sales under the provision of Section 194 of the Local Government Act 1999
and subject to compliance with all legal requirements thereof, and to be utilised to repay debt or reduce future
borrowings.

Mausoleum Perpetual Care Fund Reserve
To provide maintenance for the mausoleum at Salisbury Memorial Park.

Salisbury Memorial Park Reserve
To fund future development work and maintenance at the Salisbury Memorial Park.

Carried Forward Funds Reserve
Used for unspent budget funds at the end of financial year that are to be carried forward for use in the following year.

Salisbury Water Business Unit Reserve

Funded from surpluses generated by Salisbury Water. Allocations are only to be made following a resolution of
Council and can only be utilised to fund either business development, asset renewal, offset losses or to distribute
dividends to Council.
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Note 10. Assets Subject to Restrictions

£'000 ) _ ) JMotes 2017 2016

The uses of the following assets are restricted, wholly or partially,

by legislation or other externally imposed requirements. The assets

are required to be utilised for the purposes for which control was
transferred to Council, or for which the revenues were originally obtained.

Cash and Financial Assets
Unexpended amounts received from Federal Government

Open Space Contributions 9 1,045 1,771
Developer Contributions 9 2,562 2,531
Unexpended Grants and Subsidy Fund 2 325 981
Total Cash and Financial Assets 3,932 5,283

infrastructure works in new subdivisions. These funds are held
estricted. Grant and Subsidy Funds received but not yet

Developer Contributions are receive
in reserves until required and as such are reg
expended are regarded as restricted.
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Note 11. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows
$lo00 . — Notes 2017 2016
(a). Reconciliation of Cash
Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to
maturity subject to insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the
end of the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows
is reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Total Cash and Equivalent Assets 5 28,576 16,816
Balances per Statement of Cash Flows 28,576 16,816
(b). Reconciliation of Change i ssets to Cash

from Operating Activitie
Net Surplus/(Deficit) 20,544 8,686
Non-Cash Items in Income Statements

Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairme 24,781 23,802

Equity Movements in Equity Accounted Investments (Inc )Decrease 83 (706)

Non-Cash Asset Acquisitions (3,741) (3,379)

Grants for Capital Acquisitions (Treated as Investing A Receipts) (1,935) (1,437)

Net (Gain) Loss on Disposals (4,073) 1,588

35,659 28,554
Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (784) (215)

Net (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (19) 1

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables 1,364 (1,636)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Unpaid Employee Benefits 527 299

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Other Provisions 10 10
Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 36,757 27,013
(c). Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities
Acquisition of assets by means of:

- Physical Resources Received Free of Charge 2i 3,741 3,379
Total Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities 3,741 3,379
(d). Financing Arrangements
Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the
following lines of credit:

Bank Overdrafts 500 500
Corporate Credit Cards 500 500
LGFA Cash Advance Debenture Facility 28,747 28,747
The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice. Council also has immediate access
to a short-term drawdown facility and variable interest rate borrowings under a cash advance facility from the Local Government
Finance Authority of South Australia.
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 12b. Components of Functions

§ ‘600

The activities relating to Council functions are as follows:

Public Order and Safety
Supervision of various laws, fire prevention, crime prevention and repair, road safety and dog control.

Health
Health Act administration, immunisation services and pest and pest plant control.

Social Security and Welfare
Operation of senior citizens centre, aged care services, youth services and community information.

Housing and Community Services
Town planning, community developme

ping, roadside rubbish collection, domestic refuse collection,

operating of waste transfer station and rubbish ti water drainage, operation of the St Kilda Mangrove Trail, street

Recreation and Culture
Maintenance and operation of libraries, recreation centre

reserves, neighbourhood houses, clubrooms, playgrounds, spo unds, Is and plant nursery.
Transport and Communication
Construction and maintenance of roads, footpaths, bridges, parking facilities and bu: rs.

Economic Affairs
Building Act administration, economic initiatives, tourism.

Other, Not Attributed and Administration

I, community centre, parks, gardens and

Rates, public debt transactions, administration costs, capital works in progress and costs which relate to multiple functions

but cannot accurately be split between these functions.

294 CITY OF SALISBURY ANNUAL REPORT 10/17

page 39

Page 154
Resources and Governance Committee Agenda - 20 November 2017

City of Salisbury



3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 13. Financial Instruments

3000

Recognised Financial Instruments

Bank, Deposits at Call, Short Term Deposits Accounting Policy:
Carried at lower of cost and net realisable value; interest is
recognised when eamed.

Terms & Conditions:

Deposits are returning fixed interest rates between 1.65% and
2.0% (2016: 1.9% and 2.35%). Short term deposits have an
average maturity of 37 days and an average interest rate of 1.73%
(2016: 35 days and 2.04%).

Carrying Amount:
roximates fair value due to the short term to maturity.

Receivables nting Policy:
Rates and Associated Charges ed at nominal values less any allowance for doubtful debts.
(including legals and penalties for late payment) An al r doubtful debts is recognised (and re-assessed

n collection in full is no longer probable.

Note: These receivables do not meet the definition
of "financial instruments” and have been excluded
from the following disclosures.

Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).
Receivables Accounting Policy:
Fees and Other Charges Carried at nominal values less any allowance for doubtful debts.

An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised (and re-assessed
annually) when collection in full is no longer probable.

Terms and Conditions:

Unsecured, and do not bear interest. Council is not materially
exposed to any individual debtor, credit risk exposure is
concentrated within the Council's boundaries.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).
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Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

§'000

Recognised Financial Instruments

Receivables Accounting Policy:
Other Levels of Government Carried at nominal value.

Terms and Conditions:

Amounts due have been calculated in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the respective programs following
advice of approvals, and do not bear interest. All amounts
are due by Departments and Agencies of State and Federal
Governments.

Carrying Amount:
proximates fair value.

Liabilities nting Policy:
Creditors and Accruals ities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for

ions:
ally settied on 30 day terms.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value

Liabilities Accounting Policy:
Interest Bearing Borrowings Carried at the principal amourtts. Interest is charged as an
expense as it accrues.

Terms and Conditions:

Secured over future revenues, borrowings are repayable
biannually; interest is charged at fixed rates between
4.0% and 7.01% (2016: 5.60%

and 7.07%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.
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Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

T Due Due>1year Due  Total Contractual “Carrying
,‘ 000 = 1. .Yf"a.’,.._...ff.s. _)_vgg[sh = 5 years Cash FI?E,... y:snltigf__ )
2017
Financial Assets
Cash and Equivalents 28,576 - - 28,576 28,576
Receivables 2,406 474 - 2,880 2,880
Other Financial Assets e 831 831 831
Total Financial Assets 30982 474 831 32,287 32,287
Financial Liabilities
Payables 12,467 - - 12,467 12,467
Current Borrowings 3,306 - - 3,306 2,350
Non-Current Borrowings 4,183 15,867 12,717
Total Financial Liabilities 4,183 31,640 27,534
Due  Total Contractual Cé}lﬂﬁna—
$ 000 > 5 years Cash Flows Values
2016
Financial Assets
Cash and Equivalents 16,816 - 16,816 16,816
Receivables 1,173 - 1,191 1,191
_Other Financial Assets = -4 9 988 988
Total Financial Assets 17989 18 98| 18,995 18,995
Financial Liabilities
Payables 11,712 - - 11,712 11,712
Current Borrowings 3,661 - - 3,661 2,560
Non-Current Borrowings - 13,136 5,389 18,525 14,580 _
Total Financial Liabilities 13,136 5,389 33,898 28,852
The following interest rates were applicable 30 June 2017 30 June 2016
to Council's Borrowings at balance date: Weighted Avg Carrying  Weighted Avg Carrying
Interest Rate Value Interest Rate Value
Overdraft 712% - 7.22% -
Other Variable Rates 0.00% - 0.00%
Fixed Interest Rates 6.25% 15,067 6.34% _ _ 17,140
—L ——7,140

Net Fair Value
All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments . There is no recognised market for
the financial assets of the Council.
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Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

$'000

Risk Exposures

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The maximum
credit risk on financial assets of the Council is the carrying amount, net of any allowance for doubtful debts. All Council
investments are made with the SA Local Government Finance Authority and are guaranteed by the SA Government.
Except as detailed in Notes 5 and 6 in relation to individual classes of receivables, exposure is concentrated within the
Council's boundaries, and there is no material exposure to any individual debtor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. All
of Council's financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, and hence
neither market risk nor currency risk apply.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that Council wi fficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities.
In accordance with the model Treasury Ma Information Paper 15), liabilities have a range of
maturity dates. Council also has available a rang erdraft and standby borrowing facilities that it can access.

Council has a balance of both fixed and variable interest/ra and investments. Cash flow fluctuations are
managed holistically in seeking to minimise interest costs er term in a risk averse manner.
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Note 14. Commitments for Expenditure

5 "gae Notes 2317 2016

i e

(a). Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Buildings 924 3,756
Infrastructure 7,721 6,994
Plant and Equipment 12 36

8,657 10,786

These expenditures are payable:

Not later than one year 8,657 10,786
8,657 10,786

(b). Other Expenditure Commitmen

Other expenditure committed for (excluding inventgries) at the reporting
date but not recognised in the financial statements as :

Audit Services 37 55

These expenditures are payable:

Not later than one year 37 55
37 55

(c). Finance Lease Commitments

Council has no Finance Leases.
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Note 15. Financial Indicators
Amounts  Indicator I::rior Per;;;;_ o
"5 '000 2017 201 7 2‘01.‘6 2015

T e

These Financial Indicators have been calculated in accordance with Information Paper 9 - Local Government Financial Indicators prepared as
part of the LGA Financial Sustainability Program for the Local Government Association of South Ausiralia.

1. Operating Surplus Ratio

Operating Surplus 10,795 09, 5% 7%
Total Operating Revenue 120,066

This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percentage of total

operaling revenue.

1a. Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio
In recent years the Federal Government has made advance payments prior ___ 6,800 6% 9% 4%
to 30 June from future year allocations of financial assistancgg , 120,066

2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Financial Liabilities 2,045

L —_— 2% 14% 15%
Total Operating Revenue 120,066
Net Financial Liabilities are defined as total liabilities less financial s
{exciuding equity accounted investments in Council businesses). Tl
expressed as a percentage of total operating revenue.

3. Asset Sustainability Ratio
Net Asset Renewals

Infrastructure and Asset Management Plan required expenditure
Net asset renewals expenditure is defined as net capital expsnditure on

the renewal and replacement of existing assets, and exciudes new

capital expenditure on the acquisition of additional assets.

2% 111%
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Note 15. Financial Indicators - Graphs (continued)

| 1. Operating Surplus Ratio Purpose of Operating
[ 10% 5% Surplus Ratio
Loy T
le ¢
o 6% b This indicator is to
;g 4% { determine the percentage
i the operating revenue
2% varies from operating
0% expenditure
2015 2016 2017
1a. Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio l Purpose of Adjusted
Operating Surplus
10%
8%
£ o
-]
E %
2%
0% *

2015

i 2. NetFinancial Liabilities Ratio
i Y

This indicator shows the

significance of the net
ameunt owed to others,
compared to operating
revenue
2015 2016 2017
3. Asset Sustainability Ratio Purpose of Asset
| 140% e 133% Sustainability Ratio
i 120% 111% | -
g 100% H
12 80% Z2%, i| | This indicator aims to
|§ 60% ;| | determine if assets are
40% i being renewed and
‘ 20% i| | replaced in an optimal
0% 4 way
‘ 2015 2016 2017
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Note 16. Uniform Presentation of Finances

Sl080 . L L]

The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital
investment activities of the Council prepared on a simplified Uniform
Presentation Framework basis.

All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarise annual budgets
and long-term financial plans on the same basis.

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common ‘core’
of financial information, which enables meaningful comparisons of
each Council's finances.

Income 120,066 110,880
less Expenses (109,271) (105,422)
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 10,795 5,458
less Net Outlays on Existing Assets

Capital Expenditure on Renewal and Replacement of Existing s 25,092 13,750

less Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment (24,781) (23,802)
_less_Proceeds from Sale of Replaced Assets (479) (465)
Subtotal (168) (10,517)

fess Net Qutlays on New and Upgraded Assets
Capital Expenditure on New and Upgraded Assets 11.301 23 105
{including Investment Property and Real Estate Developments) ! !

less Amounts Received Specifically for New and Upgraded Assets (1,935) (1,437)
less Proceeds from Sale of Surplus Assets
(including Investment Property and Real Estate Developments) (11,359) (7,782)
Subtotal (1,993) 13,976
Net Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year 12,956 1,999
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Note 17. Operating Leases

5 "0o0 2017 2016

g sk o - 2P AT S i TS

Leases Providing Revenue to the Council

Council owns various buildings, plant and other facilities that are available for
hire or lease (on a non-cancellable basis wherever practicable) in accordance
with the published revenue policy. Rentals received from such leases are
disclosed as rent and hire of non-investment property in Note 2.

(i) Investment Property

Rentals received, and outgoings reimbursed, in relation to Investment
Property are also disclosed in Note 2. These lease agreements, all of which
are classified as operating leases, are made on a non-cancellable basis

Leases commitments under all non-ca
including those relating to Investme

Property, are as follows:
Not later than one year 647 612
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 1,032 1,042
Later than 5 years 2,302 2,242
3,981 3,896
(ii) Lease Payment Commitments of Council ’A

Council has entered into non-cancellable operating leases for various items of

computer and other plant and equipment. Leases in relation to computer and
office equipment permit Council, at expiry of the lease, to elect to re-lease, n
or acquire the equipment leased. No lease imposes any additional restrictions
on Council in relation to additional debt or further leasing.

ellablé lease agreements,

No lease contains any escalation clause.

Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases that have not
been recognised in the financial statements are as follows:

Not later than one year 575 737
Later than one year and not later than 5 years ..354 697
929 1,434
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Note 18. Superannuation

$ ‘000

- 1 e e e e — T ra——

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Statewide Super (formerly
Local Government Superannuation Scheme). There are two types of membership, each of which is funded differently.
Permanent and contract employees of the South Australian Local Gavernment sector with Salarylink benefits prior to
24 November 2009 have the option to contribute to the Accumulation section and/or Salarylink. All other employees
(including casuals) have all contributions allocated to the Accumulation section.

Accumulation only Members

Accumulation only members receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer
contributions are based on a fixed percentage of ordinary time earnings in accordance with superannuation guarantee
legislation (9.50% in 2016/17; 9.50% in 2015/16). No further liability accrues to the Council as the superannuation
benefits accruing to employees are represented by their share of the net assets of the Fund.

contribution rate, number of years and level of Gentribi nal average salary. Council makes employer
contributions to Salarylink as determined by the Funic stee based on advice from the appointed Actuary.

Accumulation account. Employees also make member contributiol ink section of the Fund. As such,
assets accumulate in the Salarylink section of the Fund to meet th its, as defined in the Trust Deed,
as they accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Salarylink secti assets and liabilities are
pooled and are not allocated by each employer, and employees may transfer ta another employer within the local
government sector and retain membership of the Fund, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets
and costs between employers. As provided by AASB 119.32(b}, Council does not use defined benefit accounting
for these contributions.

The most recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund's actuary, A C Miller, FIAA, of Russell Employee
Benefits Pty Ltd as at 30 June 2014. The Trustee has determined that the current funding arrangements are
adequate for the expected Salarylink liabilities. However, future financial and economic circumstances may require
changes to Council's contribution rates at some future time.

Contributions to Other Superannuation Schemes

Council also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the “choice of fund”
legislation. All such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation benefits accruing to the
employee are represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and no further liability attaches to the

Council.
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Note 19. Interests in Other Entities

5600

B e

— -

All joint ventures and associates are required to prepare Annual Financial Statements that
comply with the SA Local Government Model Financial Statements.

Council's Share of Net Income Council's Share of Net Assets

2017 2016 2017 2016
Joint Ventures (83) 706 3,946 4,030
Total (83) 706 3,946 4,030

(i) JOINT VENTURES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT OPERATIONS

(a) Carrying Amounts

Name of Entity 2017 2016
Northern Adelaide Waste Manageme

Authority 3,858 3,929
Council Solutions 88 101
Total Carrying Amounts - Joint Ventures & A iz 3,946 4,030
Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority

Manages the waste collection, recycling and waste disposal Citi Salisbury and Playford and the Town

of Gawler.

Council Solutions

Established by the Cities of Adelaide, Charles Sturt, Marion, Onkaparinga, Salisbury Tea Tree Gully in
December 2012, this regional subsidiary has been established for the purp of providing a centre of excellence in
procurement and fo provide services to the Constituent.

(b) Relevant Interests Interest in Ownership
Operating Share of Proportion of
Result Equity Voting Power
Name of Entity 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority 56.9% 56.6% 56.9% 56.6% 33.0% 33.0%
Coungcil Solutions 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7% 16.7%

{c) Movement in Investment in Joint Venture or Associate

Northern Adelaide Waste
Management Authority Council Solutions
2017 2016 2017 2016
Opening Balance 3,928 3,221 101 102
Share in Operating Resuit (70) 707 (13) (1)
Council's Equity Share in the Joint Venture or Associate 3,858 3,928 88 101
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Note 19: Interests in Other Entities (continued)
£.000 — R S
(d) Summarised Financial Information of the Equity Accounted Business
Northem Adelaide Waste

Statement of Financial Position Management Authority Council Solutions

2017 2016 2017 2016
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,282 3,600 334 267
Other Current Assets 2,466 2,852 469 390
Non-Current Assets 10,723 9,699 = -
Total Assets 17,471 16,151 803 657
Current Trade and Other Payables 2,768 2,243 222 28
Current Financial Liabilities 791 1,579 55 27
Current Provisions 366 318 - -
Non-Current Financial Liabilities 4,331 2,518 - -
Non-Current Provisions 2,428 2,556 - -
Total Liabilities 10,684 9,214 277 55
Net Assets 6,937 526 602
Statement of Comprehensive Income Council Solutions

2017 2016
Other Income 61 110
Contributions from Constituent Councils 1,167 933
Interest Income 6 10
Total Income 1,234 1,053
Employee Costs 1,773 1,731 - -
Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses 24,205 21,466 1,310 1,058
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 1,360 1,374 - -
Finance Costs 281 246 - -
Total Expenses 27,619 24,817 1,310 1,058
Other Revenue / Expense Items 150 (5) - -
Qperating Result {150) 1,377 (76) (5)
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Note 19. Interests in Other Entities (continued)

$ 000

ey

(e). Share of Joint Operations Expenditure Commitments

Expenditure committed for (excluding inventories) at the reporting date but not recognised in the
financial statements as liabilities:

(i) Capital Expenditures Payable
No capital expenditure is committed at the reporting date that has not been recognised in the financial
statements as a liability.

Northern Adelaide Waste
Management Authority Council Solutions
(ii) Operating Expenditures Payable 2017 2016 2017 2016

9,620 20,003 - -
9,882 - -

Not later than one year
Later that one year and not later than 5
Later than 5 years

29,885 -

The Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority menages mull
processing and disposal of waste on behalf on its Constituent Co 5
consolidation of multiple contracts entered into with external suppliers. In future
with external suppliers in accordance with adopted procurement policies and p

(iii) Lease Payment Commitments Payable

Not later than one year 994 - -
Later that one year and not later than 5 years 3,476 95 - -
Later than 5 years 73 600 = -

4,543 4,350 - -

(iv) INDIVIDUALLY IMMATERIAL COUNCIL BUSINESSES
Council did not have any individually immaterial businesses
(v) UNCONSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

Council has no Unconsolidated Structured Entities
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for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 20. Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet

$'000

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Balance Sheet, but knowledge is
considered relevant fo the users of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the allocation
of scarce resources.

1. LAND UNDER ROADS

As reported in the Financial Statements, Council is of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value
sufficiently reliably for these assets to qualify for recagnition, and accordingly land under roads has not been
recognised in the reports. Land acquired for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost, but
transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure.

2. POTENTIAL INSURANCE LOSSES

Council is a multi-purpose organisation p
other facilities accessible to the public.
that remain unsettled.

oviding a large range of building, parks infrastructure, playgrounds and
imie, it i likely that claims will have been made against Council

e of insurance policies, each of which is subject to
deductable "insurance excesses", the amount of which varies a ing to the class of insurance.

wn at reporting date based on average historical
her tial claims not reported to Council may

Council has recognised the potential losses arising froi
net cost (including insurance excess) of similar types of claims.
have existed at reporting date.

3. LEGAL MATTERS

Council is the planning consent authority for its area under the Developmen 1993 (as amended). Pursuant to
that Act, certain persons aggrieved by a planning decision of the Council appeal. It is normal practice that
parties bear their own legal costs. At the date of these reports, Council had no notice of appeals against planning
decisions made prior to reporting date. All known costs have been recognised, but the amount of further costs
cannot be known until the appeals are determined.

4. CEMETERY

Council operates a Cemetery Facility - Salisbury Memorial Park. A Contingent Liability exists for the ongoing
maintenance of this Cemetery. This liability remains for a period of 100 years after the expiry of the lease on the last
burial of the site. In addition, Council has negotiated a new lease of the Mausoleum, requiring the facility to be
maintained by the lessee. The lessee will continue to contribute to the Perpetual Care Fund to ensure that
maintenance of the facility for the next 100 years is funded. The contribution value will be assessed twice during the
proposed lease period for adjustment purposes to ensure the Fund will be sufficient to provide for the ongoing
maintenance of the Mausoleum.
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 21. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

$006

Events that occur after the reporting date of 30 June 2017, up to and including the date when the financial
statements are "authorised for issue” have been taken into account in preparing these statements.

Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors' Report as the appropriate "authorised for issue” date
relating to these General Purpose Financial Statements.

Accordingly, the "authorised for issue” date is 12/10/17.

Council is unaware of any material or significant 'non adjusting events' that should be disclosed.
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City of Salisbury

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 22, Related Party Transactions

0

£ Gae

Key Management Personnel

Transactions with Key Management Personel

The Key Management Personnel (KMP) of Council include the Mayor, Councillors, CEO and General Managers,
certain prescribed officers under section 112 of the Local Government Act 1999 and other personnel that satisfy the
criteria of KMP as contained within AASB 124 Related Party Transactions. In some circumstances members of the
KMP have left Council during the financial year, however their compensation has still been included. In all, 55
persons were paid the following total compensation:

The compensation paid to Key Management Personnel comprises:

Short-Term Employee Benefits 5,336
Post-Employment Benefits 427
Long-Term Benefits 754
Total 6,517
Amounts paid as direct reimbursement of expenses in on behalf of Council have not been included above.

Receipts from Key Management Personnel:
A Councillor operates a retail business and has a formal com ent in place with Council under which
they sell tickets to use a Council facility on Council's behalf. T rrangement are the Councillor
purchases books of tickets from Council, and pays Council 7 therefore retaining 30% of the
sales revenue. In the 2017 Financial Year, total income generated from ti
and the amount retained by the Councillor equated to $18k.

There have been no other material amounts received from Key Management Personnel during the financial year,
other than amounts paid in their capacity as ratepayers or residents (e.g. rates, swimming pool entry fees, etc.)

Transactions with Regional Subsidiaries:

In regards to Councils Regional Subsidiaries, further information relating to their specific activities and carrying
amounts are disclosed in Note 19. Council is an equity owner, along with other member Councils, of both of these
subsidiaries. Member Councils have equal representation on the Board of both Regional Subsidiaries and
accordingly have influence over both the financial and operational decides of the subsidiaries. However, no one
Member Council individually has control over these decisions. The following material transactions occurred with
Councils Regional Subsidiaries, during the financial year:

Details Payments Outstanding Total
Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority 13,485 993 14,478
Total 13,485 993 14,478

Amounts payable that are outstanding at 30 June 2017 are recorded in Trade and Other Payables in Note 8.
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Bentleys

THINKING AHEAD

Bentleys SA Audit Partnership

Level 2
139 Frome Street
Adelaide SA 5000

GPO Box 939

Adelaide SA 5001
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ABN 43 877 091 903
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE CIiTY OF SALISBURY T +61 8 8372 7900

F +61 8 8372 7999

admin@adel.bentleys.com.au
bentleys.com.au

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report of the City of Salisbury, which comprises the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial state ents including a summary of significant accounting policies

and the Certification of the Financ ments
In our opinion, the financial report irue and fair view of the financial position of the City of

Salisbury as of 30 June 2017, and of its al performance and its cash flows for the year then

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australi i dards. Our responsibilities under
i for the Audit of the Financial
Report section of our report. We are independent of the entity in accordance with the ethical
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards i
for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to

Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities

r audit of the financial report in
accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Report

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial report, which gives a true and fair view
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1999 and the
Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011, and for such internal control as the
commitiee and management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a financial report
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the entity's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity's financial reporting

process.
) Accountants
& A member of Bentieys, a network of s g fums located Australia, Mew Zealand and China thal trade as 3
‘m Benllsys. Al members of the Bentleys Network are amllasod nnly and are separate legal entilies and not in Parinership. Lisblity iméled oy a J Audilors
scheme app under F A member of Kreslon Infernalicnal, A global network of independent
accounting firms, ) Nevisors
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THINKING AHEAD

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial report is located at the Auditing

and Assurance Standards Board website (hitp:/www.auasb.qgov.au/Home.aspx). This description
forms part of our auditor's report.

BENTLEYS SA AUDIT PARTNERSHIP

DAVID PAPA
PARTNER

Dated at Adelaide this 11™ day of October 2 ﬁ
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 Bentleys

THINKING AHEAD

Bentleys SA Audit Partnership

Level 2
139 Frome Street
Adelaide SA 5000

GPO Box 939
Adelaide SA 5001

ABN 43 877 091 903

INDEPENDENT ASSURANCE REPORT ON ¢t 8 8372 7000
INTERNAL CONTROLS OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY F 16158372 7900

admin@adel.bentleys.com.au
bentleys.com.au

Opinion

We have audited the compliance of the Cily of Salisbury (the Council) with the requirements of Section 125
of the Local Government Act 1999 in'relation to the Internal Controls established by the Council to ensure
enditure and investment of money, acquisition and

riod 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017 are in

, with Section 125 of the Local Government
uncil in relation to the receipt, expenditure and
d incurring of liabilities so as to provide

ou ve been conducted properly and in

2| 0 ne 2017.

In our opinion, the Council has complied, in all
Act 1999 in relation to Internal Controls, establis
investment of money, acquisition and disposal
reasonable assurance that the financial transactions of t
accordance with legislative provisions for the period 1 J

Limitation on Use

This report has been prepared for the members of the Council in accordance with Section 129 of the Local
Government Act 1999 in relation to Internal Controls specified above. We disclaim any assumption of
responsibility for any reliance on this report to any persons or users other than the members of the Council,
or for any purpose other than that for which it was prepared.

Limitations of Controls

Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control structure it is possible that, even if the controls are
suitably designed and operating effectively, the control objectives may not be achieved so that fraud, error,
or non-compliance with laws and regulations may occur and not be detected.

An assurance engagement on internal controls is not designed to detect all instances of controls operating
ineffectively as it is not performed continuously throughout the period and the tests performed are on a
sample basis. Any projection of the outcome of the evaluation of contfrols to future periods is subject to the
risk that the controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with them may deteriorate.

Independence

in conducting our engagement, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian
professional accounting bodies.

. » Accountants
& A member of Bentieys, a network of g firms located ol Australig, Mew Zegland end China that rade ag
%m'mn Bentisys. All mambers of the Benteys Network are affiiated onaly and are separate legal entities and not in Partnership. Lisbiity limiled by a » Auditors
scheme apo undar Legiskati A member of Kreston international. A global network of incependent
accounting frms. > Achvisors
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} Bentleys

THINKING AHEAD

The Council’'s Responsibility for the Internal Controls

The Council is responsible for implementing and maintaining an adequate system of internal controls, in
accordance with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation to Internal Controls, to ensure
that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and incurring
of liabilities are in accordance with legislative provisions.

Our Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Council's compliance with Section 125 of the Local
Government Act 1999 in relation only to the Internal Controls established by the Council to ensure that
financial fransactions relating to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal
of property and incurring of liabilities, based on our procedures. Our engagement has been conducted in
accordance with applicable Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements ASAE 3100 Compliance
Engagements, issued by the Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, in order to state whether,
in all material respects, the Councif has complied with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in
relation only to the Internal Controls spegified above for the period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017. ASAE 3100
also requires us to comply with the re hical requirements of the Australian professional accounting
bodies.

Our procedures included obtaining a stz f internal controls in relation to the receipt,

expenditure and investment of money, the ac d disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities,
evaluating management’s assessment of the controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and implementation of controls on a sample basis on the

assessed risks.

BENTLEYS SA AUDIT PARTNERSHIP

DAVID PAPA
PARTNER

Dated at Adelaide this 11*"day of October 2017
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City of Salisbury

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Certification of Auditor Independence

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of City of Salisbury
for the year ended 30 June 2017, the Council's Auditor, Bentleys has maintained its independence in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3) Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011,

/)hn Harry Councillor Graham Reynolds

- CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PRESIDING MEMBER, AUDIT COMMITTEE
Date: W/7 ; 0 o7 27 .
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- THINKING AHEAD

Bentleys SA Audit Partnership

Level 2
138 Frome Street
Adelaide SA 5000

GPO Bex 938
Adelaide 34 5001

ABM 43 877 091 803

T +61 6 8372 7900
) i ) F +61 88372 7999
Certification of Auditor Independence admin@adel bentleys.com.au

bentleys.com.au

| confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of City of Salisbury for the year ended
30 June 2017, | have maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of
APES 110 — Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, Section 290, published by the

Accounting Professional and Ethi¢al:Standards Board, in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1999 and th @ overnment (Financial Management) Regulations 2011

made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordanc e requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

A

David Papa
Partner
Bentleys SA Audit Partnership

Dated at Adelaide this 10 October 2017

Accountants
A member ¢f Bentlays, 8 nenvars o & trms located Australia, New Zeaand gnc Chinz that irede as ) .
‘HREM Berfeys. Al membecs of the Benteys Netwark are aftisied or ve and are separete legel entiies and nct i Partnership, Lisbilty mited bya ,  Audiors
scheme app Lrger an A member of Kresion Inlernationa’. A global retwos: of ircepende .
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UBMDIA

Council Solutions Annual Report 2016/2017

Council Solutions is a joint initiative of the Cities of Adelaide, Charles Sturt, Marion, Onkaparinga, Salisbury and Tea Tree Gully (Constituent
Councils). tstablished as a Regional Authority in Dé€ember 2012 in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 (SA), its purpose is

to optimise the financial sustainability of its uncils through the benefits of collaborative strategic procurerment and contract
negotiation and management. Council Sol ed by a Board of Management comprising an independent Chairperson and the
Chief Executive Officer of each Constituent Co

Northern Adelaide Waste Manage

The Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority (NAWMA) is a Lacal
Playford and the Town of Gawler. It also provides waste management s
Gilbert Valley, Copper Coast, Goyder Regional, Light Regional, tallala, Mount Remarkable,
Regional

rbarough, Yorke Peninsula and Wakefield

NAWMA coordinates our kerbside waste management and hard waste collection. e three-bin collection service incorporates household

waste, recyclables and garden/food organics.
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Council Solutions Regional Authority
General Purpose Financial Reports
for the year ending 30 June 2017
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Council Solutions Regional Authority
Certification Of Financial Statements

for the year ending 30 June 2017

I have been authorised by the Council Solutions Regional Authority Board to certify the
financial statements of the Council Solutions Regional Authority in their final form. In my
opinion:

* The accompanying financial statements comply with the Local Government Act
1999, Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and
Australian Accounting Standards.

* The financial statements present a true and fair view of the Council Solutions
Regional Authority's financial position at 30 June 2017 and the results of its
operations and cz ows for the financial year.

that the Authority's financia ords are complete, accurate and reliable and
financial year.

Catherine Cooper
Chair Of The Board

Date: ,al/oﬁ/} ol 7
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COUNCIL SOLUTIONS REGIONAL AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2017

2017 2016

Notes $'000 $'000
INCOME
Investment Income 2 6 10
Management Fees 2 1,167 933
Other Income 2 61 110
Total Income 1,234 1,053
EXPENSES
Materials, contracts & other expenses 3 1,310 1,058
Total Expenses 1,310 1,058
OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (76) (5)
NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (76) (5)
Total Other Comprehensive Income -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (76) (5)

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attache

City of Salisbury
Resources and Governance Committee Agenda - 20 November 2017
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COUNCIL SOLUTIONS REGIONAL AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 30 June 2017
2017 2016
Notes $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 334 267
Receivables 469 390
Total Current Assets 47 803 657
Total Assets 803 657
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables 222 28
Other Current Liabilities 55 27
Total Current Liabilities 57 277 55
Total Liabilities 57 277 55
NET ASSETS 526 602
EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus 383 459
Share Capital 143 143
TOTAL EQUITY 6 602

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.
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COUNCIL SOLUTIONS REGIONAL AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

2017

Opening Balance
Net Surplus for Year

Balance at end of period

2016

Opening Balance
Net Surplus for Year

Balance at end of period

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts
Operating receipts

Investment Income

Payments

for the year ended 30 June 2017

Operating payments to suppliers & employees

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in cash held

Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of period

Initial
Contribution Ac;t:: l::lasled Total
by Owners P

$'000 $'000 $'000

143 459 602

- (76) (76)

143 383 526

Initial
Contribution Ac;t::‘ ";:::ea Total
by Owners P

$'000 $'000 $'000

143 464 607

- (5) (5)

143 459 602

STATEM FLOW
for the year ende 2017

2017 2016
4 $'000 $'000

0 856

10

(1,089) (1,045)

67 (179)

67 (179)

267 446

334 267

Cash & cash equivalents at end of period 6

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes

City of Salisbury
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Council Solutions Regional Authority

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ending 30 June 2017

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards as they apply to not-for-profit entities, other autharitative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South Australian legislation.

Council Solutions Regional Authority is a Regional Subsidiary under Section 43 and Schedule 2 of the
Local Government Act 1999. The Constituent Councils and their respective share of equity are as
follows:

Constituent Council Equity Share
Adelaide City Council 16.67%
City of Charles Sturt 16.67%
City of Marion 16.67%
City of Onkaparinga 16.67%
City of Salisbury 16.67%
City of Tea Tree Gully 16.67%

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial report was authorised for issue by ificate under regulation 14 of the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011 d:

1 Basis of Preparation

and is based on historical costs. All
earest thousand dollars ($'000).

The financial report has been prepared on an a
amounts in the financial statements have been rourded f¢
2 Income recognition

Management Fee Income is recognised when the Cons ncils enter into the purchase of a
good or service from a Supplier contracted to provide the Al
confracts that were created jointly between the six constituent Coun agement Fee.
3 Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments

hority's option with an
m the date of acquisition.

Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at the
insignificant risk of changes in value with a maturity of three months or less

All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the
receipt of which is considered doubtful.

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition.

4  Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

The Authority did not procure any non-current assets during the reporting period and does not hold any
non-current assets as at the reporting date.

5 Employee Benefits

All employees are employed through Adelaide City Council, one of the Constituent Councils. Those
employees are then contracted to the Authority.
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Council Solutions Regional Authority

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ending 30 June 2017
6 GST Implications

In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 "Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax™:
- Receivables and Creditors include GST receivable and payable.
- Except in relation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating expenditures exclude GST
receivable and payable.
- Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.
7 Comparative Information
Comparative information has been reclassified to be consistent with the current year disclosure of
equivalent information in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.
8 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
The Authority evaluates estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial report based on
historical knowledge and best available current information.

Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and
economic data, obtained both externally and within the authority.

Accounts receivable are reviewed at each reporting date to establish the collectability.

9 Pending Accounting Standards

Certain new accounting standards and UIG i ions have been published that are not mandatory

een used in preparing these reports.

AASB 7 Financial Ins sures
AASB 9 Financial Instrume

AASB 15 Revenue from Contract Customers
AASB 17 Leases

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entitie

Standards containing consequential amendments to other Sta d rpretations arising from
the above - AASB 2010-7, AASB 2014-1, AASB 2014-3, AASB 4-4, "AASB2014-5, AASB 2014-6,
AASB 2014-7, AASB 2014-8, AASB 2014-9, AASB 2014-10, AASB 2015-1, AAS 15-2, AASB 2015-
3, AASB 2015-4, AASB 2015-5, AASB 2015-6 and AASB 2015-7.

(Standards not affecting local government have been excluded from the above list.)

The Authority is of the view that other than AASB 16 and AASB 1058, none of the above new standards
or interpretations will affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements, but that they may
impact certain information otherwise disclosed.

Accounting Standard AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities may have a material effect on the
amounts disclosed in these reports, particularly in revenues from grants & subsidies, but does not
commence until the 2019/20 financial period, and it is not the Authorities’ intention to adopt this
Standard early.
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COUNCIL SOLUTIONS REGIONAL AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 2 - INCOME

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
INVESTMENTS
Interest Income 6 10
6 10
REBATES
Management Fees 1,167 933
1,167 933
OTHER INCOME
Reimbursements 61 110
61 110
Note 3 - EXPENSES
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
MATERIALS, CONTRACTS & OTHER 5
Advertising 2 1
Audit Fees 4 4
Catering 2
Confractors 73 73
Consultant Fees ﬁ 253 199
Entertainment Costs - 1
Fringe Benefits Tax - 8
Insurance 32 26
IT Expenses 20 3
Legal Fees 48 75
Membership Fees & Subscriptions 12 1
Motor Vehicle 1 17
Recruitment - 15
Reimbursements - Salary & Wages 775 539
Rent 30 24
Sitting Fees 39 25
Sundry 14 30
Telephone 1 1
Training and Development 4 3
1,310 1,058
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COUNCIL SOLUTIONS REGIONAL AUTHORITY
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 4 - CURRENT ASSETS
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at Bank 334 267
334 267
RECEIVABLES
Accounts Receivables 271 282
Accrued Income 196 106
Prepaid Expenses 2 2
469 390
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 803 657

Note@l
2017 2016
$'000 $'000
TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors A 218 24
Expenses Accrued 4 4

28
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable to Adelaide City Council 55 27
55 27
TOTAL LIABILITIES 277 55
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COUNCIL SOLUTIONS REGIONAL AUTHORITY
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 6 - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to maturity subject to
insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in the
Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheet.

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
Cash at Bank 334 267
Balances per Cash Flow Statement 334 267
(b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash
from Operating Activities
Net Surplus (76) (5)
Net (increase)/decrease in Receivables (79) (186)
Net increase/(decrease) in Current Liabilities 222 12
Net Cash provided by (or used in) operati 67 (179)
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COUNCIL SOLUTIONS REGIONAL AUTHORITY
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(a) Interest Rate Risk
The Authority's exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will

fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates, and the effective weighted average interest rates on
those applicable financial assets and liabilities is as follows;

2016-17
;aird\f:ﬂ;a °;1 Fair Value of Fair Value of
Weighted Fair Value of ' '*¢ ;'e "5t Eixed Interest Fixed Interest Fair Value of
A"g Variable | rate rate rate Non-nterest
| hw:::te Interest Rate wri instr ts  instruments Bearing
ntere Instruments n.'la‘ ring maturing Due maturing Due  Instruments
withinOne 4 jess5¥rs  >5¥rs
Year
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets:
Cash 1.8% 334 - - - -
Receivables 0.0% - - - - 469
Total Financial Assets 334 - - - 469
Financial Liabilities:
Creditors and Provisions 0.0% - - 277
Total Financial Liabilities - - 277
2015-16
Fair Value of Fair Value of
Weighted Fair Value of ixed Interest Fixed Interest Fair Value of
A"g Variable ; rate rate Non-nterest
| verag: Interest Rate - struments  instruments Bearing
nterest Rate Instruments aturi e maturing Due Instruments
>5Yrs
$'000 $'000 0 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets:
Cash 1.8% 267 - - -
Receivables 0.0% - - - - 390
Total Financial Assets 267 - - - 390
Financial Liabilities:
Creditors and Provisions 0.0% - - - - 55
Total Financial Liabilities - - - - 55
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COUNCIL SOLUTIONS REGIONAL AUTHORITY
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 7 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

{b) Credit Risk
Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if other entities failed to perform as
contracted.

The Authority's exposure to credit risk is limited to receivables - the Authority's maximum
exposure is disclosed in the financial statements net of any provision for doubtful debts

(c) Net Fair Value

The net fair value of a financial instrument is defined as its value net of all costs to settle the
asset and liability.

The financial assets and liabilities as stated or referred to in notes (a) and (b) above, are stated at
their face value (less provision for doubfful debts if applicable).

Due to the nature of financial instruments held in the Authority, the cost associated with their
settlement would not be material and have not been considered.

Note 8 - RELATED P DISCLOSURES

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (KM

The Key Management Personnel of the Council inc air of the Board, the Board and

the CEO.
$'000

Salaries, allowances & other short term benefits paid by Counci utio 261
KMP

No qualifying related party disclosures have been identified in relation to 2016417 financial
year
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Council Solutions Regional Authority

Certification Of Auditor Independence
for the year ending 30 June 2017

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of the
Council Solutions Regional Authority for the year ended 30 June 2017, the Council's Auditor, lan
G McDonald, has maintained its independence in accordance with the requirements of the Local
Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011
made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3) (b) Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

“Catherine Gooper Tanya Johns
CHAIR PRESIDING

o 29 [5]17.

L) TN

OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date: 22 [&|2c17

“Mark Dowd : ark Goldstone
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEFEXECUTIVE OFFICER
City of Onkaparinga ' Adelaide
Date: 31[8 2017 Date: 2 (7

Darren Birbeck

ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFIGER
City of Charles Sturt _ City of Marion

Date: 22/9f10'7 Date; A5-8-Q01 F

~John Harry

John Moyle
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
City of Salisbury Tea Tree Gully

Date: 2/;.6/ g Jo t7 Date: i‘l_‘ ?\&9 11
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lan G McDonald FCA

AUSTRALIA + NEW ZEALAND

Council Solutions Regional Authority

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

STATEMENT BY AUDITOR

We confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of the Council Solutions Regional
Authority for the year ended 30 June 2017, we have maintained our independence in
accordance with the requirements of APES 110 — Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants, Section 290, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards
Board, in accordance with the al Government Act 1999 and the Local Government
2011 made under that Act.

d ce with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local
Government (Financial Manat jons 2011.

lan G McDonald FCA

Dated this 11" day of August 2017

www.creativeauditing.com.au

lan 0419 620 906 PO Box 75, Henley Beach SA 5022 Nancy 0408 832 848
lanmcdonald @creativeauditing.org ABN 13 550 494 869 nancytran@creativeauditing.org
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lan G McDonald FCA cHARTERED AccouNTANTS

Council Solutions Regional Authority
Independent Auditor's Report

We have audited the atlached financial statements, being a general purpose financial report, of Council Solutions
Regional Autharity for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements of the Authority are properly drawn up:
a) to present fairly the financial position of the Authority as at the 30 June 2017 and the results of its operations
for the period then ended, and;
b) according to Australian Accounting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

For the audit of the Authority we have maintained our independence in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements of APES 110 Section 290. We believe that the audit evidence that we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information — Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the basis of
accounting. The financial report is prepared to.assist the authority to meet the requirements of Local Government Act
anagement Regulations 2011. As a result, the financial report
intended solely for the members.

Responsibilities of Management for the Fina
The Board of Management is responsible for
Government Act 1999 together with the Local Govern
internal control as management determines is necessa
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

on of the financial report in accordance with Local
(Financial Management Regulations 2011 and for such
preparation of a financial report that is free from

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Re
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial r
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require th
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance a
material misstatement.

r audit. We conducted our audit in
we comply with relevant ethical
ether the schedule is free from

(o]
o]

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement in the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the association's preparation of the financial report in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the association's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

P e LI

lan G McDonald FCA
Registered Company Auditor

Dated at Grange this 18" day of September 2017

www.creativeauditing.com.au

lan 0419 620 906 PO Box 75, Henley Beach SA 5022 MNancy 0408 832 848
ianmcdonald @ creativeauditing.org ABN 13 550 494 869 nancytran@creativeauditing.org
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1ssion Statements

Operations Education

To deliver responsible, sustainable  To inform and educate the

and best practice waste and community about the importance
resources management outcomes  and practice of responsible waste
to constituent and client Councils.  and resources management.

Values

NAWMA has the capacity and the willingness to:
> extend its reach in waste management;
> introduce new sophistication and solutions in resource recovery; and

> educate and inform its communities of the benefits that will result
from a shared commitment to these actions.

Contents
Report from the Chair
CEO's Report

Strategy Development
and Implementation

Resource Recovery
Material Recovery Facility
Environmental Outcomes
Education

Food and Garden Organics
Social Outcomes

Financials table of contents
Auditor's Report

Financials

Organisational Structure

8-9

10-11

12-13

14-15

16-17

18-19

20

21

22

23-46

47
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Report from the Chair

In addition, our partnership with Peats Soils

at the Edinburgh North site for processing the
region's garden and food organics into quality
compost products is another example of
recovering and regenerating valuable resources.

Another major achievement for NAWMA is our
emerging partnership with South Australia’s
Joule Energy to develop a solar-based energy
generation platform at the Uleybury landfill.

The solar farm will be designed to integrate with
the gas renewable energy facility, developed by
local firm LMS Energy, at the landfill to jointly
create electricity to power 1,800 homes while
preventing thousands of tonnes of carbon being
emitted into the atmosphere each year.

Uleybury will be home to Australia’s first

solar farm based at a landfill site further
demonstrating NAWMA's commitment to a
circular economy model with renewable energy
sources that build natural, economic and social
value.

The dynamic new Environment Education Centre
at Edinburgh Parks will play an increasingly
important role in NAWMA's schools and
community programs to promote the benefits of
a shared commitment to waste

minimisation, resource recovery and renewable

energy generation. NAWMA is a major driver

in the region for increasing awareness of waste

minimisation strategies across the three Council
communities that we serve.

Meanwhile, NAWMA welcomes Adam Faulkner
as our new Chief Executive Officer succ ng
Brian King.

Adam brings a wealth of experie
expertise to the organisation thro
previous high-level waste managem
roles. Adam also holds a ke q %2
Executive Director of £ anagement
Association of Au also been a
Non Executive Directo B environmental
solutions.

On behalf o ard and Executive
Management teamy | thank Brian King who

has had an extraordinary influence in his role
over 21 years with NAWMA. He deserves the
greatest respect for what he has achieved in
that time. Brian's drive, innovation and massive
work ethic resulted in NAWMA becoming a
proud and recognised leader in Australian
waste management, and we wish him well in his
retirement.

To all on the NAWMA Management team and
staff, | - together with the NAWMA Board -
say thank you and well done in delivering

on NAWMA's innovation agenda, improving
our efficiencies and complementing our
Member Councils’ reputations in each of their
communities with high guality delivery of
services.

These achievements would not have been
possible without the commitment and the
continued direction of the Board of NAWMA.
The members of the Board continue to

provide valuable professional support to the
organisation in what has been an extraordinarily
busy 2016-17 financial year. | thank Board
Members for their commitment of time and, of
course, guidance.

We confidently lock forward to another
successful yearin 2017/18.

Brian Cunningham
Chair, NAWMA
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Report from the Chief Executive Officer

| am delighted to be welcomed to the high
performing Local Covernment regional waste
subsidiary NAWMA,

While | did not cversee operations during the
reporting period, 'am extremely impressed
by the magnitude of achievements the Board
and Management team have delivered.
NAWMA is very well positioned to continue
providing contemporary and leading practice
waste management, resource recovery and
remanufacturing services to our constituent

Councils, client Councils and their communities.

The Board has clearly provided exceptional
governance, strategy development and
oversight of NAWMA. This carefully crafted
approach has resulted in an infrastructure set
that includes:

*+ abest practice Resource Recovery Centre;
* an innovative Waste Processing Facility;

+ one of only two Material Recovery Facilities
processing kerbside (household) recyclables
in South Australia; and

* a high performing balefill landfill at
Uleybury.

The Board and Management team, along

with the Technical Working Group and Audit
Committee, are to be applauded for their bold
tactics towards world’s best practice in waste
management and resource recovery.

Credit also goes to NAWMA's staff members
who have worked tirelessly to implémentithe
strategy developed by the Board! The staff
are highly skilled knowledge l@aders'in their
field and agile in their delivery. They are a
tremendous credit to the organisation and

I truly look forward to working withreach of
these professional§ in the next iteration of
NAWMA,

In terms of looking farward, it is with
tremendous optimism that we approach new
and betterways to engage with our community
in moving towards a circular economy, and
working with our residents to maximise the
effectiveness of the kerbside bin system.

Together, with our constituent and client
Councils and communities, NAWMA will lead
the transition to beneficial reuse of what was
once known as "waste”.

Adam Faulkner

-
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rategy Development and Implementation

The NAWMA Waste Management Strategy
2015-2020 is the proverbial roadmap for the
Authority's proactive response to the challenge
of addressing environmentally sustainable
growth in the region while generating
community pride across northern Adelaide and
beyond.

The strategy informs NAWMA's Business
Plans, guides Local Government activities,
and involves business, industry and the wider
community.

Underpinning the strategy are NAWMA's overall
objectives to:

+ promote and achieve efficient, cost-effective,
ecologically sustainable and socially
acceptable waste management and resources
recovery services throughout the region;

+ achieve performance outcomes that meet
or exceed accepted standards for waste
minimisation and responsible waste and
resources management;

+ continually explore emerging technologies
and innovative practices; and

+ ensure funds are secured to meet NAWMA's
strategic business activities, as well as
the ongoing requirement for growth and
development.

Currently NAWMA's constituent Councils -

the Cities of Playford and Salisbury and the
Town of Gawler — have a population of about
250,000 residents in 110,000 households. This
population is forecast to grow to 276,000 by
2020.

These Councils cover a diverse area

northern metropolitan Adelaide 0 rural
townships in South Australia’s
broad acre farmlands. Propose
on the northern urban fri
redevelopment, will incre

nagement perspective, many
nities are presented

targets of the NAWMA Waste Management
Strategy 2015-2020 include:

+ further reduction in Council waste disposal
rates,

*+ reduction in Council contributions with
NAWMA having greater control of its waste
minimisation and resources recovery
operations through a strategic realignment of
reliance on external contractors;

* maximising annual financial returns to
Councils; and

+ establishing reliable markets for sale of
processed recyclables.

The purchase of the new site and facilities
at Edinburgh Parks highlight NAWMA's
commitment to these targets. It will provide
surety into the future with room for growth
and innovation through the NAWMA Waste
Management Strategy 2015-2020.
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Resource Recovery

Adelaide’s northern community is increasingly
accessing services of NAWMA's state-of-the-art
Resource Recovery Centre (RRC) at Edinburgh
North.

The fully automated facility on Bellchambers
Road includes:

*__a drive-through, under cover Waste Transfer
Station for people to bring in their own waste
products, including materials for recycling;

= 3 Salvage & Save retail outlet operated by
Hands on SA in association with NAWMA; and

= arecycling service for bottles and cans
operated by Scouts SA.

The RRC is delivering a range of positive
outcomes including:

+ growing community awareness of and
involvement in the recycling of waste; and

= the opportunity for people on lower

incomes to be able to purchase godd second

hand building and household productsiat
affordable prices.

It is a major contributor to envirofmental
best practice through diverSien of Waste from
landfill.

Following are details of operations of the RRC
for the year to 30 June 2017:

= 20,550 customers accessed the facility
delivering green waste and general waste.
This is an increase of 8.6 per cent
from 2015-16;

+ afurther 3,100 customers delivered
recyclables only free of charge;

+ revenue was consistent with the previous
reporting period at 6 per cent above
expenditure;

= 1,078 tonnes of steel, cardboard, e-waste, car
batteries were recovered and marketed;

= 16,400 litres of waste oil were collected and
recycled;

« 4,858 tonnes of garden organics was
processed into mulch products; and

* 2,696 tonnes of residual waste was
transported to SUEZ-ResourceCo for
processing into Refuse Derived Fuel (RDF).

11
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3.6.6

Material Recovery Facility

Performance of Constituent Councils 2016-2017 through kerbside
collection services

. Kerbside Waste Percentage
Region recycling (tonnages) recovered .no:.__u.ma.n_
g with 2015-16
(tonnages) from landfill
Gawler 4,236 5,040 46.65% 42.60%
13,224 19,984 39.87% 38.05%
Salisbury 28,996 31,860 47.45% 44.78%

The percentages recovered (shown above) are based on the kerbside
collection service only. They do not include recycling and resource
recovery initiatives in place at the Waste Transfer Stations of member
Councils and NAWMA's Resource Recovery Centre, or via the Container
Deposit Legislation (CDL) depots where steel, aluminium, glass or plasti
drink containers are returned for cash payment.

a
)

a

I

Kerbside regional performance comparison with previous years

Recyclables,
_=ﬁ_=ﬁﬂ=u FOGO Waste ﬂwﬂnnﬁwmw
and hard waste (tonnages) P
(tonnages)
12-13 37,258 52,246 41.62%
13-1 41,283 53,697 43.46%
1 38,394 54,882 42.06%
1 41,534 56,453 42.39%
45,875 57,049 44.32%

The'tgcyclables tonnages also include material collected via the hard
aste program, none of which is landfilled.

Regional performance from all sources
lkerbside and waste transfer stations)

Total Total waste el Total
kerbside ~ diverted from  kerhside percentage

Year recyclables landfill from waste  recovered from

(tonnages) ~ Waste transfer jandfilled landfill

stations

13-14 41,283 19,887 53,697 53.25%
14-15 38,394 21,678 54,882 52.26%
15-16 41,534 25,435 56,453 54.26%
16-17 45,875 27,305 57,049 56.19%

13
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3.6.6

Environmental Outcomes

Landfill gas flaring

From late 2016 to early 2017, the number of
landfill gas wells at the landfill grew from four
to eighteen as part of a progression towards
implementation of renewable energy facility.

Average landfill gas flows through the flare since
then have increased sharply with 526,000 m3/
month now being flared. In terms of reduced
pollution from the flaring each month, this
equates to:

+ preventing around 4,000 tonnes of CO2
going into the atmosphere; or

* removing approximately 1,000 cars off the
road; or

* harnessing the benefits from planting 440
hectares of trees per day.

Decomposing organic matter generates landfill
gas. It mostly consists of methane and carbon
dioxide mixed with water vapour and organic
compounds. The substantial methane content
of landfill gas enables it to be used as a power
generation fuel to create electricity that can be
returned to the grid.

Complementing the Uleybury gas renewable
energy strategy is a partnership with Joule

Energy to create Australia’s first solar farm
based at a landfill. About 11,000 solar panels
will be installed at the site allowing the solar
farm to be integrated with the landfill gas
energy facility.

The combined electricity generated from the
two facilities will deliver a projected 11,000
megawatt hours per annum, which is enotigh, to
power 1,800 homes.

Just as importantly, the landfill gaSrenewable
energy facility and solar farm will préevent about
63,000 tonnes of carbon being emitted into the
atmosphere each year.

Treatment of wasteWwater [leachate) at
Uleybury

Leachate, orrainwater than descends through
waste, is pumped from the sealed base of the
landfill to evaporation ponds.

The sealed base of the landfill consists of
natural clay and selected liner materials to
prevent pollution of groundwater, which is
about 100 metres below the quarry bed at
Uleybury.

Groundwater from wells strategically positioned
around the site is tested regularly to ensure the
base liner effectively captures leachate.

High Density Compressed Natural Gas
(HDCNG).

NAWMA, along with its partner SUEZ,
has completed the introduction of next
generation HDCNG to power the fleet
of kerbside collection trucks.

This significantly reduces
greenhouse gas emissions,
particulate and noise pollution
from the trucks.

-
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3.6.6

NAWMA continues to develop motivational new
dimensions to its education and community
awareness programs to showcase the
environmental, economic and social benefits of
waste minimisation, recycling and re-use.

During the 2016-17 financial year, more than
5,000 children and adults were engaged in
NAWMA's education presentations, including
promotional visits and workshops in local
schools, shopping precincts and community

centres.

NAWMA's interactive new Environmental
Education Centre (EEC) opened at Edinburgh
Parks in mid-June. By the end of that month,
100 pre-school children and 335 primary

school students with accompanying parents and
teachers visited the centre along with a group of

senijors.

ucation

New and emerging communications and

information technologies are

to maximise the effectiveness of the education

being embraced

programs with a particular emphasis on funin

learning for students with important take home

mess53ages.

The My Waste App is providing to
increasingly effective in engagi

who can access waste manag

on computers and mobile telep

the reporting period, the

resident interactions—a v
increase from 61 th
year.

These interd
* 91,129
* 8,918 calendar views; and

* 68 problem reports.

ant
015-16 financial

Other key education and community
engagement activities in the past year included:

= constant updating of educational resources
for schools including USBs, word games,
recycling information sheets and videos;

« strategic advertising in local newspapers and
cinemas;

+ distribution of waste management
information packs to all new residents and
those seeking replacement bins; and

= continuing development and refreshment of
the NAWMA website.

17
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3.6.6

od and Garden Organics

Fifty five per cent of residents participated in
NAWMA's voluntary garden organics collection
service in 2016-17 representing an increase of
over 4,000 services from the previous year.

Playford Council residents continue to transition
from a user pays system to the NAWMA regional
food and garden organics program. There is
now a participation level of 41 per cent among
Playford residents.

In the reporting period, 37,295 tonnes of food
and garden organics were sourced from the
region and forwarded for processing. This was
anincrease of 25.5 per cent from 2015-16.

The tonnage of collected garden organics
fluctuates from year to year due to seasonal
factors, but there is a very clear and
encouraging trend of community participation
in food and garden organics recycling.

FOGO
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
General Purpose Financial Report
for the year ended 20 June 2017
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2017

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[ have been authorised by Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority to certify the financial statements in
their final form. in our opinion:

- the accompanying financial statements comply with the Local Government Act 1999, Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 and Australian Accounting Standards.

-the financial statements present a true and fair view of the Authority's financial position at 30 June 2017 and the
results of its operations and cash flows for the financial year.

- internal controls implemented by t provide a reasonable assurance that the Autharity's financial

records are complete, accurate and reliz

- the financial statements accurately

an Cunningham
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIRPERSON
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 30 June 2017

2017 2016
Notes  $'000 $'000
INCOME
User charges 2 26,843 25,629
Investment income 2 171 248
Reimbursements 2 55 178
Other 2 250 144
Total Income 27,319 26,199
EXPENSES
Employee costs 3 1,773 1,731
Materials, contracts & other expenses 3 24,205 21,466
Finance costs 3 281 246
Depreciation, amortisation & impaj t 3 1,360 1,374
Other Expenses 3 30 5
Total Expenses 27,649 24,822
OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) (330) 1,377
transfer ta Equity Statement

Asset disposal & fair value adjustments S - (66)
Amaunts received specifically for new/upgraded assets 180 -
NET SURPLUS / {DEFICIT) (150} 1,311
Other Comprehensive [ncome

Changes In revaluation surplus - infrastructure, property,

plant & equipment )
Total Other Comprehensive Income - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (150} 1,311
This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Nates.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

as at 30 June 2017
2017 2016
ASSETS Notes $'000 $'000
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 4,282 3,600
Trade & other receivables 4 2,466 2,852
Total Current Assets 6,748 6,452
Non-current Assets
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 5 10,723 9,699
Total Assets 17,471 16,151
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade & Other Payables 6 2,768 2,243
Provisions 6 366 318
Borrowings 6 791 1,579
Al abilities 3,925 4,140
Non-current Liabilities
Borrowings 6 4,331 2,518
Provisions 2,428 2,556
Total Non-current Liab| 6,759 5,074
Total Liabilities 10,684 9,214
NET ASSETS 6,787 6,937
EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus 6,172 6,322
Asset Revaluation Reserve 615 615
TOTAL EQUITY 6,787 6,937
This Statement is ta be read in conjunction with the attached Notes.
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 30 june 2017
Asset
Accumulated TOTAL
2017 Surplus Revaluation EQUITY
Reserve
$'000
Balance at end of previous reporting period 6,322 615 6,937
Net Surplus/ {Deficit) for Year (150) - {150)
Other Comprehensive Income
Gain on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant & i i )
equipment
Transfers between reserves - - -
Distributions to Member Councils - - -
Balance at end of period 6,172 615 6,787
Asset
Accumulated TOTAL
2016 Revaluation
Surplus Reserve EQUITY
$'000
Balance at end of previous reporting period 5,011 615 5,626
Net Surplus/ (Deficit) for Year 311 - 1,311
Other Comprehensive Income
Gain on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant & i }
equipment
Transfers between reserves - - -
Distributions to Member Councils - - -
Balance at end of period 6,322 615 6,937
This Statement is to be read in canjunction with the attached Notes
158 CITY OF SALISBURY ARMUAL REPORT 16,17
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 30 June 2017
2017 2016

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Notes $'000 s'oco
Receipts

Operating receipts 27,534 26,160

Investment receipts 171 248
Payments

Operating payments to suppliers & employees {25,806} {23,128}

Finance payments {271) {275)
Net Cash provided by {or used in) Operating Activities 7 1,628 3,005
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Recelpts

Amounts specifically for new or upgraded assets 180 -

Sale of surplus assets - -
Payments

Expenditure on renewal/replace a - {68)

Expenditure on new/upgraded ass {2,151) (4,744)
Net Cash provided by {or used in) Investing ies {1,971) (4,812)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts
Proceeds from Borrowings 2,500 2,400
Payments

Repayments of Borrowings (1,475) {1,205)
Net Cash provided by [or used in) Financing Activities 1,025 1,195
Net Increase (Decrease) In cash held 682 (612)
Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of period 7 3,600 4,212
Cash & cash equivalents at end of period 7 4,282 3,600

This Statement is to be read in conjunction with the attached Notes
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated,

1  Basis of Preparation

1.1  Compliance with Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards as they
apply to not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board,
Interpretations and relevant South Australian legislation.

The financial report was authorised for issue by certificate under regulation 14 of the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011,

The Authority is a Local Government Aut
Salisbury, City of Playford and the Town'of

wier.
1.2  Historical Cost Convention
Except where stated below, these financial st ve been prepared in accordance with the historical cost
canvention.
1.3 Critical Accounting Estimates ﬂ
st

The preparation of financial statements in conformity wit| rali ccounting Standards which requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates, and requires man 10 cise its judgement in applying the

Authority’s accounting palicies.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or are here assumptions and estimates are

significant to the financial statements are specifically referred to in thié relevant sections of this Note,

Section 43 Reglional Subsidiary under the control of City of

1.4 Rounding
All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars {$'000).

2 The Local Government Reporting Entity

Northern Adelaide Waste Management Authority operates as a regional subsidiary pursuant to Section 43 of the
SA Local Government Act 1999 and Section 25 of the Local Gavernment Implementation Act, and has its principal
place of business at Cnr Peachey & Bellchambers Road, Edinburgh North SA 5113,

These financial statements have been prepared for use by the Constituent Councils of the Authority.
3  Income Recognltion
Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received ar receivable. Incame is recognised when the

Authority obtains control over the assets comprising the income, or when the amount due constitutes an
enforceable debt, whichever first occurs.
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies [cont)

4  Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments
Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at the Authority's option with an insignificant
risk of changes in value with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Receivables are generally unsecured and do not bear interest,

Allreceivables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the receipt of
which is considered doubtful.

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition. A detailed statement of the
accounting policies applied to financial instruments forms part of Note 8.

5 Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
All non-current assets purchased or cons| ed are capitalised as the expenditure is incurred and depreciated as
soen as the asset is held “ready foru

5.1 Initial Recognition
All assets are initially recognised at cost. Cos ined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration
plus costs incidental to the acquisition, inciu@ cts' fees and engineering design fees and all other costs

incurred. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost is determined as fair value at the date

The cast of non-current assets constructed by the Authority i es the cost of all materials used in construction,
ixed overhead.

Capital works still in progress at balance date are recognised as other n t assets and transferred to

5.2  Materiality

Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition exceeds
materiality thresholds established by the Authority for each type of asset. In determining (and in annually
reviewing} such threshalds, regard is had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service life. No capitalisation
threshald is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in land.

5.3 Subsequent Recognition

Cartain asset classes are revalued on a regular basis such that the carrying values are not materially different from
fair value, For infrastructure and other asset classes where no active market exists, fair value Is determined to be
the current replacement cost of an asset less, where applicable, accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis
of such cost to refiect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset.

5.4  Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

Other than land, all infrastructure, property, plant and equipment assets recognised are systematically depreciated
over their useful lives in a manner which reflects the consumption of the service potential embodied in those
assets.

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis. Major depreciation periods for each class of asset are shown
below. Depreciation periods for infrastructure assets have been estimated based on the best information
available to the Authority, but appropriate recards covering the entire life cycle of these assets are not available,
and extreme care should be used in interpreting financial information based on these estimates.
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies {cont}

Plant, Furniture & Equipment 5 t010 years
Bulldings 50 years
Infrastructure:
Waste Facility 10 to 15 years
Landfill Construction Amortised proportionately to rate of filling

5.5  Land Assets

As at 30 June 2015, an independent valuation was undertaken an all Land assets held by the Authority. The
independent valuation was undertaken by Maloney Field Services and valued land assets to the current market
value.

Given the material value of Land assets subsequent to the valuation performed, Land assets are shown as a
separate class of asset and disclosed ac

5.6 Impairment
Assets that have an indefinite useful It
Assets that are subject to depreciation are re
indicate that the carrying amount may not be

to depreciation and are reviewed annually for impairment.
mpairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
or value in use).

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount b
amount (which is the higher of the present value of future

to generate cash flows, and where the
eof, the value in use is the
a rebuttable assumption is made that the

For assets whose future economic benefits are not dependént on
future economic benefits would be replaced if the Authority were depriv
depreciated replacement cost. In assessing impairment for these ass
current replacement cost exceeds the original cost of acquisition,

6  Payables

6.1 Goods & Services

Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as liabilities
when the goods and services are received,

Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month of invoice. No interest is payable on these amounts.

7  Employee Benefits

7.1 Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabilities for employees’ entitiements to salaries, wages and compensated absences expected to be paid or
settled within 22 months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based oncosts)
measured in accordance with AASB 119.

Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows {including payroli based oncosts) to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using government guaranteed
securities rates with similar maturity terms.

Na accrual is made for sick leave as the Authority’s experience indicates that, an average, sick leave taken in each
reporting period is less than the entitlement accruing in that peried, and this experience is expected to recur in
future reporting periods., The Authority does not make payment for untaken sick leave,
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies {cont)

7.2 Superannuation
The Authority makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local Government
Superannuation Scheme. The Scheme has two types of membership, each of which is funded differently.

Accumulation Fund Members

Accumuiation fund members receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer
contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings in accordance with Superannuation
Guarantee Legisiotion (9.5% in 2016/17; 9.5% in 2015/16). No further liability accrues to the employer as the
superannuotion benefits accruing to employees ore represented by their share of the net assets of the Fund.

Defined Benefit Members
Defined benefit scheme is where the benefit poyable is based on o formula determined by the member’s
contribution rate, number of years of contribution and final overoge solary. The Authority makes employer
contributions as determined by the scheme’s Trustee based on advice fram the Scheme’s Actuarial. The most recent
full actuarial investigation conducted b me’s actuary, A C Miller, FIAA, of Russell Employee Benefits Pty
Ltd as at 30 June 2014.The Trustee hds determined that the current funding arrangements are adequate for the
expected Salarylink liabilities. Howeve
Authority’s contribution rates ot some future ¢

The Autharity also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the ‘choice
of fund’ legislation. All such schemes are of the a pe, where the superannuation benefits accruing to
the employee are represented by their share of the new s of thie scheme, and no further liability attaches to
the Authority.

8  Rehabilitation
Expenditures relating to ongoing rehabilitation and restoration reduce a rovision previously established.

The Autherity annually monitors the liability recorded for landfill rehabilitation and restoration estimates and
make adjustments to the liability as required to ensure an accurate projected cost of the liability is showing in the
balance sheet.

The Authority will be undertaking further detailed reviews of all rehabilitation and restoration liability costs in
future years with the assistance of external consultants to ensure all projected costs have been independently
verified.

9  Leases
Lease arrangements have been accounted for in accordance with AASB 217,

In respect of finance leases, where the Authority substantially carries all the risks incident to ownership, the leased
items are initially recognised as assets and liabilities equal in amount to the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The assets are disclosed as assets under lease, and are amortised to expense over the period during
which the Autherity is expected to benefit from the use of the [eased assets.

Lease payments are allocated between interest expense and reduction of the lease liability, according to the
interest rate implicit in the lease.

In respect of operating leases, where the lessor substantially retains all of the risks and benefits incident to
ownership of the leased items, lease payments are charged to expense over the lease term.

City of Salisbury Page 223
Resources and Governance Committee Agenda - 20 November 2017



3.6.6 Draft 2016/17 Annual Report

NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont)

10 GSTimplications
In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax”

= Receivables and Creditors include GST receivable and payable,

= Except in relation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating expenditures exclude GST receivable and
payable.

®  Non-current assets and capital expenditures include GST net of any recoupment.

= Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.

11 Comparative Information
Comparative information has been reclassified to be consistent with the current year disclosure of equivalent

information in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.

12 Critical Accounting Estimates a
The Board evaluate estimates and j
knowledge and best available curren
Estimates assume a reasonable expectatio nts and based on current trends and economic data,
obtained both externally and within the Authorit

13 New Accounting Standards
In the current year, the Authority adopted all of the new revised S
Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to its
reporting period. The adoption of the new and revised Standards
material changes to Authority’s accounting policies.

ards and Interpretations issued by the
tions and effective for the current
retations has not resulted in any

Certain new accaunting standards have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2017 reporting
period and have not been used in preparing these reports.

The Authority is of the view that none of the new standards or interpretations will affect any of the amounts
recognised in the financial statements, but that they may impact certain information otherwise disclosed.
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 2 - INCOME
2017 2016
Notes $'000 $'000
USER CHARGES
Waste Management Operations 26,343 25,6293
26,843 25,629
INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest on investments
Local Government Finance Authority 82 115
Rental Income 89 133
171 248
REIMBURSEMENTS
Reimbursement 34 68
Fuel Tax Credit Reimbursements 21 110
55 178
OTHER INCOME
Promotianal Income 250 144
250 144
Note 3 - EXP ES
EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salaries and Wages 1,431 1,375
Employee leave expense A 52 35
Superannuation 135 132
Workers' Compensation Insurance 28 22
Allowances 3 6
Other 124 161
Total Operating Employee Costs 1,773 1,731
MATERIALS, CONTRACTS & OTHER EXPENSES
Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration
- Auditing the financial reports 13 13
Lease costs 1,260 395
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 1,273 408
Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses
Promotions 154 117
Bank Fees 1 10
Boral Royalty 210 212
Contractors 15,313 15,345
Electricity 182 115
Environmental Protection Agency Levy 5,825 4,550
Fuels & Oils 84 -
Professional services 413 209
Waste Recycle Bins 311 273
Administration & Other Expenses 439 227
Subtotal - Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses 22,932 21,058
23,205 21.466
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 3 - EXPENSES (cont)
2017 2016
Notes $'000 $'000
DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION & IMPAIRMENT
Depreciation
Waste Processing Facility 147 131
Uleybury Landfill Plant & Equipment 31 34
Education Program Plant & Equipment 1 2
Office Furniture & Equipment 8 3
Property & Improvements 19 12
Landfill Cell Stage Two - 275
Landfill Capping Stage Two - 32
Landfill Cell Stage Three 412 19
Landfill Capping Stage 3 71 3
Post Closure Rehabilitation 148 90
Buildings 20 20
Mobile Garbage Bins 503 753
1,360 1,374
FINANCE COSTS
Interest on Loans and Overdraft 281 246
281 246
INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT A
Assets renewed or directly replaced
Proceeds from disposal - -
Less: Carrying amount of assets sald - 66
Gain (Loss) on disposat - (66)
OTHER EXPENSES
Landfill Cell Expenses 30 5
30 5
Note 4 - CURRENT ASSETS
CASH & EQUIVALENT ASSETS
Cash on Hand and at Bank 192 38
Deposits at Call 4,090 3,562
4,282 3,600
TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES
Debtors - general 2,451 2,833
Accrued Revenues 15 19
2,466 2,852
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3.6.6

NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note S cont. - INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

2016 CARRYING AMOUNT MOVEMENTS DURING YEAR 2017
5'000 5'000 $'000
Additions
Wﬂmﬁuw Capical New/Upgrade Disposals Reclassification Revaluation | Depreciation WHH__HM

Land 875 - : . - 875
Waste Processing Facility 944 - 33 - - (147) 1,121
Uleybury Landfill Plant & Equipment 190 - - - (31) 159
Education Program Plant & Equipment 13 - - (1) 12
Office Furniture & Equipment 8 - 6 - - (8) 56
Property & Improvements 154 - - - {19) 135
Landfill Cell Stage One - - - - .
Landfill Capping Stage One - . -
Landfill Cell Stage Two - - - - -
Landfill Capping Stage Two - - - - -
Landfill Cell Stage Three 3,065 . - - {412) 2,653
Landfill Capping Stage Three 391 144 - - - (71) 464
Post Closure Rehabilitation 1,013 89 - - {148) 954
Buildings 179 - - - (20) 159
Mobile Garbage Bins 503 - . - B (503) -
wip 2,364 - 1,761 - - - 4,125
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT
& COMMPRENT 9,699 233 2,151 - - - {1,360) 10,723

2016 Totals 5,878 5,193 &8 (66) - - {1,374} 9,693
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for the year ended 30 june 2017

Note 6 - LIABILITIES

NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2017 2016
$'000 $'000
TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES Notes Current Non-current Current Non-curreat
Goods & Services 2,409 - 2,154 -
Payments received in advance - - - -
Accrued expenses - other 359 - 89 -
2,768 - 2,243 -

BORROWINGS
Loans 791 4,331 1,579 2,518

791 4,331 1,579 2,518
PROVISIONS
Annual Leave 137 - 123 -
Long Service Leave 229 29 195 31
Provision for Capping Stage 1A - - - 187
Provision for Capping Stage 2A - 172
Provision for Capping Stage 3A - 394
Provision for Post Closure Site Rehabilitation - 1,772

318 2,556
Mavements in Provisions - 2016 year only Opening . Closing
fcurrent & non-current) Balance {;;m) Poyments Satance
Provision for Capping Stoge 1A 187 {187) -
Provision for Copping Stage 2A 172 {172) -
Pravision for Capping Stage 3A a4 144 - 538
Post Closure Site Rehabifitation _1,772 89 - 1,861
Total 2,525 233 (359) 2,399
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017
Note 7 - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT
{a) Reconciliation of Cash
Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to maturity subject to
insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the end of the reporting period as shown in
the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial
Position as follows:
2017 2016
Notes $'000 $'000
Total cash & equivalent assets 4 4,282 3,600
Less: Short-term borrowings - -
Balances per Cash Flow Statement 4,282 3,600
{b) Reconciliation of Change in to Cash
from Operating Activit
Net Surplus (Deficit) {150} 1,311
Non-cash items in Income Statem
Depreciation, amortisation & impairm 1,360 1,374
Gain / {Loss) on Disposal - (66)
Grants for capital acquisitions treated as nvesti H {180) i
1,030 2,618
Add {Less): Changes in Net Current Assets
Net (increase) decrease in receivables 386 209
Net increase (decrease) in trade & other payables 515 34
Net increase (decrease) in other provisions {(303) 143
Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 1,628 3,005
{c) Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities
Acquisition of assets by means of:
- Physical resources received free of charge - -
- Non-cash grants & contributions . B
Amounts recognised in Income Statement -
- Finance Leases -
Total Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities - -
(d}  Financing Arrangements
Corporate Credit Cards 15 15
The bank overdraft facililies may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the
bank without notice.
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 7 - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

{a} Reconciliation of Cash

Cash Assets comprise highly fiquid investments with short periods to maturity subject to
insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the end of the reporting pericd as shown in
the Cash Flow Statement is reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial

Position as follows:
2017 2016
Notes $'000 $'000
Total cash & equivalent assets 4 4,282 3,600
Less: Short-term borrawings - -
Balances per Cash Flow Statement 4,282 3,600
{b} Reconciliation of Change. i to Cash
from Operating Activitie
Net Surplus {Deficit) {150} 1,311
Non-cash items in Income Statemen
Depreciation, amortisation & impalirment 1,360 1,374
Gain / {Loss) on Disposal - (66)
Grants for capital acquisitions treated as Investing ActiVities (180) i
1,030 2,619
Add {Less): Changes in Net Current Assets
Net (increase) decrease in receivables 386 209
Net increase (decrease) in trade & other payables 515 34
Net increase {decrease} in other provisions ~{303) 143
Net Cash provided by {or used in) operations 1,628 3,005

{c) Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities

Acquisition of assets by means of:
- Physical resources received free of charge . -
- Non-cash grants & contributions - -
Amounts recognised in Income Statement - -

- Finance Leases - -
Total Non-Cash Financing and Investing Activities - -

(d} Financing Arrangements
Corporate Credit Cards 15 15

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the
bank without nofice.
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 8 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Recognised Financial Instruments

Bank, Deposits at Call, Accounting Policy: Carried at lower of cost and net realisabile value; Interest is recognised when earned.

[Shon Term Depaosits

Terms & canditions; Deposits on Call do not have a maturity period and have an average Interest rates oJ
1.25% (2016: 1.75%).

Carrying amount: approximales fair value due to the short term Lo maturlty.
Receivables - Gate Fees & Accounting Policy: Carried at nominal values less any allowance for doubtful debts. An allowance for doubtful
Associated Charges debts is recognised (and re-assessed annually) when collection in full is no longer probabie.

Carrylng amount: approximates fair value {after deduction of any allowance).
Liabilitles - Creditors and Accounting Policy: Liabilities are recognised for amounts 1o be paid in the foture for goods and services

Accruals .
s are normally settled on 30 day terms.
Net Fair Value
All carrying values appraximate fair value for all recBgnise ial instruments. There Js no recognised market for the

financial assets of the Authority.

Risk res
Credit Risk represents the Joss that would be recognised if counterparties faj
credit risk on financial assets of the Authority is the carrying amount,
investments are made with the SA Local Government Finance Authority
Individual debtor,

erform as contracted. The maximum
of any provision for doubtful debts. all
ank SA, There is no material exposure to any

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. All of the
Authority’s financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, and hence neither

market risk nor currency risk apply.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Authority will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities. In
accordance with the model Treasury Policy {LGA information Paper 15), labilities have a range of maturity dates based on
cash inflows. The Authority also has available a range of bank overdraft and short-term draw down facilities that it can
access.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flaws will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Most of the

Authority's financial Instruments are at fixed rates. Any such variations in future cash flows will not be material in effect on
either the Authority's incomes or expenditures.
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TG AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note & (cont) - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Liguidity Analysis
Floating Fixgd interest matyring in Nen-
2017 Imerest <1 year > lyear > 5years interest Total
Rate < 5years hearing
Financial Assets $'000 $'000 $'000 $'900 $'000 $'000
Fair Value through PEL
Cash Assets 192 4,050 - - - 4,282
Loans & Receivables
Receivables - - - - 2,466 2,456
Total 192 4,050 - - 2,466 6,748
Financial Liabilitles
Payahbles - - - - 2,768 2,768
Currant Borrowings . 791 - - - 791
Non-Current Barrowings - - 1&1 - - 4,331
791 4,331 - 2,768 7,830
EXCESS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS DVER
LIABILITIES 3,299 {2,331} - {302) (1,142)
Fixed interest maturing in Non-
2016 <1 > 1 year » § years interest Total
5 years bearing
Financial Assets 000 5'000 $'000 S'000
Fair Value through P&L
Cash Assets 38 A . v 3,600
Loans & Receivables
Aeceivables : - - 2,852 2,852
Total 33 3,562 - - 1,852 6452
Financial Liabilities
Payables . - . . 2,243 2,243
Current Borrowings 1,579 - 1,579
MNon-Current Borrowings ; - 2,518 . 0 2,518
Total - 1,579 2,518 - 2,243 6,340
E'J:C:'i:r:;l;FINANCML ASSETS OVER 8 1,983 {2,518] ) 809 112
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 9 - COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE
2017 2016
Noles $'000 $'000
Expenditure Commitments

Other expenditure committed for [excluding inventories) at the reporting date but not recognised in
the financial statements as liabilities:

Audit Services 5 5

Waste Collection, Processing and Mobile Garbage Bin 76,918 24,630

Supply Contracts

Woomera Ave Operations Centre - 5,250
76,923 29,885

These expenditures are payab

Not later than one year 9,620 20,003

Later than one year and not later thand ye 9,881 9,882

Later than 5 years 57,422 -
76,923 29,885

The Authority manages multiple external contracts e al fiers for the collection, processing
and disposal of waste on behalf of its Constituent Councils and cu. rs. The commitments disclosed
above reflect o consolidation of multiple contracts entered into#ith extermnal suppliers. in future years,
all contracts will be required to be renewed with external suppliers in accordance with adopted

procurement policies and procedures of the Authority.

The Autharity purchased a property at Woomera Ave, Edinburgh North for $4.05 million on 23 August
2017. A deposit of $50,000 (GST exclusive) was paid in March 2016. The acquisition of the premises was
funded by a 20 year external loan facility.

Note 10 - EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

There were no events subsequent to 30 June 2017 that need to be disclosed in the financial statements.
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 11 - OPERATING LEASES

Lease payment commitments of Authority

No contingent rentals were paid during the current or previous reporting periods. No lease imposes any additional
restrictions on the Authority in relation to additional debt or further leasing.

No [ease contains any escalation clause. Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases that have not been

2017 2016

$'000 $'000
Not iater than one year 994 855
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 3,476 2,895
Later than 5 years 73 600
4,543 4,350

Note 12 - DI S OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

rd, Chief Executive and other officers prescribed
Il, 6 persons were paid the following total

The Key Management Personnel include
under Section 112 of the Local Government
compensation:

Salarles, allowances & other short term benefits
Long term benefits
TOTAL

Transactions with Related Parties:
The following transactions occurred with Related Parties:

Amounts
Sale of Goods  Qutstanding .
Description of Services Provided
Related Party Entity and Services  from Related Acription of Serv ces_ o
\ 10 Related Parties
{5'000} Partles ‘
{$'000)
. Provision of waste callection,
City of Salisbury 11879 1,024 pracessing and disposal services
. Provision of waste collection,
City of Playford 6,882 702 processing and disposal services
ision of )
Town of Gawler 1,951 155 Provision of waste collection,

processing and disposal services

Amounts recorded as outstanding from Related Parties are recorded in Trade and other receivables in Note 5.

The Related Parties disclosed above are equity owners of the Authority and are referred to as Member Councils,
Member Councils have equal representation on the Board of the Authority and accordingly have significant
influence on the financiat and operating decisions of the Authority, No one Member Council individually has
control of those policies.
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 june 2017

Note 13 - CONTINGENCIES & ASSETS & LIABILUITIES NOT RECOGNISED

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Balance Sheet but knowledge of those items is considered
relevant ta user of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the ailocation of scarce resources,

1 POTENTIAL INSURANCE LOSSES
The Authority insures against all known insurable risks using a range of insurance policies, each of which is subject to a
deductible "insurance excess", the amount of which varies according to the class of insurance.

The Authority has recognised the potential losses arising from claims known at reporting date based on average historical

net cost (including insurance excess) of similar types of claims. Other potential claims not reported to the Authority may
have existed at reporting date.

2. LEGAL EXPENSES
Al known costs have been recogn

3. PERFORMANCE BONDS/GURANTEES

e Lacal Government Finance Authority ta the Environment
cor with the reguirements under its Post Closure

The Authority has a performance bond/guarante
Protection Autharity for an amount of 51,350,000 i
remediation obligations for the Uleybury Landfill site.
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 14 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Authority measures and recognises the foilowing assets at fair value on a recurring basis after initial
recognition:
- Land assets.

The Authority does not subsequently measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis, or any assets or
liabilities at fair value on a non-recurring basis.
(a) Fair value hierarchy

AASB 13: Foir Volue Measurement requires the disclosure of fair value informaticn according to the relevant
level in the fair value hierarchy. This higsarchy categorises fair value measurements into one of three
possible levels based on the lowestle at a significant input can be categorised into. The levels are

outiined below:
Level 1 Level 3

Measurements based on quoted  Me ats based on inputs Measurements based on
prices {unadjusted) in active ice
markets for identical assets or - :
liabilities that the entity can access the asset or liabi zithe ctly
at the measurement date. or indirectly.

The fair value of assets and liabilities that are not traded’n an active t is determined using one or
more valuation technigues. These valuation technigues maximise, to t t possible, the use of
observable market data. If all significant inputs required to measurefair value are observable, the assat or
liability is included in Level 2. If one or more significant inputs are Aot based on observable market data, the

asset or liability is included in Level 3.
Violuation techniques

The Authority seiects valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and far which
sufficient data is available to measure fair value. The availability of sufficient and relevant data primarily
depends on the specific characteristics of the asset or liability being measured. The valuation techniques
selected by the association are consistent with one or more of the foliowing valuation approaches:

- Market approach; uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions
involving identical or similar assets or llabilities.

- income approach: tonverts estimated future cash flows or income and expenses into a single
current (i.e. discounted) value.

- Cost approach: reflects the current replacement cost of an asset at its current service capacity.

Each vaiuation technique requires inputs that reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would use
when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risks. When selecting a valuation technique,
the Authority gives priority to those techniques that maximise the use of nbservable inputs and minimise
the use of unobservable inputs. Inputs that are developed using market data (such as publicly available
infarmation on actual transactions} and reflect the assumptions that buyers and sellers would generally use
when pricing the asset or liability are considered observable, whereas inputs for which market data are not
available and therefore are developed using the best information available about such assumptions are
considered unobservable.
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 14 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS {Cont.)

The following tables provide the fair values of the Authority’s assets measured and recognised on a recurring
basis after initial recognition, categorised within the fair value hierarchy.

Note Level1 Levet 2 Level 3 Total
$ $ $ 5
2017
$'000
Recurring fair value measurements
Infrastructure, Property, Plant 8£q
- Land

5 - 875 - 875

Total financial assets recognised at fa
value - B75 - 875

2016
$°000
Recurring fair value measurements

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
- Land 5 - 875 - 875

Total financlal assets recognised at fair
value - 875 . 875

{b) Disclosed fair value measurements

The following table provides the level of the fair value hierarchy within which the disclosed fair value
measurements are categorised in their entirety and a description of the valuation technigue(s) and inputs

used.
Fair Value Valuation
Hierarchy Level Technigue inputs Used
There has been no change in 2 Market Value Observable sales of
the valuation technique(s) used similar properties —
to calculate the fair values both vacant land
disclosed in the financial and land with
statements. improvements
1
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NORTHERN ADELAIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 June 2017

CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

To the best of our knowtedge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of the Northern
Adelaide Waste Management 2 y for the year ended 30 June 2017, the Authority's Auditor, HLB
1 1

Mann Judd, has maintaine ce In accordance with the requirements of the Local

=]

Government Act 1999 and the Loca, ent (Financial Manogement) Regulations 2011 made
under that Act.

This statement is pre in accordance with there ts of Regulatior 22(3) Local Government
(Financiol Mana nt) Regulations 2011,

f' /ﬁ %
a2 / _:" F- F
S e
Mr Adam Fiu lkner Mr Peter Brass
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PRESIDING MEMBER
AUDIT COMMITTEE

bote: "’;’/ 7 [/ /) onter DL LL 1T
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NAWMA Board
{meets bi-manthly)

Organisational Structure

Mr Brian Cunningham Audit Committee

ﬁ....m_a {meets quarterly)

Cr David Balaza Mr Peter Brass (Chair}

(e il Mr Mark Labaz
& mc_w s_.osamz Mr Mark McAllister

r Paul Koct

Cr Carol Muzyk Cr Garol Muzy
Cr Merilyn Nicolson Mr Brian Cunningham
Mr Jack Darzanos

*Technical Working *EO Performance
Group & Development
Mr Brian Cunningham Committee
Mr Sam Green Mr Brian Cunningham
Mr Mark Van Der Pennen Mr Sam Green
Mr Jack Darzanos Mr Mark Van Der Pennen

Chief
Executive Officer
Mr Adam Faulkner

Mr Mark Van Der Pennen

*Both these committees meet as required

Mr Paul Sansome
Mr Sam Green

OPERATIONS
GROUP

ADMINISTRATION
GROUP

Processing and
Disposal Manager

Mr David Diprose

Processing &
Disposal Supervisor

Mr Jason Moorhouse

Plant Operators

@) suez “lKkesAB

enriranmental wolttan

Maintenance Fitter

\ 7

inance Manager

Mr Noel Whitcher

Finance Officer

Mrs Annette Penna
Mr Scott Filsell

Promotions and

Office Supervisor
Education Officer

Ms Michelle Muldowney
MissTheresa Dolman

INALMA

NURTHERN ADELRIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AVTHORITY

pe

Administration
5 x Staff

NAWMA 71-75 Woomera Avenue, Edinburgh Parks, SA 5111
Box 10 Mail Delivery Centre, Edinburgh North, SA 5113
Freecall 1800 111 004 Phone 08 8259 2100

Email admin@nawma.sa.gov.au  Web www.nawma.sa.gov.au
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